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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1.    Financial Statements

CIMPRESS PLC
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(unaudited in thousands, except share and per share data)

March 31,
2021

June 30,
2020

Assets   
Current assets:   

Cash and cash equivalents $ 36,364 $ 45,021 
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $10,103 and $9,651, respectively 45,365 34,596 
Inventory 76,104 80,179 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 75,717 88,608 

Total current assets 233,550 248,404 
Property, plant and equipment, net 312,560 338,659 
Operating lease assets, net 84,581 156,258 
Software and website development costs, net 81,677 71,465 
Deferred tax assets 135,491 143,496 
Goodwill 706,626 621,904 
Intangible assets, net 194,502 209,228 
Other assets 34,276 25,592 

Total assets $ 1,783,263 $ 1,815,006 

Liabilities, noncontrolling interests and shareholders’ deficit   
Current liabilities:   

Accounts payable $ 174,947 $ 163,891 
Accrued expenses 265,593 210,764 
Deferred revenue 42,298 39,130 
Short-term debt 9,012 17,933 
Operating lease liabilities, current 29,508 41,772 
Other current liabilities 77,669 13,268 

Total current liabilities 599,027 486,758 
Deferred tax liabilities 27,612 33,811 
Long-term debt 1,332,234 1,415,657 
Operating lease liabilities, non-current 72,142 128,963 
Other liabilities 92,786 88,187 
Total liabilities 2,123,801 2,153,376 
Commitments and contingencies (Note 13)
Redeemable noncontrolling interests 64,250 69,106 
Shareholders’ deficit:   

Preferred shares, nominal value €0.01 per share, 100,000,000 shares authorized; none issued and outstanding — — 
Ordinary shares, nominal value €0.01 per share, 100,000,000 shares authorized; 44,080,627 shares issued;
26,003,676 and 25,885,675 shares outstanding, respectively 615 615 
Deferred ordinary shares, nominal value €1.00 per share, 25,000 shares authorized, issued and outstanding 28 28 
Treasury shares, at cost, 18,076,951 and 18,194,952 shares, respectively (1,368,721) (1,376,496)
Additional paid-in capital 448,432 438,616 
Retained earnings 599,833 618,437 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (84,975) (88,676)

Total shareholders' deficit (404,788) (407,476)

Total liabilities, noncontrolling interests and shareholders’ deficit $ 1,783,263 $ 1,815,006 

See accompanying notes.
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CIMPRESS PLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(unaudited in thousands, except share and per share data)

 Three Months Ended March 31, Nine Months Ended March 31,
 2021 2020 2021 2020

Revenue $ 578,851 $ 597,960 $ 1,951,496 $ 2,052,252 
Cost of revenue (1) 302,022 309,598 986,845 1,029,281 
Technology and development expense (1) 62,572 67,693 186,097 195,287 
Marketing and selling expense (1) 154,472 148,803 474,944 483,056 
General and administrative expense (1) 62,358 45,148 147,149 140,681 
Amortization of acquired intangible assets 13,506 12,693 40,264 38,861 
Restructuring expense (1) (382) 919 1,714 5,006 
Impairment of goodwill — 100,842 — 100,842 
(Loss) income from operations (15,697) (87,736) 114,483 59,238 
Other income (expense), net 9,785 22,537 (16,167) 29,171 
Interest expense, net (29,002) (17,262) (89,659) (48,050)
(Loss) income before income taxes (34,914) (82,461) 8,657 40,359 
Income tax expense (benefit) 3,927 1,039 23,675 (86,641)
Net (loss) income (38,841) (83,500) (15,018) 127,000 
Add: Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest (209) (1,384) (2,500) (1,630)

Net (loss) income attributable to Cimpress plc $ (39,050) $ (84,884) $ (17,518) $ 125,370 

Basic net (loss) income per share attributable to Cimpress plc $ (1.50) $ (3.26) $ (0.67) $ 4.54 

Diluted net (loss) income per share attributable to Cimpress plc $ (1.50) $ (3.26) $ (0.67) $ 4.43 

Weighted average shares outstanding — basic 26,003,675 26,024,229 25,984,300 27,608,387 

Weighted average shares outstanding — diluted 26,003,675 26,024,229 25,984,300 28,317,440 

____________________________________________

(1) Share-based compensation is allocated as follows:

 Three Months Ended March 31, Nine Months Ended March 31,
 2021 2020 2021 2020

Cost of revenue $ 99 $ 66 $ 233 $ 251 
Technology and development expense 2,284 2,014 5,690 5,791 
Marketing and selling expense 1,808 1,145 4,247 367 
General and administrative expense 5,354 5,683 12,901 15,574 
Restructuring expense — (16) — 756 

See accompanying notes.
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CIMPRESS PLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(unaudited in thousands)

Three Months Ended March 31, Nine Months Ended March 31,
2021 2020 2021 2020

Net (loss) income $ (38,841) $ (83,500) $ (15,018) $ 127,000 
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax:

Foreign currency translation (losses) gains, net of hedges (14,571) 1,490 192 3,110 
Net unrealized gains (losses) on derivative instruments
designated and qualifying as cash flow hedges 5,809 (21,201) 13,447 (22,258)
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive
(loss) income to net (loss) income on derivative instruments (3,085) 2,531 (8,382) 5,537 
Loss on pension benefit obligation, net — — (336) — 

Comprehensive (loss) income (50,688) (100,680) (10,097) 113,389 
Add: Comprehensive loss (income) attributable to
noncontrolling interests 1,260 (1,515) (3,720) (967)

Total comprehensive (loss) income attributable to Cimpress plc $ (49,428) $ (102,195) $ (13,817) $ 112,422 

See accompanying notes.
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CIMPRESS PLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)

(unaudited in thousands)

Ordinary Shares
Deferred Ordinary

Shares Treasury Shares
Number of

Shares
Issued

Amount
Number of

Shares
Issued

Amount
Number

of
Shares

Amount
Additional

Paid-in
Capital

Retained
Earnings

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive

Loss

Total
Shareholders’
Equity (Deficit)

Balance at June 30, 2019 44,080 $ 615 — $ — (13,635) $ (737,447) $ 411,079 $ 537,422 $ (79,857) $ 131,812 
Restricted share units
vested, net of shares
withheld for taxes — — — — 4 87 (259) — — (172)
Grant of restricted share
awards — — — — (2) (187) — — — (187)
Share-based
compensation expense — — — — — — 5,164 — — 5,164 
Purchase of ordinary
shares — — — — (1,964) (232,286) — — — (232,286)
Net income attributable
to Cimpress plc — — — — — — — 20,031 — 20,031 
Adoption of new
accounting standards — — — — — — — 3,143 — 3,143 
Net unrealized loss on
derivative instruments
designated and qualifying
as cash flow hedges — — — — — — — — (3,037) (3,037)
Foreign currency
translation, net of hedges — — — — — — — — (70) (70)
Balance at September
30, 2019 44,080 $ 615 — $ — (15,597) $ (969,833) $ 415,984 $ 560,596 $ (82,964) $ (75,602)
Restricted share units
vested, net of shares
withheld for taxes — — — — 1 55 (152) — — (97)
Issuance of ordinary
shares due to share
option exercises, net of
shares withheld for taxes — — — — 1 8 (2) — — 6 
Issuance of deferred
ordinary shares — — 25 28 — — — — — 28 
Share-based
compensation expense — — — — — — 8,228 — — 8,228 
Purchase of ordinary
shares — — — — (2,280) (305,287) — — — (305,287)
Net income attributable
to Cimpress plc — — — — — — — 190,223 — 190,223 
Redeemable
noncontrolling interest
accretion to redemption
value — — — — — — — (5,493) — (5,493)
Net unrealized gain on
derivative instruments
designated and qualifying
as cash flow hedges — — — — — — — — 4,986 4,986 
Foreign currency
translation, net of hedges — — — — — — — — 2,484 2,484 
Balance at December 31,
2019 44,080 $ 615 25 $ 28 (17,875) $ (1,275,057) $ 424,058 $ 745,326 $ (75,494) $ (180,524)

See accompanying notes.
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CIMPRESS PLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) (CONTINUED)

(unaudited in thousands)

Ordinary Shares
Deferred Ordinary

Shares Treasury Shares
Number of

Shares
Issued

Amount
Number of

Shares
Issued

Amount
Number

of
Shares

Amount
Additional

Paid-in
Capital

Retained
Earnings

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive

Loss

Total
Shareholders’
Equity (Deficit)

Balance at December 31,
2019 44,080 $ 615 25 $ 28 (17,875) $ (1,275,057) $ 424,058 $ 745,326 $ (75,494) $ (180,524)
Restricted share units
vested, net of shares
withheld for taxes — — — — 1 44 (88) — — (44)
Issuance of ordinary
shares due to share
option exercises, net of
shares withheld for taxes — — — — 431 (12,526) (28,386) — — (40,912)
Share-based
compensation expense — — — — — — 8,825 — — 8,825 
Purchase of ordinary
shares — — — — (759) (89,483) — — — (89,483)
Net loss attributable to
Cimpress plc — — — — — — — (84,884) — (84,884)
Net unrealized loss on
derivative instruments
designated and qualifying
as cash flow hedges — — — — — — — — (18,670) (18,670)
Foreign currency
translation, net of hedges — — — — — — — — 1,359 1,359 
Balance at March 31,
2020 44,080 $ 615 25 $ 28 (18,202) $ (1,377,022) $ 404,409 $ 660,442 $ (92,805) $ (404,333)

See accompanying notes.
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CIMPRESS PLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) (CONTINUED)

(unaudited in thousands)

Ordinary Shares
Deferred Ordinary

Shares Treasury Shares
Number of

Shares
Issued

Amount
Number of

Shares
Issued

Amount
Number

of
Shares

Amount
Additional

Paid-in
Capital

Retained
Earnings

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive

Loss

Total
Shareholders’
Equity (Deficit)

Balance at June 30, 2020 44,080 $ 615 25 $ 28 (18,195) $ (1,376,496) $ 438,616 $ 618,437 $ (88,676) $ (407,476)
Restricted share units
vested, net of shares
withheld for taxes — — — — 118 7,773 (13,366) — — (5,593)
Share-based
compensation expense — — — — — — 8,577 — — 8,577 
Net loss attributable to
Cimpress plc — — — — — — — (10,755) — (10,755)
Net unrealized gain on
derivative instruments
designated and qualifying
as cash flow hedges — — — — — — — — 1,765 1,765 
Foreign currency
translation, net of hedges — — — — — — — — (609) (609)
Unrealized loss on
pension benefit
obligation, net of tax — — — — — — — — (336) (336)
Balance at September
30, 2020 44,080 $ 615 25 $ 28 (18,077) $ (1,368,723) $ 433,827 $ 607,682 $ (87,856) $ (414,427)
Share-based
compensation expense — — — — — — 5,036 — — 5,036 
Net income attributable
to Cimpress plc — — — — — — — 32,287 — 32,287 
Redeemable
noncontrolling interest
accretion to redemption
value — — — — — — — (1,086) — (1,086)
Net unrealized gain on
derivative instruments
designated and qualifying
as cash flow hedges — — — — — — — — 576 576 
Foreign currency
translation, net of hedges — — — — — — — — 12,683 12,683 
Balance at December 31,
2020 44,080 $ 615 25 $ 28 (18,077) $ (1,368,723) $ 438,863 $ 638,883 $ (74,597) $ (364,931)

See accompanying notes.
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CIMPRESS PLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) (CONTINUED)

(unaudited in thousands)

Ordinary Shares
Deferred Ordinary

Shares Treasury Shares
Number of

Shares
Issued

Amount
Number of

Shares
Issued

Amount
Number

of
Shares

Amount
Additional

Paid-in
Capital

Retained
Earnings

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive

Loss

Total
Shareholders’
Equity (Deficit)

Balance at December 31,
2020 44,080 $ 615 25 $ 28 (18,077) $ (1,368,723) $ 438,863 $ 638,883 $ (74,597) $ (364,931)
Restricted share units
vested, net of shares
withheld for taxes — — — — — 2 (3) — — (1)
Share-based
compensation expense — — — — — — 9,572 — — 9,572 
Net loss attributable to
Cimpress plc — — — — — — — (39,050) — (39,050)
Net unrealized loss on
derivative instruments
designated and qualifying
as cash flow hedges — — — — — — — — (13,102) (13,102)
Foreign currency
translation, net of hedges — — — — — — — — 2,724 2,724 
Balance at March 31,
2021 44,080 $ 615 25 $ 28 (18,077) $ (1,368,721) $ 448,432 $ 599,833 $ (84,975) $ (404,788)

See accompanying notes.
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CIMPRESS PLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(unaudited in thousands)

Nine Months Ended March 31,

 2021 2020
Operating activities   
Net (loss) income $ (15,018) $ 127,000 
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to net cash provided by operating activities:   

Depreciation and amortization 128,696 126,731 
Impairment of goodwill — 100,842 
Share-based compensation expense 23,071 22,739 
Impairment of long-lived assets 19,882 — 
Deferred taxes 2,513 (109,990)
Unrealized loss (gain) on derivatives not designated as hedging instruments included in net (loss) income 18,280 (4,604)
Effect of exchange rate changes on monetary assets and liabilities denominated in non-functional currency 2,537 (1,027)
Other non-cash items 2,149 4,936 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable (9,651) 13,750 
Inventory 4,982 (7,876)
Prepaid expenses and other assets (5,242) 11,631 
Accounts payable 10,590 5,590 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 36,159 (5,661)

Net cash provided by operating activities 218,948 284,061 
Investing activities   
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (22,736) (38,638)
Business acquisitions, net of cash acquired (36,395) (4,272)
Capitalization of software and website development costs (45,321) (35,824)
Proceeds from the sale of assets 3,574 1,633 
Proceeds from settlement of derivatives designated as hedging instruments — 27,732 
Other investing activities (269) 1,556 
Net cash used in investing activities (101,147) (47,813)
Financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings of debt 534,051 1,043,600 
Proceeds from issuance of senior notes — 210,500 
Payments of debt (639,519) (603,049)
Payments of debt issuance costs (2,461) (4,862)
Payments of purchase consideration included in acquisition-date fair value (1,205) (358)
Payments of withholding taxes in connection with equity awards (5,593) (41,417)
Payments of finance lease obligations (5,486) (8,354)
Purchase of noncontrolling interests (5,063) — 
Purchase of ordinary shares — (627,056)
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares — 6 
Distribution to noncontrolling interest (4,599) (3,955)
Other financing activities (310) (1,811)
Net cash used in financing activities (130,185) (36,756)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 3,727 (5,180)
Change in cash held for sale — (1,326)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (8,657) 192,986 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 45,021 35,279 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 36,364 $ 228,265 

See accompanying notes.
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CIMPRESS PLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(unaudited in thousands)
Nine Months Ended March 31,
2021 2020

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information
Cash paid during the period for:

Interest $ 66,314 $ 42,763 
Income taxes 13,056 9,720 

Non-cash investing and financing activities
Property and equipment acquired under finance leases 5,630 1,591 
Amounts accrued related to business acquisitions 44,680 2,369 

See accompanying notes.
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CIMPRESS PLC
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(unaudited in thousands, except share and per share data)

1. Description of the Business

Cimpress is a strategically focused group of more than a dozen businesses that specialize in mass customization, via which we
deliver large volumes of individually small-sized customized orders for a broad spectrum of print, signage, photo merchandise, invitations and
announcements, writing instruments, packaging, apparel and other categories. We invest in and build customer-focused, entrepreneurial
mass customization businesses for the long term, which we manage in a decentralized, autonomous manner. Mass customization is a core
element of the business model of each Cimpress business. We drive competitive advantage across Cimpress through a select few shared
strategic capabilities that have the greatest potential to create Cimpress-wide value. We limit all other central activities to only those which
absolutely must be performed centrally.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Cimpress plc, its wholly owned subsidiaries, entities in which we
maintain a controlling financial interest, and those entities in which we have a variable interest and are the primary beneficiary. Intercompany
balances and transactions have been eliminated. Investments in entities in which we cannot exercise significant influence, and the related
equity securities do not have a readily determinable fair value, are accounted for using the cost method and are included in other assets on
the consolidated balance sheets.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and
accompanying notes. We believe our most significant estimates are associated with the ongoing evaluation of the recoverability of our long-
lived assets and goodwill, estimated useful lives of assets, share-based compensation, accounting for business combinations, and income
taxes and related valuation allowances, among others. By their nature, estimates are subject to an inherent degree of uncertainty. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Given the current and expected impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our business, we evaluated our liquidity position as of the date
of the issuance of these consolidated financial statements. Based on this evaluation, management believes, despite the ongoing impact of
COVID-19 on our business, that our financial position, net cash provided by operations combined with our cash and cash equivalents and
borrowing availability under our revolving credit facility, will be sufficient to fund our current obligations, capital spending, debt service
requirements and working capital requirements over at least the next twelve months.

Significant Accounting Policies

Our significant accounting policies are described in Note 2 in our consolidated financial statements included in the Form 10-K for our
year ended June 30, 2020. There have been no material changes to our significant accounting policies during the three and nine months
ended March 31, 2021.
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Other Income (Expense), Net

The following table summarizes the components of other income (expense), net:

 Three Months Ended March 31, Nine Months Ended March 31,
2021 2020 2021 2020

Gains (losses) on derivatives not designated as hedging
instruments (1) $ 18,724 $ 18,039 $ (13,791) $ 25,730 
Currency-related (losses) gains, net (2) (8,841) 3,950 (2,957) 3,183 
Other (losses) gains (98) 548 581 258 

Total other income (expense), net $ 9,785 $ 22,537 $ (16,167) $ 29,171 

_____________________

(1) Primarily relates to both realized and unrealized gains and losses on derivative currency forward and option contracts and interest rate swaps not designated as hedging
instruments, including gains of $6,394 and $6,759 for the three and nine months ended March 31, 2021, respectively, related to certain interest rate swap contracts that have
been de-designated from hedge accounting due to their ineffectiveness, which had an immaterial impact in the comparative periods..

(2) We have significant non-functional currency intercompany financing relationships that we may change at times and are subject to currency exchange rate volatility. The
currency-related (losses) gains, net are primarily driven by this intercompany activity for the periods presented. In addition, we have certain cross-currency swaps
designated as cash flow hedges which hedge the remeasurement of certain intercompany loans; both are presented in the same component above. The unrealized gains
related to cross-currency swaps for the three months ended March 31, 2021 were $6,288, and the unrealized losses were $5,233 for the nine months ended March 31,
2021, as compared to unrealized gains of $1,807 and $3,627 for the three and nine months ended March 31, 2020, respectively.

Net (Loss) Income Per Share Attributable to Cimpress plc

Basic net (loss) income per share attributable to Cimpress plc is computed by dividing net (loss) income attributable to Cimpress plc
by the weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the respective period. Diluted net (loss) income per share attributable to
Cimpress plc gives effect to all potentially dilutive securities, including share options, restricted share units (“RSUs”), warrants, and
performance share units ("PSUs"), if the effect of the securities is dilutive using the treasury stock method. Awards with performance or
market conditions are included using the treasury stock method only if the conditions would have been met as of the end of the reporting
period and their effect is dilutive.

The following table sets forth the reconciliation of the weighted-average number of ordinary shares:

 Three Months Ended March 31, Nine Months Ended March 31,
 2021 2020 2021 2020

Weighted average shares outstanding, basic 26,003,675 26,024,229 25,984,300 27,608,387 
Weighted average shares issuable upon exercise/vesting of
outstanding share options/RSUs/warrants — — — 709,053 
Shares used in computing diluted net (loss) income per
share attributable to Cimpress plc 26,003,675 26,024,229 25,984,300 28,317,440 
Weighted average anti-dilutive shares excluded from diluted
net (loss) income per share attributable to Cimpress plc (1)
(2) 621,172 464,638 485,067 — 

_____________________

(1) On May 1, 2020, we entered into a financing arrangement with Apollo Global Management, Inc., which included 7-year warrants with a strike price of $60 that have a
potentially dilutive impact on our weighted average shares outstanding. For the three and nine months ended March 31, 2021, the weighted average anti-dilutive effect of the
warrants was 412,473 and 348,973 shares, respectively. Refer to Note 9 for additional details about the arrangement.

(2) In the periods in which a net loss is recognized, the impact of share options, RSUs, RSAs and warrants is not included as they are anti-dilutive.
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Lease Impairment and Abandonment Charges

During the three months ended March 31, 2021, we recorded lease impairment and abandonment charges related to two leased
facilities that we will no longer occupy. The charges are described below. These changes will result in a substantial reduction in costs in
future periods.

Waltham Lease Amendment

On January 6, 2021, we entered into an arrangement that modifies the lease agreement for our Waltham, Massachusetts office
location, which results in us retaining a small portion of the previously leased office space in exchange for a reduction to our monthly rent
payments for the space we will no longer lease. As part of the agreement, we are required to pay a total termination penalty of $8,761 in two
equal installments. The first installment was paid in January 2021 and the remaining amount was paid in April 2021. This termination penalty
is inclusive of the rent that would have otherwise been paid through June 2021 when the office was not expected to be occupied.

The amendment is accounted for as a lease modification under ASC 842 - Leases. Due to the partial termination of the lease, we
recorded a decrease to the operating lease liabilities of $47,801 to reflect the reduced lease payments, including the termination penalties.
We also recorded a decrease to the operating lease asset of $46,645 based on the proportionate decrease in the right-of-use asset, which
resulted in a gain of $1,156, recognized in general and administrative expense on the consolidated statement of operations for the three
months ended March 31, 2021.

Due to our plans to no longer occupy the remaining leased office space and instead market the space to be subleased, we identified
a triggering event with regards to the modified right-of-use asset. Therefore, we performed a discounted cash flow analysis that considered
market-based rent assumptions, which resulted in an impairment of the right-of-use asset of $7,489 which was recognized in general and
administrative expense on the consolidated statement of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2021. Additionally, we recorded
an impairment to general and administrative expense for abandoned assets related to the vacated space totaling $4,483, which included
$2,787 in subtenant allowances, $1,312 in leasehold improvements, and $384 in furniture and fixtures.

Other Lease Impairment

During the quarter ended March 31, 2021, we identified a triggering event due to a change in our intended use of the right-of-use
asset of another one of our leased facilities, as we have committed to plans to exit the space and instead market it to be subleased or sold.
We assessed the lease for impairment and performed a discounted cash flow analysis using current market-based rent assumptions, which
resulted in an impairment of $7,420 that was recognized in general and administrative expense on the consolidated statement of operations
for the three months ended March 31, 2021. This impairment resulted in a decrease to the right of use asset totaling $5,280 and to the
related leasehold improvements included within property, plant and equipment totaling $2,140. Additionally, we recorded an impairment for
abandoned equipment in the amount of $1,680 that was recognized in general and administrative expense for the three months ended March
31, 2021.

Income Taxes

During the three months ended December 31, 2020, the tax on Global Intangible Low-Taxed Income (“GILTI”) provision of the Tax
Cuts and Jobs Act became applicable to our operations. The FASB has provided that companies subject to GILTI have the option to account
for the GILTI tax as a period cost if and when incurred, or to recognize deferred taxes for temporary differences, including outside basis
differences, expected to reverse as GILTI. We elected to account for GILTI as a period cost, as incurred. We do not expect GILTI to have a
material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

Recently Issued or Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

New Accounting Standards Adopted

In December 2019, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2019-12 "Income Taxes (Topic 740): Simplifying the
Accounting for Income Taxes" (ASU 2019-12), which modifies certain aspects of income tax accounting. We early adopted the standard on
July 1, 2020. For the nine months ended March 31, 2021, adopting ASU 2019-12 resulted in a $2,545 increased tax expense in our
consolidated financial statements, related to the intraperiod allocation rules. Under the intraperiod allocation rules, an entity generally
allocates total income tax expense or benefit by first determining the amount attributable to continuing operations and then allocating the
remaining tax expense or benefit to items other than continuing operations. An exception existed that required an entity with a loss from
continuing operations to consider all components when determining the benefit from

12



continuing operations. ASU 2019-12 removes this exception.

In June 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-13 "Financial Instruments—Credit Losses (Topic 326)" (ASU
2016-13), which introduces a new accounting model for recognizing credit losses on certain financial instruments based on an estimate of
current expected credit losses. We adopted the standard on its effective date of July 1, 2020. The standard did not have a material impact on
our consolidated financial statements.

In March 2020, the FASB issued ASU 2020-04 "Reference Rate Reform ("ASC 848"): Facilitation of the Effects of Reference Rate
Reform on Financial Reporting", which contains optional expedients and exceptions for applying GAAP to contracts, hedging relationships,
and other transactions that reference LIBOR or another reference rate expected to be discontinued due to reference rate reform. We adopted
the standard on October 1, 2020. We elected to amend our hedge documentation, without dedesignating and redesignating, for all
outstanding cash flow hedges by applying two practical expedients. We elected the expedient in ASC 848-50-25-2 to assert probability of the
hedged interest payments regardless of any expected modification in terms related to reference rate reform. In addition, we elected to
continue the method of assessing effectiveness as documented in the original hedge documentation and elected to apply the expedient in
ASC 848-50-35-17, so that the reference rate on the hypothetical derivative matches the reference rate on the hedging instrument. The
standard did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

3. Fair Value Measurements

We use a three-level valuation hierarchy for measuring fair value and include detailed financial statement disclosures about fair value
measurements. The valuation hierarchy is based upon the transparency of inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability as of the
measurement date. The three levels are defined as follows:

• Level 1: Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.

• Level 2: Inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, quoted prices
for identical or similar assets in markets that are not active and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument.

• Level 3: Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement.

A financial instrument’s categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the
fair value measurement. The following tables summarize our assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis and
are categorized using the fair value hierarchy:
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 March 31, 2021

Total

Quoted Prices in
Active

Markets for
Identical Assets

(Level 1)

Significant Other
Observable Inputs

(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)

Assets
Cross-currency swap contracts $ 145 $ — $ 145 $ — 
Currency forward contracts 1,184 — 1,184 — 
Currency option contracts 80 — 80 — 

Total assets recorded at fair value $ 1,409 $ — $ 1,409 $ — 

Liabilities
Interest rate swap contracts $ (23,981) $ — $ (23,981) $ — 
Cross-currency swap contracts (7,978) — (7,978) — 
Currency forward contracts (21,482) — (21,482) — 
Currency option contracts (2,798) — (2,798) — 

Total liabilities recorded at fair value $ (56,239) $ — $ (56,239) $ — 

 June 30, 2020

Total

Quoted Prices in
Active

Markets for
Identical Assets

(Level 1)

Significant Other
Observable Inputs

(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)

Assets
Interest rate swap contracts $ 4,462 $ — $ 4,462 $ — 
Currency forward contracts 7,949 — 7,949 — 
Currency option contracts 1,429 — 1,429 — 

Total assets recorded at fair value $ 13,840 $ — $ 13,840 $ — 

Liabilities
Interest rate swap contracts $ (39,520) $ — $ (39,520) $ — 
Cross-currency swap contracts (4,746) — (4,746) — 
Currency forward contracts (8,519) — (8,519) — 
Currency option contracts (38) — (38) — 

Total liabilities recorded at fair value $ (52,823) $ — $ (52,823) $ — 

During the quarter ended March 31, 2021 and year ended June 30, 2020, there were no significant transfers in or out of Level 1,
Level 2 and Level 3 classifications.

The valuations of the derivatives intended to mitigate our interest rate and currency risk are determined using widely accepted
valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow analysis on the expected cash flows of each instrument. This analysis utilizes
observable market-based inputs, including interest rate curves, interest rate volatility, or spot and forward exchange rates, and reflects the
contractual terms of these instruments, including the period to maturity. We incorporate credit valuation adjustments to appropriately reflect
both our own nonperformance risk and the respective counterparties' nonperformance risk in the fair value measurements. In adjusting the
fair value of our derivative contracts for the effect of nonperformance risk, we have considered the impact of netting and any applicable credit
enhancements.

Although we have determined that the majority of the inputs used to value our derivatives fall within Level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy, the credit valuation adjustments associated with our derivatives utilize Level 3 inputs, such as estimates of current credit spreads,
to appropriately reflect both our own nonperformance risk and the respective counterparties' nonperformance risk in the fair value
measurement. However, as of March 31, 2021, we have assessed the significance of the impact of the credit valuation adjustments on the
overall valuation of our derivative positions and have determined that the credit valuation adjustments are not significant to the overall
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valuation of our derivatives. As a result, we have determined that our derivative valuations in their entirety are classified in Level 2 in the fair
value hierarchy.

As of March 31, 2021 and June 30, 2020, the carrying amounts of our cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts
payable and other current liabilities approximated their estimated fair values. As of March 31, 2021 and June 30, 2020, the carrying value of
our debt, excluding debt issuance costs and debt premiums and discounts, was $1,384,129 and $1,482,177, respectively, and the fair value
was $1,426,307 and $1,450,719, respectively. Our debt at March 31, 2021 includes variable-rate debt instruments indexed to LIBOR that
resets periodically, as well as fixed-rate debt instruments. The estimated fair value of our debt was determined using available market
information based on recent trades or activity of debt instruments with substantially similar risks, terms and maturities, which fall within Level
2 under the fair value hierarchy. The estimated fair value of assets and liabilities disclosed above may not be representative of actual values
that could have been or will be realized in the future.

4. Derivative Financial Instruments

We use derivative financial instruments, such as interest rate swap contracts, cross-currency swap contracts, and currency forward
and option contracts, to manage interest rate and foreign currency exposures. Derivatives are recorded in the consolidated balance sheets at
fair value. If the derivative is designated as a cash flow hedge or net investment hedge, then the change in the fair value of the derivative is
recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss and subsequently reclassified into earnings in the period the hedged forecasted
transaction affects earnings. Additionally, any ineffectiveness associated with an effective and designated hedge is recognized within
accumulated other comprehensive loss.

The change in the fair value of derivatives not designated as hedges is recognized directly in earnings as a component of other
income (expense), net.

Hedges of Interest Rate Risk

We enter into interest rate swap contracts to manage variability in the amount of our known or expected cash payments related to a
portion of our debt. Our objective in using interest rate swaps is to add stability to interest expense and to manage our exposure to interest
rate movements. We designate our interest rate swaps as cash flow hedges. Interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges involve the
receipt of variable amounts from a counterparty in exchange for us making fixed-rate payments over the life of the contract agreements
without exchange of the underlying notional amount. Realized gains or losses from interest rate swaps are recorded in earnings as a
component of interest expense, net.

Amounts reported in accumulated other comprehensive loss related to interest rate swap contracts will be reclassified to interest
expense, net as interest payments are accrued or made on our variable-rate debt. As of March 31, 2021, we estimate that $10,439 will be
reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss to interest expense during the twelve months ending March 31, 2022. As of
March 31, 2021, we had ten outstanding interest rate swap contracts indexed to USD LIBOR all of which are no longer highly effective and
have therefore been de-designated. These hedges have varying start dates and maturity dates through December 2026.

Interest rate swap contracts outstanding: Notional Amounts
Contracts accruing interest as of March 31, 2021 $ 500,000 
Contracts with a future start date 50,000 

Total $ 550,000 

Hedges of Currency Risk

Cross-Currency Swap Contracts

From time to time, we execute cross-currency swap contracts designated as cash flow hedges or net investment hedges. Cross-
currency swaps involve an initial receipt of the notional amount in the hedge currency in exchange for our reporting currency based on a
contracted exchange rate. Subsequently, we receive fixed rate payments in our reporting currency in exchange for fixed rate payments in the
hedged currency over the life of the
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contract. At maturity, the final exchange involves the receipt of our reporting currency in exchange for the notional amount in the hedged
currency.

Cross-currency swap contracts designated as cash flow hedges are executed to mitigate our currency exposure to the interest
receipts as well as the principal remeasurement and repayment associated with certain intercompany loans denominated in a currency other
than our reporting currency, the U.S. dollar. As of March 31, 2021, we had two outstanding cross-currency swap contracts designated as
cash flow hedges with a total notional amount of $120,874, both maturing during June 2024. We entered into the two cross-currency swap
contracts to hedge the risk of changes in one Euro-denominated intercompany loan entered into with one of our consolidated subsidiaries
that has the Euro as its functional currency.

Amounts reported in accumulated other comprehensive loss will be reclassified to other income (expense), net as interest payments
are accrued or paid and upon remeasuring the intercompany loan. As of March 31, 2021, we estimate that $2,623 of income will be
reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss to interest expense, net during the twelve months ending March 31, 2022.

Other Currency Contracts

We execute currency forward and option contracts in order to mitigate our exposure to fluctuations in various currencies against our
reporting currency, the U.S. dollar.

As of March 31, 2021, we had five currency forward contracts designated as net investment hedges with a total notional amount of
$149,604, maturing during various dates through April 2023. We entered into these contracts to hedge the risk of changes in the U.S. dollar
equivalent value of a portion of our net investment in two consolidated subsidiaries that have the Euro as their functional currency. Amounts
reported in accumulated other comprehensive loss are recognized as a component of our cumulative translation adjustment.

We have elected to not apply hedge accounting for all other currency forward and option contracts. During the three and nine months
ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, we have experienced volatility within other income (expense), net in our consolidated statements of
operations from unrealized gains and losses on the mark-to-market of outstanding currency forward and option contracts. We expect this
volatility to continue in future periods for contracts for which we do not apply hedge accounting. Additionally, since our hedging objectives
may be targeted at non-GAAP financial metrics that exclude non-cash items such as depreciation and amortization, we may experience
increased, not decreased, volatility in our GAAP results as a result of our currency hedging program.

As of March 31, 2021, we had the following outstanding currency derivative contracts that were not designated for hedge accounting
and were used to hedge fluctuations in the U.S. dollar value of forecasted transactions or balances denominated in Australian Dollar, British
Pound, Canadian Dollar, Danish Krone, Euro, Indian Rupee, Japanese Yen, Mexican Peso, New Zealand Dollar, Norwegian Krone,
Philippine Peso, Swiss Franc and Swedish Krona:

Notional Amount Effective Date Maturity Date Number of Instruments Index

$477,464 June 2019 through March 2021 Various dates through October
2024 608 Various
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Financial Instrument Presentation    

The table below presents the fair value of our derivative financial instruments as well as their classification on the balance sheet as of
March 31, 2021 and June 30, 2020. Our derivative asset and liability balances will fluctuate with interest rate and currency exchange rate
volatility.

March 31, 2021
Asset Derivatives Liability Derivatives

Balance Sheet
line item

Gross amounts
of recognized

assets

Gross amount offset
in Consolidated
Balance Sheet Net amount

Balance Sheet
line item

Gross amounts
of recognized

liabilities

Gross amount offset
in Consolidated
Balance Sheet Net amount

Derivatives designated as
hedging instruments
Derivatives in cash flow
hedging relationships

Cross-currency swaps Other assets $ 145 $ — $ 145 
Other
liabilities $ (7,978) $ — $ (7,978)

Derivatives in net investment
hedging relationships

Currency forward contracts Other assets — — — 

Other current
liabilities /
other
liabilities (12,386) — (12,386)

Total derivatives designated
as hedging instruments $ 145 $ — $ 145 $ (20,364) $ — $ (20,364)

Derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments

Interest rate swaps Other assets $ — $ — $ — 
Other
liabilities $ (24,632) $ 651 $ (23,981)

Currency forward contracts

Other current
assets / other
assets 1,344 (160) 1,184 

Other current
liabilities /
other
liabilities (13,198) 4,102 (9,096)

Currency option contracts

Other current
assets / other
assets 385 (305) 80 

Other current
liabilities /
other
liabilities (2,919) 121 (2,798)

Total derivatives not
designated as hedging
instruments $ 1,729 $ (465) $ 1,264 $ (40,749) $ 4,874 $ (35,875)
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June 30, 2020
Asset Derivatives Liability Derivatives

Balance Sheet
line item

Gross amounts
of recognized

assets

Gross amount offset
in Consolidated
Balance Sheet Net amount

Balance Sheet
line item

Gross amounts
of recognized

liabilities

Gross amount offset
in Consolidated
Balance Sheet Net amount

Derivatives designated as
hedging instruments
Derivatives in cash flow
hedging relationships

Interest rate swaps

Other current
assets / other
assets $ — $ — $ — 

Other
liabilities $ (31,161) $ — $ (31,161)

Cross-currency swaps Other assets 4,462 — 4,462 
Other
liabilities (4,746) — (4,746)

Derivatives in net investment
hedging relationships

Currency forward contracts Other assets — — — 

Other current
liabilities /
other
liabilities (6,829) — (6,829)

Total derivatives designated
as hedging instruments $ 4,462 $ — $ 4,462 $ (42,736) $ — $ (42,736)

Derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments

Interest rate swaps Other assets $ — $ — $ — 
Other
liabilities $ (8,359) $ — $ (8,359)

Currency forward contracts

Other current
assets / other
assets 9,702 (1,753) 7,949 

Other current
liabilities /
other
liabilities (2,136) 446 (1,690)

Currency option contracts

Other current
assets / other
assets 1,699 (270) 1,429 

Other current
liabilities /
other
liabilities (38) — (38)

Total derivatives not
designated as hedging
instruments $ 11,401 $ (2,023) $ 9,378 $ (10,533) $ 446 $ (10,087)

The following table presents the effect of our derivative financial instruments designated as hedging instruments and their
classification within comprehensive (loss) income for the three and nine months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020:

Amount of Net Gain (Loss) on Derivatives Recognized in Comprehensive Income
Three Months Ended March 31, Nine Months Ended March 31,

2021 2020 2021 2020
Derivatives in cash flow hedging relationships
Interest rate swaps $ 6,244 $ (24,645) $ 7,386 $ (24,841)
Cross-currency swaps (435) 3,444 6,061 2,583 
Derivatives in net investment hedging relationships
Currency forward contracts 8,064 14,284 (16,768) 22,849 

Total $ 13,873 $ (6,917) $ (3,321) $ 591 
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The following table presents reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive loss for the three and nine months ended
March 31, 2021 and 2020:

Amount of Net Gain (Loss) Reclassified from Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
into Income

Affected line item in the 
Statement of Operations

Three Months Ended March 31, Nine Months Ended March 31,
2021 2020 2021 2020

Derivatives in cash flow hedging
relationships
Interest rate swaps $ (4,396) $ 691 $ 227 $ 1,146 Interest expense, net
Cross-currency swaps 661 2,665 (9,631) 6,203 Other income (expense), net
Total before income tax (3,735) 3,356 (9,404) 7,349 (Loss) income before income taxes
Income tax 650 (825) 1,022 (1,812) Income tax expense (benefit)

Total $ (3,085) $ 2,531 $ (8,382) $ 5,537 

The following table presents the adjustment to fair value recorded within the consolidated statements of operations for the three and
nine months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 for derivative instruments for which we did not elect hedge accounting and de-designated
derivative financial instruments that no longer qualify as hedging instruments.

Amount of Gain (Loss) Recognized in Net (Loss) Income
Affected line item in the 
Statement of Operations

Three Months Ended March 31, Nine Months Ended March 31,
2021 2020 2021 2020

Currency contracts $ 12,329 $ 18,039 $ (20,635) $ 25,730 Other income (expense), net
Interest rate swaps 6,395 — 6,844 — Other income (expense), net

Total $ 18,724 $ 18,039 $ (13,791) $ 25,730 

5. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The following table presents a roll forward of amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) by component,
net of tax of $643 for the nine months ended March 31, 2021:

Gains (losses) on
cash flow hedges (1)

Losses on pension
benefit obligation

Translation
adjustments, net of

hedges (2) Total

Balance as of June 30, 2020 $ (30,078) $ (1,399) $ (57,199) $ (88,676)
Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications 13,447 (336) (1,028) 12,083 
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss to net
(loss) income (8,382) — — (8,382)

Net current period other comprehensive income (loss) 5,065 (336) (1,028) 3,701 
Balance as of March 31, 2021 $ (25,013) $ (1,735) $ (58,227) $ (84,975)

________________________

(1) Gains (losses) on cash flow hedges include our interest rate swap and cross-currency swap contracts designated in cash flow hedging relationships.
(2) As of March 31, 2021 and June 30, 2020, the translation adjustment is inclusive of the effects of our net investment hedges, of which, unrealized gains of $3,741 and

$20,509, respectively, net of tax, have been included in accumulated other comprehensive loss.
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6. Goodwill

The carrying amount of goodwill by reportable segment as of March 31, 2021 and June 30, 2020 was as follows:

Vistaprint PrintBrothers The Print Group All Other
Businesses Total

Balance as of June 30, 2020 $ 150,846 $ 129,764 $ 155,197 $ 186,097 $ 621,904 
Acquisitions (1) 71,401 — — — 71,401 
Adjustments (609) — — — (609)
Effect of currency translation adjustments (2) 1,862 5,495 6,573 — 13,930 

Balance as of March 31, 2021 $ 223,500 $ 135,259 $ 161,770 $ 186,097 $ 706,626 

_________________
(1) On October 1, 2020, we acquired 99designs which is included in our Vistaprint reportable segment. Refer to Note 7 for additional details.
(2) Related to goodwill held by subsidiaries whose functional currency is not the U.S. dollar.

Goodwill Recoverability Assessment

During the third quarter of fiscal 2021, we evaluated whether any triggering events exist across each of our reporting units to
determine whether an impairment analysis is necessary. We identified triggering events for our Druck, Easyflyer and Exaprint reporting units,
due in part to the reemergence of new pandemic-related lockdowns and restrictions in certain European countries which has resulted in a
more prolonged reduction to cash flows when compared to the cash flows forecasted in our most recent impairment analysis that was
performed during the third quarter of fiscal 2020.

As required, prior to performing the quantitative goodwill impairment test, we first evaluated the recoverability of long-lived assets as
the change in expected long-term cash flows is indicative of a potential impairment. We performed the recoverability test using undiscounted
cash flows for the asset groups of all three reporting units and concluded that no impairment of long-lived assets exists.

After performing the long-lived assets recoverability test, we performed a quantitative assessment of goodwill of the three reporting
units and compared the carrying value to the estimated fair value. For each reporting unit, the estimated fair value of the reporting unit
exceeded the related carrying value and we concluded that no impairment exists. We used the income approach, specifically the discounted
cash flow method, to derive the fair value. This approach calculates fair value by estimating the after-tax cash flows attributable to a reporting
unit and then discounting the after-tax cash flows to a present value using a risk-adjusted discount rate. We selected this method as being
the most meaningful in preparing our goodwill assessment as we believe the income approach most appropriately measures our income
producing assets. We considered using the market approach but concluded it was not appropriate in valuing these particular reporting units
given the lack of relevant market comparisons available.

The cash flow projections in the fair value analysis are considered Level 3 inputs, and consist of management's estimates of revenue
growth rates and operating margins, taking into consideration historical results, as well as industry and market conditions. Our goodwill
analysis requires significant judgment, including the identification of reporting units and the amount and timing of expected future cash flows.
While we believe our assumptions are reasonable, actual results could differ from our projections.

Although some of our businesses are experiencing more prolonged impacts that we expect will have a negative impact on near-term
cash flows, we believe that these negative impacts are temporary. We did not identify triggering events for the reporting units that are
performing better than previously estimated or maintained significant headroom in our most recent analysis.

Fiscal 2020

During the third quarter of fiscal 2020, nearly all of our businesses had experienced significant declines in revenue during the month
of March, due to the disruptions associated with the COVID-19 pandemic. As a result, we concluded that a triggering event existed for all ten
reporting units with goodwill, which required us to perform an impairment test in the current quarter. We estimated the near-term financial
impacts of this economic disruption and
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utilized different scenarios that evaluate outcomes that would indicate more or less severe demand declines, as well as different time
horizons for the post-pandemic recovery period.

For seven of our reporting units, a significant level of headroom existed between the estimated fair value and carrying value of the
reporting units at our May 31, 2019 test date, and significant headroom remained after considering the deterioration in cash flow due to
COVID-19 or the reporting unit was recently acquired, resulting in no indication of impairment. For three of our reporting units, we identified
triggering events that extend beyond the near-term impacts of the pandemic, which include reductions to the long-term profitability outlooks
for our Exaprint, National Pen and VIDA reporting units. As a result of the considerations noted, we concluded it was more likely than not that
the fair value of each of these three reporting units are below each of their respective carrying amount.

Our goodwill impairment test resulted in impairment charges to our Exaprint reporting unit, included within The Print Group reportable
segment, the National Pen reporting unit, and our VIDA reporting unit, included within our All Other Business reportable segment. Based on
the goodwill impairment test performed, we recognized the following impairment charges during the three months ended March 31, 2020:

• A partial impairment of the goodwill of our Exaprint reporting unit of $40,391

• A full impairment of the goodwill of our National Pen reporting unit of $34,434

• A full impairment of the goodwill of our VIDA reporting unit of $26,017

7. Business Combinations

On October 1, 2020, we acquired 99designs, Inc. and its subsidiaries ("99designs"), a global creative platform for graphic design. We
acquired all outstanding shares of the company for a purchase price of $90,000, subject to a post-closing adjustment based on acquired
cash, debt, and working capital as of the closing date. We paid $45,000 in cash at closing and will pay the remaining purchase consideration,
including the post-closing adjustment, on February 15, 2022. The acquisition is managed within our Vistaprint business and provides a global
platform that connects designers and clients, making it easier for small businesses to access both professional design services and
marketing products in one place.

The table below details the consideration transferred to acquire 99designs:

Cash consideration (paid at closing) $ 45,000 
Fair value of deferred payment 43,381 
Final post closing adjustment 310 

Total purchase price $ 88,691 

    
We recognized the assets and liabilities on the basis of their fair values at the date of the acquisition with any excess of the purchase

price paid over the fair value of the net assets recorded as goodwill, which is primarily attributable to the synergies that we expect to achieve
through the acquisition. The goodwill balance has been attributed to the Vistaprint reportable segment and the portion of such goodwill
balance that is deductible for tax purposes is $19,667. Additionally, we identified and valued 99designs intangible assets which include their
trade name, designer network, and developed technology.
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The fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed was:

Amount
Weighted Average Useful Life in

Years
Tangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 8,603 n/a
Accounts receivable, net 494 n/a
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,167 n/a
Property, plant and equipment, net 73 n/a
Other assets 142 n/a
Accounts payable (220) n/a
Accrued expenses (6,679) n/a
Deferred revenue (5,806) n/a
Other liabilities (1) (625) n/a
Identifiable intangible assets:
    Trade name 1,550 2 years
    Developed technology 13,400 3 years
    Designer network 5,800 7 years
Goodwill (1) 70,792 n/a

Total purchase price $ 88,691 n/a

_________________
(1) During the third quarter of fiscal 2021 we recorded a measurement period adjustment totaling $609 to other liabilities which was offset against goodwill.

99designs has been included in our consolidated financial statements starting on its acquisition date. The revenue and earnings of
99designs included in our consolidated financial statements for the three and nine months ended March 31, 2021 are not material, and
therefore no proforma financial information is presented. We used our credit facility to finance the acquisition. In connection with the
acquisition, we incurred $1,183 in general and administrative expenses during the nine months ended March 31, 2021, primarily related to
legal, financial, and other professional services.

8. Other Balance Sheet Components

Accrued expenses included the following:

 March 31, 2021 June 30, 2020

Compensation costs $ 74,170 $ 67,307 
Income and indirect taxes 52,054 53,161 
Advertising costs (1) 28,401 14,746 
Interest payable (2) 26,700 8,359 
Production costs 6,412 7,012 
Sales returns 5,997 5,166 
Shipping costs 7,541 5,080 
Professional fees 3,286 3,452 
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 1,292 1,685 
Other 59,740 44,796 

Total accrued expenses $ 265,593 $ 210,764 

_________________
(1) The increase in advertising costs is primarily due to expanded return thresholds for performance advertising channels in our Vistaprint business as compared to the fourth

quarter of fiscal 2020, in addition to investment in upper-funnel advertising.
(2) The increase in interest payable as of March 31, 2021, is due to the interest on our 2026 Notes being payable semi-annually on June 15 and December 15 of each year.

Refer to Note 9 for further detail.
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Other current liabilities included the following:

March 31, 2021 June 30, 2020

Current portion of finance lease obligations $ 9,336 $ 8,055 
Short-term derivative liabilities 19,417 3,521 
Other (1) 48,916 1,692 

Total other current liabilities $ 77,669 $ 13,268 

_____________________
(1) The increase in other current liabilities is driven by the deferred payment related to the 99designs acquisition totaling $43,691, which was included in other long-term

liabilities as of December 31, 2020. Refer to Note 7 for additional details.

Other liabilities included the following:

March 31, 2021 June 30, 2020

Long-term finance lease obligations $ 17,695 $ 18,617 
Long-term derivative liabilities 42,162 51,800 
Other 32,929 17,770 

Total other liabilities $ 92,786 $ 88,187 

9. Debt
March 31, 2021 June 30, 2020

7.0% Senior unsecured notes due 2026 $ 600,000 $ 600,000 
Senior secured credit facility 471,500 570,483 
12.0% Second lien notes due 2025 300,000 300,000 
Other 12,629 11,694 
Debt issuance costs and debt premiums (discounts) (42,883) (48,587)
Total debt outstanding, net 1,341,246 1,433,590 
Less: short-term debt (1) 9,012 17,933 

Long-term debt $ 1,332,234 $ 1,415,657 

_____________________
(1) Balances as of March 31, 2021 and June 30, 2020 are inclusive of short-term debt issuance costs, debt premiums and discounts of $10,932 and $10,362, respectively.

Our Debt

Our various debt arrangements described below contain customary representations, warranties and events of default. As of
March 31, 2021, we were in compliance with all financial and other covenants under the amended credit agreement (which have been
reinstated with modified terms, as described below), the indenture governing our 2026 Notes, and the indenture governing our Second Lien
Notes.

Senior Secured Credit Facility

On April 28, 2020, we entered into an amendment to our senior secured credit agreement to suspend our pre-existing maintenance
covenants, including the total and senior secured leverage covenants and interest coverage ratio covenant, until the earlier of the date on
which we published our financial results for the quarter ending December 31, 2021 and the date on which we elected to exit the Covenant
Suspension Period. On February 16, 2021, we elected to end the Covenant Suspension Period early, and amended our financial
maintenance covenants through and including the quarter ending September 30, 2022. A summary of these changes are as follows:

• Maximum Leverage Ratio of Consolidated Total Indebtedness to Consolidated EBITDA for the four trailing fiscal quarters of 5.25 to
1.00 during the period from February 16, 2021 through and including September 30, 2022 (the “Covenant Adjustment Period”) and
4.75 to 1.00 following the Covenant Adjustment Period
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• Maximum Senior Secured Leverage Ratio of Consolidated Senior Secured Indebtedness to Consolidated EBITDA for the four trailing
fiscal quarters of 3.00 to 1.00 during the Covenant Adjustment Period and 3.25 to 1.00 following the Covenant Adjustment Period

• Minimum Interest Coverage Ratio of Consolidated EBITDA to Consolidated Interest Expense to the extent paid in cash, in each case
for the four trailing fiscal quarters, of 3.00 to 1.00, but if Cimpress repays in full its 12.0% Senior Secured Notes Due 2025, then the
calculation of Consolidated Interest Expense excludes all cash interest expense in respect of such Second Lien Notes incurred in the
fiscal quarter during which the Second Lien Notes are repaid as well as the three preceding fiscal quarters

In addition, the February 2021 amendment modified several of the negative covenants that limit certain activities and actions of our
business, including but not limited to removing most of the more restrictive limitations on investments, acquisitions, and restricted payments
that were in place during the Covenant Suspension Period.

The maturity date was not changed as part of the February 2021 amendment and remains in November 2024, but will reset to
February 2025 upon redemption of our senior secured notes. Additionally, the capacity of our senior secured credit facility was not changed
and includes an $850,000 revolver and $142,500 term loan.

As of March 31, 2021, we have drawn commitments under the credit facility of $471,500 as follows:

• Revolving loans of $329,000 with a maturity date of November 15, 2024

• Term loans of $142,500 amortizing over the loan period, with a final maturity date of November 15, 2024

As of March 31, 2021, the weighted-average interest rate on outstanding borrowings was 5.41%, inclusive of interest rate swap
rates. We are also required to pay a commitment fee on unused balances of 0.35% to 0.50% depending on our total leverage ratio. We have
pledged the assets and/or share capital of a number of our subsidiaries as collateral for our outstanding debt as of March 31, 2021.

Second Lien Notes

On May 1, 2020, we completed a private placement of $300,000 in aggregate principal of 12% second lien notes due 2025 (the
"Second Lien Notes") and warrants to funds managed by affiliates of Apollo Global Management, Inc. (the "Apollo Funds"). These Second
Lien Notes and warrants were issued at a discount of $6,000, resulting in net proceeds of $294,000. We used the proceeds to pay down a
portion of the term loans under our senior secured credit facility and to pay fees and expenses incurred in connection with the financing and
the above-described amendment.

The Second Lien Notes bear interest at 12% per annum, 50% of which can be paid-in-kind at our option, and mature on May 15,
2025. We may prepay the Second Lien Notes in whole or in part after the first anniversary with a 3% premium, after the second anniversary
with a 1% premium, and after the third anniversary with no premium with proceeds from certain debt financings. We intend to prepay the
Second Lien Notes on the first call date in May 2021.

Each of Cimpress subsidiaries that guarantees our obligations under our senior secured credit agreement guarantees the Second
Lien Notes. The Second Lien Notes and the guarantees thereof rank equal in right of payment with existing and future senior indebtedness of
Cimpress, including Cimpress' and the subsidiary guarantors' obligations under the senior secured credit agreement, and are secured by the
same assets securing Cimpress' and the subsidiary guarantors' obligations under the senior secured credit agreement on a second lien basis
subject to limited exceptions and the terms of the intercreditor agreement among Cimpress, the subsidiary guarantors, JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A. as administrative agent under the senior secured credit agreement, and U.S. Bank National Association as collateral agent under
the indenture for the Second Lien Notes.

The Apollo Funds also received 7-year warrants to purchase 1,055,377 ordinary shares of Cimpress, representing approximately
3.875% of our outstanding diluted ordinary shares at the time of issuance. Based on the terms of the purchase agreement, the two
instruments exist separately and should be treated as separate securities; therefore the warrants are considered to be detachable.
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The warrants have an exercise price of $60 per share, representing an approximately 17% premium to the 10-day volume weighted
average price of our shares as of April 28, 2020. The warrants are classified as equity as they are strictly redeemable in our own shares, and
they may be exercised by cash payment or through cashless exercise by the surrender of warrant shares having a value equal to the
exercise price of the portion of the warrant being exercised.

Senior Unsecured Notes

We have issued $600,000 in aggregate principal of 7.0% senior unsecured notes due 2026 (the "2026 Notes"). We have the right to
redeem, at any time prior to June 15, 2021, some or all of the 2026 Notes at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount
redeemed, plus a make-whole amount as set forth in the indenture, plus accrued and unpaid interest to, but not including, the redemption
date. In addition, we have the right to redeem, at any time prior to June 15, 2021, up to 40% of the aggregate outstanding principal amount of
the 2026 Notes at a redemption price equal to 107% of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest to, but not including,
the redemption date, with the net proceeds of certain equity offerings by Cimpress. At any time on or after June 15, 2021, we may redeem
some or all of the 2026 Notes at the redemption prices specified in the indenture, plus accrued and unpaid interest to, but not including, the
redemption date.

Other Debt

Other debt consists primarily of term loans acquired through our various acquisitions or used to fund certain capital investments. As
of March 31, 2021 and June 30, 2020, we had $12,629 and $11,694, respectively, outstanding for those obligations that are payable through
January 2026.

10. Income Taxes

Our income tax expense was $3,927 and $23,675 for the three and nine months ended March 31, 2021, respectively, compared to
income tax expense of $1,039 for the three months ended March 31, 2020, and income tax benefit of $86,641 for the nine months ended
March 31, 2020. For the period ended March 31, 2020, we calculated our year-to-date income tax on ordinary income based on the actual
year-to-date effective tax rate rather than the estimated annual tax rate. The increased tax expense for the three months ended March 31,
2021 was primarily due to a higher forecasted effective tax rate as compared to the actual effective tax rate for the same prior year period. In
the nine months ended March 31, 2020, we recognized a discrete tax benefit of $114,114 related to Swiss Tax Reform. Excluding this
benefit, tax expense would have decreased, primarily attributable to decreased pre-tax income for the nine months ended March 31, 2021 as
compared to the same prior year period. Excluding the effect of discrete tax adjustments, our estimated annual effective tax rate is higher for
fiscal 2021 as compared to fiscal 2020, primarily due to increased non-deductible interest expense and a less favorable mix of earnings. Our
effective tax rate continues to be negatively impacted by losses in certain jurisdictions where we are unable to recognize a tax benefit in the
current period.

During the nine months ended March 31, 2021, our unrecognized tax benefits increased by $8,264, primarily due to tax positions
taken in prior periods for which we have determined it is more likely than not that they will not be sustained upon audit. As of March 31, 2021,
we had unrecognized tax benefits of $14,495, including accrued interest and penalties of $914. We recognize interest and, if applicable,
penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in the provision for income taxes. If recognized, $8,051 of unrecognized tax benefits would
reduce our tax expense. It is reasonably possible that a reduction in unrecognized tax benefits may occur within the next twelve months
related to the lapse of applicable statutes of limitations, but we expect any such reduction to be immaterial. We believe we have appropriately
provided for all tax uncertainties.
    

We conduct business in a number of tax jurisdictions and, as such, are required to file income tax returns in multiple jurisdictions
globally. The years 2014 through 2020 remain open for examination by the IRS and the years 2015 through 2020 remain open for
examination in the various states and non-US tax jurisdictions in which we file tax returns. We believe that our income tax reserves are
adequately maintained, taking into consideration both the technical merits of our tax return positions and ongoing developments in our
income tax audits. However, the final determination of our tax return positions, if audited, is uncertain, and there is a possibility that final
resolution of these matters could have a material impact on our results of operations or cash flows.
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11. Noncontrolling Interests

For some of our subsidiaries, we own a controlling equity stake, and a third party or key member of the business' management team
owns a minority portion of the equity. The balance sheet and operating activity of these entities are included in our consolidated financial
statements and we adjust the net income in our consolidated statement of operations to exclude the noncontrolling interests' proportionate
share of results. We present the proportionate share of equity attributable to the redeemable noncontrolling interests as temporary equity
within our consolidated balance sheet and the proportionate share of noncontrolling interests not subject to a redemption provision that is
outside of our control as equity. We recognize redeemable noncontrolling interests at fair value on the sale or acquisition date and adjust to
the redemption value on a periodic basis with the offset to retained earnings in the consolidated balance sheet. If the formulaic redemption
value exceeds the fair value of the noncontrolling interest, then the accretion to redemption value is offset to the net (income) loss attributable
to noncontrolling interest in our consolidated statement of operations.

Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests

PrintBrothers

Members of the PrintBrothers management team hold a minority equity interest ranging from 11% to 12% in each of the three
businesses within the segment. The put options associated with the redeemable noncontrolling interest are exercisable beginning in 2021,
while the associated call options become exercisable in 2026. As of March 31, 2021, the redemption value was less than the carrying value,
and therefore no adjustment was required. During the second quarter of fiscal 2021, we repurchased equity interests ranging from 0.56% to
1.15% in each of the three businesses for a total of $5,063.

All Other Businesses

On October 1, 2018, we acquired approximately 99% of the outstanding equity interests of BuildASign LLC. The remaining 1% is
considered a redeemable noncontrolling equity interest, as it is redeemable for cash based on future financial results through put and call
rights and not solely within our control. During the nine months ended March 31, 2021, the redemption value increased above the carrying
value due to continued strong financial performance, resulting in an adjustment to the redeemable noncontrolling interest of $966, which was
recognized as an adjustment to retained earnings.

The following table presents the reconciliation of changes in our redeemable noncontrolling interests:

Redeemable
noncontrolling

interests

Balance as of June 30, 2020 $ 69,106 
Accretion to redemption value recognized in retained earnings 1,086 
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest 2,500 
Distribution to noncontrolling interest (4,599)
Purchase of noncontrolling interest (5,063)
Foreign currency translation 1,220 

Balance as of March 31, 2021 $ 64,250 

12. Segment Information

Our operating segments are based upon the manner in which our operations are managed and the availability of separate financial
information reported internally to the Chief Executive Officer, who is our Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) for purposes of making
decisions about how to allocate resources and assess performance.

As of March 31, 2021, we have numerous operating segments under our management reporting structure which are reported in the
following five reportable segments:

• Vistaprint - Includes the operations of our global Vistaprint websites and our Webs-branded business, which is managed with the
Vistaprint-branded digital business. Also included is our Vistaprint Corporate Solutions business which serves medium-sized
businesses and large corporations, our 99designs business which
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was acquired on October 1, 2020, as well as a legacy revenue stream with retail partners and franchise businesses.

• PrintBrothers - Includes the results of our druck.at, Printdeal, and WIRmachenDRUCK businesses.

• The Print Group - Includes the results of our Easyflyer, Exaprint, Pixartprinting, and Tradeprint businesses.

• National Pen - Includes the global operations of our National Pen business, which manufactures and markets custom writing
instruments and promotional products, apparel and gifts.

• All Other Businesses - Includes a collection of businesses grouped together based on materiality. With the exception of BuildASign,
which is a larger and profitable business, the All Other Businesses reportable segment consists of two early-stage businesses that
we continue to manage at a relatively modest operating loss.

◦ BuildASign is an internet-based provider of canvas-print wall décor, business signage and other large-format printed
products, based in Austin, Texas. 

◦ Printi is an online printing leader in Brazil, which offers a superior customer experience with transparent and attractive
pricing, reliable service and quality.

◦ YSD is a startup operation that provides end-to-end mass customization solutions to brands and intellectual property owners
in China, supporting multiple channels including retail stores, websites, WeChat and e-commerce platforms to enhance
brand awareness and competitiveness and develop new markets.

Central and corporate costs consist primarily of the team of software engineers that is building our mass customization platform;
shared service organizations such as global procurement; technology services such as hosting and security; administrative costs of our
Cimpress India offices where numerous Cimpress businesses have dedicated business-specific team members; and corporate functions
including our Board of Directors, CEO, and the team members necessary for managing corporate activities, such as treasury, tax, capital
allocation, financial consolidation, internal audit and legal. These costs also include certain unallocated share-based compensation costs.

The expense value of our PSU awards is based on a Monte Carlo fair value analysis and is required to be expensed on an
accelerated basis. In order to ensure comparability in measuring our businesses' results, we allocate the straight-line portion of the fixed
grant value to our businesses. Any expense in excess of the amount as a result of the fair value measurement of the PSUs and the
accelerated expense profile of the awards is recognized within central and corporate costs.

Our definition of segment EBITDA is GAAP operating income excluding certain items, such as depreciation and amortization,
expense recognized for contingent earn-out related charges including the changes in fair value of contingent consideration and
compensation expense related to cash-based earn-out mechanisms dependent upon continued employment, share-based compensation
related to investment consideration, certain impairment expense, and restructuring charges. We include insurance proceeds that are not
recognized within operating income. We do not allocate non-operating income, including realized gains and losses on currency hedges, to
our segment results.

Our balance sheet information is not presented to the CODM on an allocated basis, and therefore we do not present asset
information by segment. We do present other segment information to the CODM, which includes purchases of property, plant and equipment
and capitalization of software and website development costs, and therefore include that information in the tables below.

Revenue by segment is based on the business-specific websites or sales channel through which the customer’s order was
transacted. The following tables set forth revenue by reportable segment, as well as disaggregation of revenue by major geographic region
and reportable segment.
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 Three Months Ended March 31, Nine Months Ended March 31,
 2021 2020 2021 2020

Revenue (1):
Vistaprint $ 327,454 $ 316,310 $ 1,093,062 $ 1,092,786 
PrintBrothers 93,997 109,496 315,915 345,403 
The Print Group 59,945 68,537 202,586 228,494 
National Pen 62,220 68,362 244,561 266,510 
All Other Businesses 44,062 39,237 142,905 131,287 

Total segment revenue 587,678 601,942 1,999,029 2,064,480 
Inter-segment eliminations (8,827) (3,982) (47,533) (12,228)

Total consolidated revenue $ 578,851 $ 597,960 $ 1,951,496 $ 2,052,252 

_____________________
(1) Refer to the "Revenue by Geographic Region" tables below for detail of the inter-segment revenue within each respective segment.

Three Months Ended March 31, 2021
Vistaprint PrintBrothers The Print Group National Pen All Other Total

Revenue by Geographic Region:
North America $ 214,663 $ — $ — $ 33,398 $ 39,407 $ 287,468 
Europe 73,524 93,831 57,536 19,731 — 244,622 
Other 38,656 — — 4,012 4,093 46,761 
Inter-segment 611 166 2,409 5,079 562 8,827 
   Total segment revenue 327,454 93,997 59,945 62,220 44,062 587,678 
Less: inter-segment elimination (611) (166) (2,409) (5,079) (562) (8,827)

Total external revenue $ 326,843 $ 93,831 $ 57,536 $ 57,141 $ 43,500 $ 578,851 

Nine Months Ended March 31, 2021
Vistaprint PrintBrothers The Print Group National Pen All Other Total

Revenue by Geographic Region:
North America $ 715,494 $ — $ — $ 112,397 $ 128,013 $ 955,904 
Europe 277,649 315,336 187,257 87,913 — 868,155 
Other 98,215 — — 16,359 12,863 127,437 
Inter-segment 1,704 579 15,329 27,892 2,029 47,533 
   Total segment revenue 1,093,062 315,915 202,586 244,561 142,905 1,999,029 
Less: inter-segment elimination (1,704) (579) (15,329) (27,892) (2,029) (47,533)

Total external revenue $ 1,091,358 $ 315,336 $ 187,257 $ 216,669 $ 140,876 $ 1,951,496 

Three Months Ended March 31, 2020
Vistaprint PrintBrothers The Print Group National Pen All Other Total

Revenue by Geographic Region:
North America $ 222,294 $ — $ — $ 41,093 $ 35,040 $ 298,427 
Europe 74,335 109,246 67,617 21,146 — 272,344 
Other 18,074 — — 5,142 3,973 27,189 
Inter-segment 1,607 250 920 981 224 3,982 
   Total segment revenue 316,310 109,496 68,537 68,362 39,237 601,942 
Less: inter-segment elimination (1,607) (250) (920) (981) (224) (3,982)

Total external revenue $ 314,703 $ 109,246 $ 67,617 $ 67,381 $ 39,013 $ 597,960 
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Nine Months Ended March 31, 2020
Vistaprint PrintBrothers The Print Group National Pen All Other Total

Revenue by Geographic Region:
North America $ 753,724 $ — $ — $ 137,035 $ 114,667 $ 1,005,426 
Europe 269,936 344,581 226,156 104,346 — 945,019 
Other 63,666 — — 22,201 15,940 101,807 
Inter-segment 5,460 822 2,338 2,928 680 12,228 
   Total segment revenue 1,092,786 345,403 228,494 266,510 131,287 2,064,480 
Less: inter-segment elimination (5,460) (822) (2,338) (2,928) (680) (12,228)

Total external revenue $ 1,087,326 $ 344,581 $ 226,156 $ 263,582 $ 130,607 $ 2,052,252 

The following table includes segment EBITDA by reportable segment, total (loss) income from operations and total (loss) income
before income taxes.

 Three Months Ended March 31, Nine Months Ended March 31,
 2021 2020 2021 2020

Segment EBITDA:
Vistaprint $ 64,333 $ 73,780 $ 266,821 $ 299,941 
PrintBrothers 7,560 8,686 33,732 35,922 
The Print Group 6,475 10,934 31,227 42,673 
National Pen (3,324) (1,244) 4,733 17,005 
All Other Businesses 6,515 3,187 25,781 8,572 

Total segment EBITDA 81,559 95,343 362,294 404,113 
Central and corporate costs (34,144) (38,344) (96,148) (110,402)
Depreciation and amortization (42,809) (41,840) (128,696) (126,731)
Proceeds from insurance (122) — (122) — 
Certain impairments and other adjustments (20,563) (101,976) (21,131) (102,736)
Restructuring-related charges 382 (919) (1,714) (5,006)

Total (loss) income from operations (15,697) (87,736) 114,483 59,238 
Other income (expense), net 9,785 22,537 (16,167) 29,171 
Interest expense, net (29,002) (17,262) (89,659) (48,050)

(Loss) income before income taxes $ (34,914) $ (82,461) $ 8,657 $ 40,359 

 Three Months Ended March 31, Nine Months Ended March 31,
 2021 2020 2021 2020

Depreciation and amortization:
Vistaprint $ 14,881 $ 14,609 $ 43,420 $ 45,291 
PrintBrothers 5,493 5,064 16,464 15,872 
The Print Group 6,630 6,083 19,852 18,925 
National Pen 6,304 6,294 18,626 17,398 
All Other Businesses 4,524 6,049 14,783 17,910 
Central and corporate costs 4,977 3,741 15,551 11,335 

Total depreciation and amortization $ 42,809 $ 41,840 $ 128,696 $ 126,731 
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Three Months Ended March 31, Nine Months Ended March 31,
2021 2020 2021 2020

Purchases of property, plant and equipment:
Vistaprint $ 2,411 $ 134 $ 6,860 $ 10,831 
PrintBrothers 286 2,397 1,424 3,396 
The Print Group 980 4,949 6,910 13,943 
National Pen 679 728 3,503 3,505 
All Other Businesses 744 1,523 2,712 3,893 
Central and corporate costs 846 813 1,327 3,070 

Total purchases of property, plant and equipment $ 5,946 $ 10,544 $ 22,736 $ 38,638 

Three Months Ended March 31, Nine Months Ended March 31,
2021 2020 2021 2020

Capitalization of software and website development costs:
Vistaprint $ 10,414 $ 5,895 $ 21,830 $ 15,674 
PrintBrothers 379 90 970 712 
The Print Group 398 374 1,061 1,249 
National Pen 604 775 1,673 2,590 
All Other Businesses 897 890 2,639 2,969 
Central and corporate costs 6,184 4,383 17,148 12,630 

Total capitalization of software and website
development costs $ 18,876 $ 12,407 $ 45,321 $ 35,824 

The following table sets forth long-lived assets by geographic area:

 March 31, 2021 June 30, 2020

Long-lived assets (1):   
United States $ 87,136 $ 161,853 
Netherlands 76,449 82,897 
Canada 57,685 67,367 
Switzerland 65,269 58,013 
Italy 46,559 46,317 
Jamaica 20,802 21,563 
Australia 21,060 19,695 
France 25,564 23,917 
Japan 15,168 15,430 
Other 96,964 94,922 

Total $ 512,656 $ 591,974 

___________________

(1) Excludes goodwill of $706,626 and $621,904, intangible assets, net of $194,502 and $209,228, and deferred tax assets of $135,491 and $143,496 as of March 31, 2021 and
June 30, 2020, respectively.

13. Commitments and Contingencies

Purchase Obligations

At March 31, 2021, we had unrecorded commitments under contract of $211,311, including third-party web services of $96,741,
software of $54,548, inventory and third-party fulfillment purchase commitments of $18,976, advertising of $15,058, professional and
consulting fees of $7,405, production and computer equipment purchases of $2,430 and other unrecorded purchase commitments of
$16,153.
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Other Obligations

We deferred payments for several of our acquisitions resulting in the recognition of a liability of $44,680 in aggregate as of March 31,
2021. This balance includes the deferred payment related to the 99designs acquisition totaling $43,691. Refer to Note 7 for additional details.

Modification of Lease Obligations

On January 6, 2021, we entered into an arrangement that modifies the lease agreement for our Waltham, Massachusetts office
location, which results in us retaining a small portion of the previously leased office space in exchange for a reduction to our monthly rent
payments for the space we no longer lease. As part of the agreement, we were required to pay a termination fee of $8,761 in two equal
installments. The first payment was made on January 6, 2021, and the remaining amount was paid on April 1, 2021. The termination fee is
inclusive of the rent that would have otherwise been paid on the leased space through June 2021 while it remained vacant. We separately
entered into a lease agreement for a new office location in Waltham, Massachusetts which will commence on June 1, 2021. Prior to the
amendment, the total remaining lease commitments through September 2026 were $64,811. Under the modified lease term, combined with
the new lease arrangement, the total lease commitments through September 2026 will be $20,183, excluding the termination penalties
included above.

Legal Proceedings

We are not currently party to any material legal proceedings. Although we cannot predict with certainty the results of litigation and
claims to which we may be subject from time to time, we do not expect the resolution of any of our current matters to have a material adverse
impact on our consolidated results of operations, cash flows or financial position. For all legal matters, at each reporting period, we evaluate
whether or not a potential loss amount or a potential range of loss is probable and reasonably estimable under the provisions of the
authoritative guidance that addresses accounting for contingencies. We expense the costs relating to our legal proceedings as those costs
are incurred.

14. Restructuring Charges

Restructuring costs include one-time employee termination benefits, acceleration of share-based compensation, write-off of assets
and other related costs including third-party professional and outplacement services. During the three months ended March 31, 2021, we
recognized restructuring benefits of $382 due to changes in prior estimates, while during the nine months ended March 31, 2021 we
recognized costs of $1,714, due to organizational changes within The Print Group segment intended to streamline certain activities. During
the three and nine months ended March 31, 2020, we recognized restructuring charges of $919 and $5,006, respectively, related primarily to
charges within our Vistaprint reportable segment.

The following table summarizes the restructuring activity during the nine months ended March 31, 2021:

Severance and Related
Benefits Other Restructuring Costs Total

Accrued restructuring liability as of June 30, 2020 $ 5,969 $ 77 $ 6,046 
Restructuring charges 1,071 643 1,714 
Cash payments (4,105) — (4,105)
Non-cash charges (1) — (643) (643)

Accrued restructuring liability as of March 31, 2021 $ 2,935 $ 77 $ 3,012 

(1) Non-cash charges primarily include the write-off of property, plant and equipment, net in The Print Group segment to streamline certain activities.

15. Subsequent Event

On April 15, 2021, we announced plans to issue a senior secured Term Loan B to repay existing secured debt and bring additional
liquidity onto our balance sheet. We expect this transaction to close in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2021. The secured Term Loan B is
expected to consist of a $795,000 tranche and a €300,000 tranche,
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both due 2028. We plan to use the new debt to redeem all of our 12% Second Lien Notes due 2025, repay amounts drawn under our
revolving credit facility and repay all borrowings in respect of our Term Loan A under our secured credit facility. The transaction would be
approximately net leverage neutral on a pro-forma basis. The Second Lien notes would be redeemed at the first call date in mid-May 2021.
The Term Loan A would terminate and Cimpress would retain a $250,000 revolving credit facility maturing in 2026.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

This Report contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. The statements contained in this Report that
are not purely historical are forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, including but not limited to our statements about the anticipated growth and development of our
businesses and revenues, the potential effects of the COVID-19 pandemic and our expectations with respect to our business, markets, and
financial results during and after the pandemic, the anticipated effects of our investments in our business, expected cost savings resulting
from changes in our real estate lease footprint, the anticipated completion of our Term Loan B financing, the planned redemption of our
Second Lien Notes, sufficiency of our liquidity position, legal proceedings, and sufficiency of our tax reserves. Without limiting the foregoing,
the words “may,” “should,” “could,” “expect,” “plan,” “intend,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “predict,” “designed,” “potential,” “continue,”
“target,” “seek” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. All forward-looking statements included in this
Report are based on information available to us up to, and including the date of this document, and we disclaim any obligation to update any
such forward-looking statements. The Term Loan B financing may be delayed or may not close at all, and we may choose not to redeem our
Second Lien Notes as planned. Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a
result of various important factors, including but not limited to flaws in the assumptions and judgments upon which our forecasts and
estimates are based; the development, severity, and duration of the COVID-19 pandemic; our failure to anticipate and react to the effects of
the pandemic on our customers, supply chain, markets, team members, and business; our inability to make the investments that we plan to
make or the failure of those investments to achieve the results we expect; loss or unavailability of key personnel or our inability to recruit
talented personnel to drive performance of our businesses; the failure of businesses we acquire or invest in to perform as expected;
unanticipated changes in our markets, customers, or businesses; changes in the laws and regulations, or in the interpretation of laws and
regulations, that affect our businesses; our failure to manage the growth and complexity of our business and expand our operations; our
failure to maintain compliance with the covenants in our debt documents or to pay our debts when due; competitive pressures; general
economic conditions; and other factors described in our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 and the other documents that we
periodically file with the SEC.

Executive Overview

Cimpress is a strategically focused group of more than a dozen businesses that specialize in mass customization, via which we
deliver large volumes of individually small-sized customized orders for a broad spectrum of print, signage, photo merchandise, invitations and
announcements, writing instruments, packaging, apparel and other categories. We invest in and build customer-focused, entrepreneurial
mass customization businesses for the long term, which we manage in a decentralized, autonomous manner. We drive competitive
advantage across Cimpress through a select few shared strategic capabilities that have the greatest potential to create Cimpress-wide value.
We limit all other central activities to only those which absolutely must be performed centrally.

As of March 31, 2021, we have numerous operating segments under our management reporting structure that are reported in the
following five reportable segments: Vistaprint, PrintBrothers, The Print Group, National Pen, and All Other Businesses. Refer to Note 12 in
our accompanying consolidated financial statements for additional information relating to our reportable segments and our segment financial
measures.

COVID-19

The pandemic and related restrictions continue to have a negative impact on most of our businesses, customers and the markets
that we serve. Consolidated revenue was down 18% year over year for the first two months of the third quarter due to severe restrictions in
most of our markets. In March we saw a pick up in demand in markets where pandemic restrictions have been lifted or are less severe and in
the second half of the month we began to lap the start of depressed demand last year. As an example of geographic differences, Vistaprint
bookings in Australia grew approximately 10% for the third quarter, while bookings across European countries declined by approximately 7%.
Likewise, Vistaprint bookings from customers in less restricted U.S. states such as Florida, Texas, and Georgia are recovering more quickly
compared to bookings in U.S. states such as California, Pennsylvania, or New York that were more restricted. These data points give us
confidence that demand will continue to pick up as activity resumes in our markets around the world. We continue to hire talent and make
investments in technology, data, new product introduction, customer experience improvements, and branding that are designed to build on
our competitive advantages and enable our businesses to grow as we come out of the
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pandemic, although we can't forecast how long that will take. We continue to maintain flexibility in our cost structure, while at the same time
increasing investment in areas we believe will generate high return on investment beyond the pandemic.

Financial Summary

The primary financial metric by which we set quarterly and annual budgets both for individual businesses and Cimpress wide is our
adjusted free cash flow before cash interest expense related to borrowing; however, in evaluating the financial condition and operating
performance of our business, management considers a number of metrics including revenue growth, organic constant-currency revenue
growth, operating income, adjusted EBITDA, cash flow from operations and adjusted free cash flow. A summary of these key financial
metrics for the three and nine months ended March 31, 2021 as compared to the three and nine months ended March 31, 2020 follows:

Third Quarter Fiscal 2021

• Revenue decreased by 3% to $578.9 million.

• Revenue decreased by 10% when excluding the impact of currency fluctuations and acquisitions ("organic constant-currency
revenue growth," a non-GAAP financial measure).

• Operating loss improved by $72.0 million to $15.7 million.

• Adjusted EBITDA (a non-GAAP financial measure) decreased by $15.9 million to $55.0 million.

Year to Date Fiscal 2021

• Revenue decreased by 5% to $1,951.5 million.

• Organic constant-currency revenue decreased by 9%.

• Operating income increased by $55.2 million to $114.5 million.

• Adjusted EBITDA decreased by $49.0 million to $286.9 million.

• Cash provided by operating activities decreased by $65.1 million to $218.9 million.

• Adjusted free cash flow (a non-GAAP financial measure) decreased by $58.7 million to $150.9 million.

For the third quarter of fiscal year 2021, our revenue declined year-over-year as the COVID-19 pandemic continues to negatively
impact our results, although results vary by segment depending on product and customer mix. Our businesses also serve customers in
different geographic markets where the extent and impact of government restrictions and lockdowns vary. Revenue from event-driven and
some small business products continued to decline year-over-year, partially offset by continued growth in revenue from home decor and
packaging products, as well as new products introduced in reaction to the pandemic such as face masks, although the contribution from
those products has lessened compared to the first six months of fiscal 2021. We expect our financial results will continue to experience
volatility connected to the extent of pandemic-related restrictions but also higher rates of year-over-year revenue growth as we lap depressed
periods of demand from last year.

For the third quarter of fiscal 2021, operating loss improved by $72.0 million, primarily driven by the non-recurrence of a
$100.8 million goodwill impairment charge in the prior comparable period, as well as continued variable cost controls, fixed cost savings and
lower restructuring charges, in addition to the benefit of $3.2 million of COVID-19-related government incentives, primarily to offset wages for
manufacturing and customer service team members in countries where demand decreased but roles were maintained. During the current
quarter operating income was negatively impacted by $19.9 million of lease-related impairment and abandonment charges due to changes in
our intended use of two leased locations, which we expect will deliver substantial cost savings in future periods. We also increased organic
investment primarily through hiring in Vistaprint.

Adjusted EBITDA decreased year-over-year, primarily due to the pandemic-related revenue decline during the three months ended
March 31, 2021 as described above. Adjusted EBITDA excludes goodwill and other impairment charges, restructuring charges and share-
based compensation expense, and includes the realized gains or losses on our currency derivatives intended to hedge adjusted EBITDA.
The net year-over-year impact of currency on consolidated adjusted EBITDA was negative by approximately $4.4 million.

34



Consolidated Results of Operations

Consolidated Revenue

Our businesses generate revenue primarily from the sale and shipment of customized manufactured products. To a much lesser
extent (and primarily in our Vistaprint business) we provide digital services, graphic design services, website design and hosting, and email
marketing services, as well as generate a small percentage of revenue from order referral fees and other third-party offerings. For additional
discussion relating to segment revenue results, refer to the "Reportable Segment Results" section included below.

Total revenue and revenue growth by reportable segment for the three and nine months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 are shown
in the following table:

In thousands Three Months Ended March 31,
Currency
Impact:

Constant-
Currency

Impact of
Acquisitions/Divestitures:

Constant- Currency
Revenue Growth

2021 2020
%

 Change (Favorable)/Unfavorable
Revenue

Growth (1) (Favorable)/Unfavorable

Excluding
Acquisitions/Divestitures

(2)

Vistaprint (3) $ 327,454 $ 316,310 4% (3)% 1% (6)% (5)%
PrintBrothers 93,997 109,496 (14)% (7)% (21)% —% (21)%
The Print Group 59,945 68,537 (13)% (7)% (20)% —% (20)%
National Pen 62,220 68,362 (9)% (3)% (12)% —% (12)%
All Other Businesses 44,062 39,237 12% 3% 15% —% 15%

Inter-segment
eliminations (8,827) (3,982)

Total revenue $ 578,851 $ 597,960 (3)% (4)% (7)% (3)% (10)%

In thousands Nine Months Ended March 31,
Currency
Impact:

Constant-
Currency

Impact of
Acquisitions/Divestitures:

Constant- Currency
Revenue Growth

2021 2020
%

 Change (Favorable)/Unfavorable
Revenue

Growth (1) (Favorable)/Unfavorable

Excluding
Acquisitions/Divestitures

(2)

Vistaprint (3) $ 1,093,062 $ 1,092,786 —% (2)% (2)% (3)% (5)%
PrintBrothers 315,915 345,403 (9)% (6)% (15)% (2)% (17)%
The Print Group 202,586 228,494 (11)% (6)% (17)% —% (17)%
National Pen 244,561 266,510 (8)% (3)% (11)% —% (11)%
All Other Businesses 142,905 131,287 9% 3% 12% —% 12%

Inter-segment
eliminations (47,533) (12,228)

Total revenue $ 1,951,496 $ 2,052,252 (5)% (3)% (8)% (1)% (9)%

_________________
(1) Constant-currency revenue growth, a non-GAAP financial measure, represents the change in total revenue between current and prior year periods at constant-currency

exchange rates by translating all non-U.S. dollar denominated revenue generated in the current period using the prior year period’s average exchange rate for each currency
to the U.S. dollar. Our reportable segments-related growth is inclusive of inter-segment revenues, which are eliminated in our consolidated results.

(2) Constant-currency revenue growth excluding acquisitions/divestitures, a non-GAAP financial measure, excludes revenue results for businesses in the period in which there is
no comparable year-over-year revenue. Our reportable segments-related growth is inclusive of inter-segment revenues, which are eliminated in our consolidated results.

(3) The Vistaprint segment includes revenue from our 99designs business since its acquisition date of October 1, 2020.

We have provided these non-GAAP financial measures because we believe they provide meaningful information regarding our results on a consistent and comparable basis
for the periods presented. Management uses these non-GAAP financial measures, in addition to GAAP financial measures, to evaluate our operating results. These non-
GAAP financial measures should be considered supplemental to and not a substitute for our reported financial results prepared in accordance with GAAP.
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Consolidated Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue includes materials used by our businesses to manufacture their products, payroll and related expenses for
production and design services personnel, depreciation of assets used in the production process and in support of digital marketing service
offerings, shipping, handling and processing costs, third-party production and design costs, costs of free products and other related costs of
products our businesses sell.

 In thousands Three Months Ended March 31, Nine Months Ended March 31,
 2021 2020 2021 2020

Cost of revenue $ 302,022 $ 309,598 $ 986,845 $ 1,029,281 
% of revenue 52.2 % 51.8 % 50.6 % 50.2 %

For the three and nine months ended March 31, 2021, consolidated cost of revenue decreased by $7.6 million and $42.4 million,
respectively, due to reduced demand-dependent cost of goods sold including third-party fulfillment, material, and shipping costs in our
segments that experienced year-over-year pandemic-related revenue declines. For the three and nine months ended March 31, 2021, we
realized approximately $2.2 million and $7.9 million, respectively, of wage offset benefits from government incentives in locations where
demand decreased materially but roles were maintained. These benefits were partially offset by $2.1 million and $7.6 million of expense
incurred during the three and nine months ended March 31, 2021, respectively, related to losses associated with the decline in market
demand and pricing for certain masks and related products, primarily in our Vistaprint and National Pen businesses. Changes in currency
negatively impacted cost of revenue for both periods presented. Cost of revenue from our 99designs business is included from the
acquisition date of October 1, 2020.

Consolidated Operating Expenses

The following table summarizes our comparative operating expenses for the following periods:

In thousands Three Months Ended March 31, Nine Months Ended March 31,
 2021 2020 2021 vs. 2020 2021 2020 2021 vs. 2020

Technology and development
expense $ 62,572 $ 67,693 (8)% $ 186,097 $ 195,287 (5)%
% of revenue 10.8 % 11.3 % 9.5 % 9.5 %
Marketing and selling expense $ 154,472 $ 148,803 4% $ 474,944 $ 483,056 (2)%
% of revenue 26.7 % 24.9 % 24.3 % 23.5 %
General and administrative
expense (1) $ 62,358 $ 45,148 38% $ 147,149 $ 140,681 5%
% of revenue 10.8 % 7.6 % 7.5 % 6.9 %
Amortization of acquired
intangible assets $ 13,506 $ 12,693 6% $ 40,264 $ 38,861 4%
% of revenue 2.3 % 2.1 % 2.1 % 1.9 %
Restructuring expense $ (382) $ 919 (142)% $ 1,714 $ 5,006 (66)%
% of revenue (0.1)% 0.2 % 0.1 % 0.2 %
Impairment of Goodwill $ — $ 100,842 (100)% $ — $ 100,842 (100)%
% of revenue — % 16.9 % — % 4.9 %

_____________________

(1) General and administrative expense for the three and nine months ended March 31, 2021 includes lease impairment and abandonment charges for two leased locations
totaling $19.9 million. Refer to Note 2 for additional details.

Technology and development expense

Technology and development expense consists primarily of payroll and related expenses for employees engaged in software and
manufacturing engineering, information technology operations and content development, as well as amortization of capitalized software and
website development costs, including hosting of our websites, asset depreciation, patent amortization, and other technology infrastructure-
related costs. Depreciation expense for information technology equipment that directly supports the delivery of our digital marketing services
products is included in cost of revenue.
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Technology and development expenses decreased by $5.1 million and $9.2 million for the three and nine months ended March 31,
2021, as compared to the prior comparative periods. Both periods benefited from decreases in costs from our fiscal 2020 reorganization of
our central and Vistaprint technology teams as well as continued reductions in discretionary spend including travel and training expenses.

Marketing and selling expense

Marketing and selling expense consists primarily of advertising and promotional costs; payroll and related expenses for our
employees engaged in marketing, sales, customer support and public relations activities; direct-mail advertising costs; and third-party
payment processing fees. Our Vistaprint, National Pen and BuildASign businesses have higher marketing and selling costs as a percentage
of revenue as compared to our PrintBrothers and The Print Group businesses.

Our marketing and selling expenses during the three months ended March 31, 2021 increased by $5.7 million as compared to the
prior comparative period, driven primarily by fluctuations in currency exchange rates. We also increased spend in our Vistaprint business due
to brand sponsorships and upper-funnel advertising investment along with associated agency fees. These increases were partially offset by
reductions in advertising across several of our other businesses as they continue to control advertising spend levels in line with demand.

For the nine months ended March 31, 2021, marketing and selling expenses decreased by $8.1 million, as compared to the prior
year. The decrease from the prior comparative period is primarily due to the year-over-year reduction in performance based advertising
spend in our Vistaprint business of $11.8 million, which is partially offset by increases in brand sponsorships and upper-funnel advertising
investments. We also recognized a decrease in marketing costs in our National Pen business of $8.1 million, primarily due to pandemic-
related initiatives to lower costs, which included reductions to direct mail prospecting activities and cost savings from initiatives intended to
reduce costs in service centers. These decreases were partially offset by negative impacts from fluctuations in currency exchange rates.

General and administrative expense

General and administrative expense consists primarily of transaction costs, including third-party professional fees, insurance and
payroll and related expenses of employees involved in executive management, finance, legal, strategy, human resources and procurement.

For the three and nine months ended March 31, 2021, general and administrative expenses increased by $17.2 million and $6.5
million, respectively, as compared to the prior comparative periods, due to $19.9 million of lease-related impairment and abandonment
charges driven by changes in our office footprint at two leased locations. These changes to our leased facility footprint are expected to result
in substantial cost savings in future periods. These increased expenses were partially offset by lower professional fees as a result of the non-
recurrence of costs related to strategic projects in our Vistaprint business, as well as the Cimpress cross-border merger to Ireland in fiscal
year 2020. We also realized lower discretionary spend in both periods.

Amortization of acquired intangible assets

Amortization of acquired intangible assets consists of amortization expense associated with separately identifiable intangible assets
capitalized as part of our acquisitions, including customer relationships, trade names, developed technologies, print networks, and customer
and referral networks.

Amortization of acquired intangible assets increased by $0.8 million and $1.4 million for the three and nine months ended March 31,
2021, respectively, as compared to the three and nine months ended March 31, 2020. The year-over-year increase is driven by the negative
impact of fluctuations in currency exchange rates. The incremental amortization from the newly acquired 99designs intangibles was offset by
the expense reduction caused by another acquired intangible asset becoming fully amortized during the second quarter of fiscal 2021. Refer
to Note 7 in our accompanying consolidated financial statements for additional information about the 99designs acquisition.

Restructuring expense

Restructuring expense consists of costs directly incurred as a result of restructuring initiatives, and includes employee-related
termination costs, third party professional fees and facility exit costs.
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We recognized a restructuring benefit of $0.4 million during the three months ended March 31, 2021 and an expense of $1.7 million
for the nine months ended March 31, 2021, due to actions taken in The Print Group reportable segment which are intended to streamline
certain activities within the segment. We recognized restructuring expense of $0.9 million and $5.0 million, respectively in the three and nine
months ended March 31, 2020 due to prior year actions taken in our Vistaprint business.

Impairment of goodwill

During the prior comparative periods, we recognized goodwill impairment charges of $100.8 million. We did not recognize any
goodwill impairment charges during the current periods presented. Refer to Note 6 in our accompanying consolidated financial statements for
additional details.

Other Consolidated Results

Other income (expense), net

Other income (expense), net generally consists of gains and losses from currency exchange rate fluctuations on transactions or
balances denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of our subsidiaries, as well as the realized and unrealized gains and
losses on some of our derivative instruments. In evaluating our currency hedging programs and ability to qualify for hedge accounting in light
of our legal entity cash flows, we considered the benefits of hedge accounting relative to the additional economic cost of trade execution and
administrative burden. Based on this analysis, we execute certain currency derivative contracts that do not qualify for hedge accounting.

The following table summarizes the components of other income (expense), net:

In thousands Three Months Ended March 31, Nine Months Ended March 31,
2021 2020 2021 2020

Gains (losses) on derivatives not designated as hedging
instruments $ 18,724 $ 18,039 $ (13,791) $ 25,730 
Currency-related (losses) gains, net (8,841) 3,950 (2,957) 3,183 
Other (losses) gains (98) 548 581 258 

Total other income (expense), net $ 9,785 $ 22,537 $ (16,167) $ 29,171 

The decrease in other income (expense), net was primarily due to the currency exchange rate volatility impacting our derivatives that
are not designated as hedging instruments, of which our Euro and British Pound contracts are the most significant exposures that we
economically hedge. We also recognize the impact from de-designated interest swap contracts that are no longer highly effective, which
resulted in unrealized gains during the current periods. We expect volatility to continue in future periods, as we do not apply hedge
accounting for most of our derivative currency contracts.

We experienced currency-related losses due to currency exchange rate volatility on our non-functional currency intercompany
relationships, which we may alter from time to time. The impact of certain cross-currency swap contracts designated as cash flow hedges is
included in our currency-related (losses) gains, net, offsetting the impact of certain non-functional currency intercompany relationships.

Interest expense, net

Interest expense, net primarily consists of interest paid on outstanding debt balances, amortization of debt issuance costs, debt
discounts, interest related to finance lease obligations and realized gains (losses) on effective interest rate swap contracts and certain cross-
currency swap contracts.

Interest expense, net increased by $11.7 million and $41.6 million during the three and nine months ended March 31, 2021, as
compared to the prior comparable periods. This is primarily due to the additional $200.0 million offering of our 7% senior unsecured notes in
February 2020 and issuance of our $300.0 million, 12% Second Lien Notes in May 2020.
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Income tax expense

In thousands Three Months Ended March 31, Nine Months Ended March 31,
 2021 2020 2021 2020

Income tax expense (benefit) $ 3,927 $ 1,039 $ 23,675 $ (86,641)
Effective tax rate (11.2)% (1.3)% 273.5 % (214.7)%

Income tax expense (benefit) for the three and nine months ended March 31, 2021 increased as compared to the prior year. For the
period ended March 31, 2020, we calculated our year-to-date income tax on ordinary income based on the actual year-to-date effective tax
rate rather than the estimated annual tax rate. The increased tax expense for the three months ended March 31, 2021 was primarily due to a
higher forecasted effective tax rate as compared to the actual effective tax rate for the same prior year period. In the nine months ended
March 31, 2020, we recognized a discrete tax benefit of $114.1 million related to Swiss Tax Reform. Excluding this benefit, tax expense
would have decreased, primarily attributable to decreased pre-tax income for the nine months ended March 31, 2021 as compared to the
same prior year period. Excluding the effect of discrete tax adjustments, our estimated annual effective tax rate is higher for fiscal 2021 as
compared to fiscal 2020 primarily due to increased non-deductible interest expense and a less favorable mix of earnings. Our effective tax
rate continues to be negatively impacted by losses in certain jurisdictions where we are unable to recognize a tax benefit in the current
period.

We believe that our income tax reserves are adequately maintained by taking into consideration both the technical merits of our tax
return positions and ongoing developments in our income tax audits. However, the final determination of our tax return positions, if audited, is
uncertain and therefore there is a possibility that final resolution of these matters could have a material impact on our results of operations or
cash flows. Refer to Note 10 in our accompanying consolidated financial statements for additional discussion.

Reportable Segment Results

Our segment financial performance is measured based on segment EBITDA, which is defined as operating income plus depreciation
and amortization; plus proceeds from insurance; plus share-based compensation expense related to investment consideration; plus earn-out
related charges; plus certain impairments; plus restructuring related charges; less gain on purchase or sale of subsidiaries.

Vistaprint

In thousands Three Months Ended March 31, Nine Months Ended March 31,
 2021 2020 2021 vs. 2020 2021 2020 2021 vs. 2020

Reported Revenue $ 327,454 $ 316,310 4% $ 1,093,062 $ 1,092,786 —%
Segment EBITDA 64,333 73,780 (13)% 266,821 299,941 (11)%
% of revenue 20 % 23 % 24 % 27 %

Segment Revenue

Vistaprint's reported revenue growth for the three and nine months ended March 31, 2021 was positively affected by currency
impacts of 3% and 2%, respectively. When excluding the benefit from the recent acquisition of 99designs, Vistaprint's organic constant-
currency revenue decline was 5% for both periods presented. The revenue decline was primarily driven by the impact of the pandemic on
customer demand, partially offset by the sale of pandemic-related products, such as face masks. During the first two months of the third
quarter, Vistaprint's revenue continued to be impacted in function of the severity of restrictions in the markets we serve. Revenue grew
significantly year over year during the month of March 2021 as restrictions loosened in some markets and we lapped the earliest periods
impacted by the pandemic in fiscal year 2020.
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Segment Profitability

For the three and nine months ended March 31, 2021, the decrease to Vistaprint's segment EBITDA was primarily due to a decline in
gross profit driven by the organic revenue decrease described above, as well as a revenue mix shift to lower margin products during the
second quarter of fiscal 2021. For the three months ended March 31, 2021, an increase in operating expenses was driven by the acquisition
of 99designs combined with increased investment in hiring, which was more than offset by year-over-year cost reductions including lower
building-related costs and travel expenses.

For the nine months ended March 31, 2021, the decline in segment EBITDA was combined with increased investment in advertising
which included expanded return on advertising spend targets and increases in upper-funnel advertising investments (including related
agency fees) and brand-based sponsorships. Additionally, the increase in operating expenses was driven by continued hiring and increased
spend related to customer experience, partially offset by technology savings from our fiscal 2020 restructuring and reduced spend for
consulting projects compared to the prior year periods. For the three and nine months ended March 31, 2021, Vistaprint received $1.9 million
and $6.8 million, respectively in government incentives to offset wages in locations where demand decreased materially but roles were
maintained. Vistaprint's segment EBITDA was positively impacted by currency movements for both periods presented.

PrintBrothers

 In thousands Three Months Ended March 31, Nine Months Ended March 31,
 2021 2020 2021 vs. 2020 2021 2020 2021 vs. 2020

Reported Revenue $ 93,997 $ 109,496 (14)% $ 315,915 $ 345,403 (9)%
Segment EBITDA 7,560 8,686 (13)% 33,732 35,922 (6)%
% of revenue 8 % 8 % 11 % 10 %

Segment Revenue

PrintBrothers' reported revenue decline for the three and nine months ended March 31, 2021 was positively affected by currency
impacts of 7% and 6%, respectively, resulting in a constant-currency revenue decline,of 21% for the three months ended March 31, 2021,
and, excluding the impact of acquisitions, a constant-currency organic revenue decline of 17%, for the nine months ended March 31, 2021.
The revenue decline was due to pandemic-related decreases in demand. In the current quarter, heightened restrictions in certain European
countries, including Germany and the Netherlands, resulted in more significant impacts on demand as compared to the first six months of the
fiscal year.

Segment Profitability

PrintBrothers' segment EBITDA decreased during the three and nine months ended March 31, 2021 as compared to the prior
comparative periods, due primarily to the revenue declines described above. A portion of the decline in segment EBITDA driven by the
revenue decline was partially offset by discretionary cost controls and government incentive program benefits of $0.9 million and $2.5 million
for the three and nine months ended March 31, 2021, respectively. PrintBrothers' segment EBITDA was positively impacted by currency
movements for both periods presented.

The Print Group

 In thousands Three Months Ended March 31, Nine Months Ended March 31,
 2021 2020 2021 vs. 2020 2021 2020 2021 vs. 2020

Reported Revenue $ 59,945 $ 68,537 (13)% $ 202,586 $ 228,494 (11)%
Segment EBITDA 6,475 10,934 (41)% 31,227 42,673 (27)%
% of revenue 11 % 16 % 15 % 19 %
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Segment Revenue

The Print Group's reported revenue decline for the three and nine months ended March 31, 2021 was positively affected by currency
impacts of 7% and 6%, respectively, resulting in a decrease in revenue on a constant-currency basis of 20% and 17%, respectively. The
revenue decline was due to pandemic-related decreases in demand. Despite these pressures, our businesses have found pockets of
strength in demand and pivoted quickly over the last year to deliver quality offerings to help fill in some of the reduced demand in other areas,
including the launch of new products for other Cimpress businesses.

Segment Profitability

The Print Group's segment EBITDA decreased during the three and nine months ended March 31, 2021, as compared to the prior
comparative periods, primarily driven by the revenue decline described above. This was partially offset by discretionary cost controls,
benefits from government incentives totaling $0.3 million and $1.6 million, respectively, and efficiency gains from leveraging our mass
customization platform to shift production to lower-cost sources. The Print Group's segment EBITDA was positively impacted by currency
movements for both periods presented.

National Pen

In thousands Three Months Ended March 31, Nine Months Ended March 31,
 2021 2020 2021 vs. 2020 2021 2020 2021 vs. 2020

Reported Revenue $ 62,220 $ 68,362 (9)% $ 244,561 $ 266,510 (8)%
Segment EBITDA (3,324) (1,244) (167)% 4,733 17,005 (72)%
% of revenue (5)% (2)% 2 % 6 %

Segment Revenue

National Pen's reported revenue decrease for the three and nine months ended March 31, 2021 was positively affected by currency
impacts of 3% in both periods, resulting in constant-currency revenue declines of 12% and 11%, respectively. National Pen's sales continue
to be negatively impacted due to cancelled trade shows and other large-scale events. Product sales to other Cimpress businesses continued
to supplement some of the lost volume from lower demand.

Segment Profitability

The decrease in National Pen's segment EBITDA for the three and nine months ended March 31, 2021 was due to the revenue
decline described above. The impacts of lower revenue on National Pen's fixed cost base negatively impacted profitability in comparison to
the year-ago periods, partially offset by reduced variable cost, advertising and discretionary spend. National Pen was negatively impacted by
the sale of disposable masks at a loss, as well as the recognition of an inventory reserve to reduce the carrying value of all remaining
disposable masks held in inventory to current market prices of $0.8 million and $6.2 million, respectively, for the three and nine months
ended March 31, 2021. National Pen's segment EBITDA was positively impacted by currency movements for both periods presented.

All Other Businesses

 In thousands Three Months Ended March 31, Nine Months Ended March 31,
 2021 2020 2021 vs. 2020 2021 2020 2021 vs. 2020

Reported Revenue (1) $ 44,062 $ 39,237 12% $ 142,905 $ 131,287 9%
Segment EBITDA (1) 6,515 3,187 104% 25,781 8,572 201%
% of revenue 15 % 8 % 18 % 7 %

___________________

(1) Our All Other Businesses segment includes the results of our VIDA acquisition from July 2, 2018 through the divestiture date of April 10, 2020.
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This segment consists of BuildASign, which is a larger and profitable business, and two small, rapidly evolving early-stage
businesses through which Cimpress is expanding to new markets. These early-stage businesses continue to have operating losses as
previously described and as planned.

Segment Revenue

All Other Businesses' constant-currency revenue excluding the impact of acquisitions increased by 15% and 12% for the three and
nine months ended March 31, 2021, respectively. This was primarily driven by continued growth at BuildASign, whose home décor and
pandemic-focused signage products continued to generate strong results. BuildASign's strong execution was aided by the business
increasingly leveraging our mass customization platform to drive new product introduction and improve customer experience. Revenue also
grew year over year in our smaller Printi and YSD businesses.

Segment Profitability

Within the All Other Businesses segment, each business improved its profitability for the three and nine months ended March 31,
2021 as compared to the comparable periods, with the overall improvement primarily driven by revenue growth and advertising efficiency in
BuildASign. Printi and YSD reduced losses through revenue growth and improved efficiency. Our divestiture of loss-making VIDA in the
fourth quarter of fiscal year 2020 also contributed to year-over-year profit improvements in the third quarter of fiscal year 2021.

Central and Corporate Costs

Central and corporate costs consist primarily of the team of software engineers that is building our mass customization platform;
shared service organizations such as global procurement; technology services such as hosting and security; administrative costs of our
Cimpress India offices where numerous Cimpress businesses have dedicated business-specific team members; and corporate functions
including our Board of Directors, CEO, and the team members necessary for managing corporate activities, such as treasury, tax, capital
allocation, financial consolidation, internal audit and legal. These costs also include certain unallocated share-based compensation costs.

Central and corporate costs decreased by $4.2 million and $14.3 million during the three and nine months ended March 31, 2021,
respectively, as compared to the prior year periods, due to lower professional fees, share-based compensation expense and discretionary
spend, including travel and training costs. In addition, the lower central costs were also impacted by the prior year reorganization of our
central technology team.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Data

In thousands Nine Months Ended March 31,
 2021 2020

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 218,948 $ 284,061 
Net cash used in investing activities (101,147) (47,813)
Net cash used in financing activities (130,185) (36,756)

At March 31, 2021, we had $36.4 million of cash and cash equivalents and $1,384.1 million of debt, excluding debt issuance costs,
and debt premiums and discounts.

The cash flows during the nine months ended March 31, 2021 related primarily to the following items:

Cash inflows:

• Adjustments for non-cash items of $197.1 million primarily related to positive adjustments for depreciation and amortization of $128.7
million, share-based compensation costs of $23.1 million, unrealized currency-related losses of $20.8 million and $19.9 million of
lease-related long-lived asset impairments

• Total net working capital impacts of $36.8 million were a source of cash. Inventory, accounts payable, and accrued expenses inflows
were partially offset by accounts receivable and other asset outflows
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Cash outflows:

• Net loss of $15.0 million

• Payments of debt of $107.9 million, net of borrowings and inclusive of debt issuance costs

• Internal and external costs of $45.3 million for software and website development that we have capitalized

• Acquisition of 99designs for $36.4 million, net of cash acquired and excluding the deferred payment and post-closing adjustment that
are payable February 15, 2022

• Capital expenditures of $22.7 million of which the majority related to the purchase of manufacturing and automation equipment for
our production facilities

• Payment of withholding taxes in connection with share awards of $5.6 million

• Purchase of noncontrolling interest of $5.1 million and distribution to noncontrolling interest holders of $4.6 million

• Payments for finance lease arrangements of $5.5 million

Additional Liquidity and Capital Resources Information. During the nine months ended March 31, 2021, we financed our operations
and strategic investments through internally generated cash flows from operations and debt financing. As of March 31, 2021, a portion of our
cash and cash equivalents were held by our subsidiaries, and undistributed earnings of our subsidiaries that are considered to be indefinitely
reinvested were $41.4 million. We do not intend to repatriate these funds as the cash and cash equivalent balances are generally used and
available, without legal restrictions, to fund ordinary business operations and investments of the respective subsidiaries. If there is a change
in the future, the repatriation of undistributed earnings from certain subsidiaries, in the form of dividends or otherwise, could have tax
consequences that could result in material cash outflows.

As described in Note 15 of our accompanying consolidated financial statements, we expect to refinance our 12% Second Lien Notes
in May 2021 at materially improved interest rates. We plan to raise a senior secured Term Loan B that would repay our existing secured debt
and bring liquidity onto the balance sheet. If executed, the transaction would reduce our weighted average cost of capital, provide additional
financial flexibility, and extend the maturity profile of our secured debt.

Debt. As of March 31, 2021, we had aggregate loan commitments from our senior secured credit facility totaling $992.5 million. The
loan commitments consisted of revolving loan borrowings of $329.0 million and term loans of $142.5 million. We have other financial
obligations that constitute additional indebtedness based on the definitions within the credit facility. As of March 31, 2021, the amount
available for borrowing under our senior secured credit facility was as follows:

In thousands
March 31, 2021

Maximum aggregate available for borrowing $ 992,500 
Outstanding borrowings of senior secured credit facility (471,500)
Remaining amount 521,000 
Limitations to borrowing due to debt covenants and other obligations (1) (253,186)

Amount available for borrowing as of March 31, 2021 (2) (3) $ 267,814 

_________________
(1) The debt covenants of our senior secured credit facility limit our borrowing capacity each quarter, depending on our leverage and other indebtedness, such as notes, finance

leases, letters of credit, and any other debt, as well as other factors that are outlined in the credit agreement. As of March 31, 2021, we elected to exit the Covenant
Suspension Period early, and entered into an amendment to our senior secured credit agreement which reinstated modified financial maintenance covenants under the
credit agreement. Refer to Note 9 in our accompanying consolidated financial statements for additional information.

(2) The amount available for borrowing reflects borrowings available for incremental debt that would increase our leverage, which is impacted by our leverage covenants.
However, as of March 31, 2021, $516.0 million of unused capacity was available to us assuming any amounts above the amount available for borrowing are used to
refinance our existing second lien notes, under a leverage neutral transaction.

(3) Share purchases, dividend payments, and corporate acquisitions are subject to more restrictive covenants, and therefore we may not be able to use the full amount available
for borrowing for these purposes.
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Debt Covenants. In conjunction with the February 2021 amendment to our senior secured facility, we elected to exit the Covenant
Suspension Period early, and entered into an amendment to our senior secured credit agreement which reinstated modified financial
maintenance covenants under the credit agreement. Refer to Note 9 in our accompanying consolidated financial statements for additional
information.

Other Debt. Other debt primarily consists of term loans acquired through our various acquisitions or used to fund certain capital
investments. As of March 31, 2021, we had $12.6 million outstanding for other debt payable through January 2026.

Contractual Obligations

Contractual obligations at March 31, 2021 are as follows:

In thousands Payments Due by Period

Total

Less
than 1
year

1-3
years

3-5
years

More
than 5
years

Operating leases, net of subleases (1) (2) $ 100,133 $ 26,084 $ 36,638 $ 16,254 $ 21,157 
Purchase commitments 211,311 106,922 88,514 15,875 — 
Senior unsecured notes and interest payments 831,000 42,000 84,000 84,000 621,000 
Second lien notes and interest payments 462,000 36,000 72,000 354,000 — 
Other debt and interest payments (3) 587,789 50,696 94,474 442,619 — 
Finance leases, net of subleases (1) 21,697 8,634 8,963 3,552 548 
Other 44,680 44,586 94 — — 

Total (4) $ 2,258,610 $ 314,922 $ 384,683 $ 916,300 $ 642,705 

___________________

(1) Operating and finance lease payments above include only amounts which are fixed under lease agreements. Our leases may also incur variable expenses which are not
reflected in the contractual obligations above.

(2) On January 6, 2021, we amended our Waltham lease agreement to reduce the amount of space leased. As part of the agreement, as of March 31, 2021, we had a remaining
obligation of $4.4 million for the lease termination penalty that was paid on April 1, 2021. We have separately entered into a lease agreement for a new office space in
Waltham, Massachusetts, which will commence on June 1, 2021. The amended lease terms, combined with the new lease agreement, resulted in a reduction to total lease
commitments of $44.6 million, exclusive of the termination penalty. Refer to Note 13 in our accompanying consolidated financial statements for additional details.

(3) Other debt and interest payments include the effects of interest rate swaps, whether they are expected to be payments or receipts of cash. We have excluded the effect of
interest rate swaps of $0.5 million within the more than five years category above as that period extends beyond the term of our debt and the interest rate swaps do not yet
offset contractual interest payments.

(4) We may be required to make cash outlays related to our uncertain tax positions. However, due to the uncertainty of the timing of future cash flows associated with our
uncertain tax positions, we are unable to make reasonably reliable estimates of the period of cash settlement, if any, with the respective taxing authorities. Accordingly,
uncertain tax positions of $9.0 million as of March 31, 2021 have been excluded from the contractual obligations table above. See Note 10 in our accompanying
consolidated financial statements for further information on uncertain tax positions.

Operating Leases. We rent office space under operating leases expiring on various dates through 2034. The terms of certain lease
agreements require security deposits in the form of bank guarantees and letters of credit in the amount of $2.4 million.

Purchase Commitments. At March 31, 2021, we had unrecorded commitments under contract of $211.3 million. Purchase
commitments consisted of third-party web services of $96.7 million, software of $54.5 million, inventory and third-party fulfillment purchase
commitments of $19.0 million, advertising of $15.1 million, , commitments for professional and consulting fees of $7.4 million, production and
computer equipment purchases of $2.4 million and other unrecorded purchase commitments of $16.2 million.

Senior Unsecured Notes and Interest Payments. Our senior unsecured notes due 2026 bear interest at a rate of 7.0% per annum
and mature on June 15, 2026. Interest on the notes is payable semi-annually on June 15 and December 15 of each year and has been
included in the table above.

Second Lien Notes and Interest Payments. Our senior secured notes due 2025 bear interest at a rate of 12.0% per annum and
mature on May 15, 2025. Interest on the notes is payable semi-annually on May 15 and November 15 of each year and has been included in
the table above. At our option, we may elect to pay interest on
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up to 50.0% of the then outstanding principal amount of the notes as paid-in-kind and applied to the outstanding principal balance of the
notes.

Other Debt and Interest Payments. At March 31, 2021, the term loans of $142.5 million outstanding under our credit agreement had
repayments due on various dates through November 15, 2024, with the revolving loans outstanding under our $329.0 million revolving credit
facility due on November 15, 2024. Interest payable included in this table is based on the interest rate as of March 31, 2021, and assumes all
LIBOR-based revolving loan amounts outstanding will not be paid until maturity, but that the term loan amortization payments will be made
according to our defined schedule and all Prime rate based revolving loan amounts will be paid within a year. Interest payable includes the
estimated impact of our interest rate swap agreements. 

In addition, we have other debt which consists primarily of term loans acquired through our various acquisitions or used to fund
certain capital investments, and as of March 31, 2021 we had $12.6 million outstanding for those obligations that have repayments due on
various dates through January 2026.

Finance Leases. We lease certain machinery and plant equipment under finance lease agreements that expire at various dates
through 2027. The aggregate carrying value of the leased equipment under finance leases included in property, plant and equipment, net in
our consolidated balance sheet at March 31, 2021 is $59.9 million, net of accumulated depreciation of $39.9 million. The present value of
lease installments not yet due included in other current liabilities and other liabilities in our consolidated balance sheet at March 31, 2021
amounts to $27.0 million.

Other Obligations. Other obligations include deferred payments related to previous acquisitions of $44.7 million in the aggregate.This
balance includes the deferred payment related to the 99designs acquisition totaling $43.7 million. Refer to Note 7 in our accompanying
consolidated financial statements for additional details.

Additional Non-GAAP Financial Measures

Adjusted EBITDA and adjusted free cash flow presented below, and constant-currency revenue growth and constant-currency
revenue growth excluding acquisitions/divestitures presented in the consolidated results of operations section above, are supplemental
measures of our performance that are not required by, or presented in accordance with, GAAP. Adjusted EBITDA is defined as GAAP
operating income plus depreciation and amortization plus share-based compensation expense plus proceeds from insurance plus earn-out
related charges plus certain impairments plus restructuring related charges plus realized gains or losses on currency derivatives less interest
expense related to our Waltham, Massachusetts office lease less gain on purchase or sale of subsidiaries.

Adjusted EBITDA is the primary profitability metric by which we measure our consolidated financial performance and is provided to
enhance investors' understanding of our current operating results from the underlying and ongoing business for the same reasons it is used
by management. For example, as we have become more acquisitive over recent years we believe excluding the costs related to the
purchase of a business (such as amortization of acquired intangible assets, contingent consideration, or impairment of goodwill) provides
further insight into the performance of the underlying acquired business in addition to that provided by our GAAP operating income. As
another example, as we do not apply hedge accounting for certain derivative contracts, we believe inclusion of realized gains and losses on
these contracts that are intended to be matched against operational currency fluctuations provides further insight into our operating
performance in addition to that provided by our GAAP operating income. We do not, nor do we suggest that investors should, consider such
non-GAAP financial measures in isolation from, or as a substitute for, financial information prepared in accordance with GAAP.

Adjusted free cash flow is the primary financial metric by which we set quarterly and annual budgets both for individual businesses
and Cimpress-wide. Adjusted free cash flow is defined as net cash provided by operating activities less purchases of property, plant and
equipment, purchases of intangible assets not related to acquisitions, and capitalization of software and website development costs that are
included in net cash used in investing activities, plus the payment of contingent consideration in excess of acquisition-date fair value and
gains on proceeds from insurance that are included in net cash provided by operating activities, if any. We use this cash flow metric because
we believe that this methodology can provide useful supplemental information to help investors better understand our ability to generate cash
flow after considering certain investments required to maintain or grow our business, as well as eliminate the impact of certain cash flow
items presented as operating cash flows that we do not believe reflect the cash flow generated by the underlying business.
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Our adjusted free cash flow measure has limitations as it may omit certain components of the overall cash flow statement and does
not represent the residual cash flow available for discretionary expenditures. For example, adjusted free cash flow does not incorporate our
cash payments to reduce the principal portion of our debt or cash payments for business acquisitions. Additionally, the mix of property, plant
and equipment purchases that we choose to finance may change over time. We believe it is important to view our adjusted free cash flow
measure only as a complement to our entire consolidated statement of cash flows.

The table below sets forth operating income and adjusted EBITDA for the three and nine months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020:

In thousands Three Months Ended March 31, Nine Months Ended March 31,
2021 2020 2021 2020

GAAP operating (loss) income $ (15,697) $ (87,736) $ 114,483 $ 59,238 
Exclude expense (benefit) impact of:

Depreciation and amortization 42,809 41,840 128,696 126,731 
Proceeds from insurance 122 — 122 — 
Share-based compensation expense (1) 9,545 8,908 23,071 21,983 
Certain impairments and other adjustments (2) 20,563 101,976 21,131 102,736 
Restructuring-related charges (382) 919 1,714 5,006 
Realized (losses) gains on currency derivatives not included in
operating (loss) income

(1,936) 5,001 (2,297) 20,247 

Adjusted EBITDA $ 55,024 $ 70,908 $ 286,920 $ 335,941 

_________________
(1) The adjustment for share-based compensation expense excludes the portion of share-based compensation expense included in restructuring related charges, if any, to avoid

double counting.
(2) During the three months ended March 31, 2021, we recognized impairment and abandonment charges of $19.9 million for the change in nature of use for two of our leased

locations. These impairment and abandonment charges are classified within general and administrative expense in the consolidated statement of operations. Refer to Note 2
in our accompanying financial statements for more information. We also recognized $0.6 million of loss for the routine disposal of fixed assets and impairment of capitalized
software during the three months ended March 31, 2021.

The table below sets forth net cash provided by operating activities and adjusted free cash flow for the nine months ended March 31,
2021 and 2020:

In thousands Nine Months Ended March 31,
2021 2020

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 218,948 $ 284,061 
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (22,736) (38,638)
Capitalization of software and website development costs (45,321) (35,824)

Adjusted free cash flow $ 150,891 $ 209,599 
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Interest Rate Risk. Our exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to our cash, cash equivalents and debt.

As of March 31, 2021, our cash and cash equivalents consisted of standard depository accounts which are held for working capital
purposes. We do not believe we have a material exposure to interest rate fluctuations related to our cash and cash equivalents.

As of March 31, 2021, we had $471.5 million of variable-rate debt. As a result, we have exposure to market risk for changes in
interest rates related to these obligations. In order to mitigate our exposure to interest rate changes related to our variable rate debt, we
execute interest rate swap contracts to fix the interest rate on a portion of our outstanding or forecasted long-term debt with varying
maturities. As of March 31, 2021, a hypothetical 100 basis point increase in rates, inclusive of our outstanding interest rate swaps, would
result in an immaterial impact to interest expense over the next 12 months.

Currency Exchange Rate Risk. We conduct business in multiple currencies through our worldwide operations but report our financial
results in U.S. dollars. We manage these currency risks through normal operating activities and, when deemed appropriate, through the use
of derivative financial instruments. We have policies governing the use of derivative instruments and do not enter into financial instruments
for trading or speculative purposes. The use of derivatives is intended to reduce, but does not entirely eliminate, the impact of adverse
currency exchange rate movements. A summary of our currency risk is as follows:

• Translation of our non-U.S. dollar revenues and expenses: Revenue and related expenses generated in currencies other than the
U.S. dollar could result in higher or lower net income when, upon consolidation, those transactions are translated to U.S. dollars.
When the value or timing of revenue and expenses in a given currency are materially different, we may be exposed to significant
impacts on our net income and non-GAAP financial metrics, such as adjusted EBITDA.

Our currency hedging objectives are targeted at reducing volatility in our forecasted U.S. dollar-equivalent adjusted EBITDA in order
to protect our debt covenants. Since adjusted EBITDA excludes non-cash items such as depreciation and amortization that are
included in net income, we may experience increased, not decreased, volatility in our GAAP results due to our hedging approach.
Our most significant net currency exposures by volume are in the Euro and British Pound.

In addition, we elect to execute currency derivatives contracts that do not qualify for hedge accounting. As a result, we may
experience volatility in our consolidated statements of operations due to (i) the impact of unrealized gains and losses reported in
other income (expense), net on the mark-to-market of outstanding contracts and (ii) realized gains and losses recognized in other
income (expense), net, whereas the offsetting economic gains and losses are reported in the line item of the underlying activity, for
example, revenue.

• Translation of our non-U.S. dollar assets and liabilities: Each of our subsidiaries translates its assets and liabilities to U.S. dollars at
current rates of exchange in effect at the balance sheet date. The resulting gains and losses from translation are included as a
component of accumulated other comprehensive loss on the consolidated balance sheet. Fluctuations in exchange rates can
materially impact the carrying value of our assets and liabilities.

We have currency exposure arising from our net investments in foreign operations. We enter into currency derivatives to mitigate the
impact of currency rate changes on certain net investments.

• Remeasurement of monetary assets and liabilities: Transaction gains and losses generated from remeasurement of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of a subsidiary are included in other income (expense),
net on the consolidated statements of operations. Certain of our subsidiaries hold intercompany loans denominated in a currency
other than their functional currency. Due to the significance of these balances, the revaluation of intercompany loans can have a
material impact on other income (expense), net. We expect these impacts may be volatile in the
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future, although our largest intercompany loans do not have a U.S. dollar cash impact for the consolidated group because they are
either 1) U.S. dollar loans or 2) we elect to hedge certain non-U.S. dollar loans with cross-currency swaps. A hypothetical 10%
change in currency exchange rates was applied to total net monetary assets denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies at the balance sheet dates to compute the impact these changes would have had on our income before taxes in the near
term. The balances are inclusive of the notional value of any cross-currency swaps designated as cash flow hedges. A hypothetical
decrease in exchange rates of 10% against the functional currency of our subsidiaries would have resulted in a increase of $3.3
million and $14.5 million, respectively, on our (loss) income before income taxes for the three months ended March 31, 2021 and
2020 respectively.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures as of March 31, 2021. The term “disclosure controls and procedures,” as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and
15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, or the Exchange Act, means controls and other procedures of a company that are
designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and
procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company in
the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the company’s management, including its
principal executive and principal financial officers, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Management
recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of
achieving their objectives and management necessarily applies its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls
and procedures. Based on the evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of March 31, 2021, our chief executive officer and
chief financial officer concluded that, as of such date, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the reasonable assurance
level.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no significant changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under
the Exchange Act) during the three months ended March 31, 2021 that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our
internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the information set forth in Item 1 of Part I, “Financial
Statements - Note 13 — Commitments and Contingencies,” in the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements included in
this Report.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

There have been no material changes with respect to the risk factors we disclosed in our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2020 and our Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2020.

Item 2.        Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

On November 25, 2019, we announced that our Board had authorized us to repurchase up to 5,500,000 of our issued and
outstanding ordinary shares on the open market (including block trades), through privately negotiated transactions, or in one or more self-
tender offers. This repurchase program expires on May 22, 2021, and we may suspend or discontinue our share repurchases at any time.
We did not purchase any of our ordinary shares during the three months ended March 31, 2021.
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Item 6. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

Exhibit
No.  Description
10.1 Amendment No. 5, dated as of February 16, 2021, among Cimpress plc, Vistaprint Limited, Cimpress Schweiz GmbH, Vistaprint B.V., and

Cimpress USA Incorporated, as borrowers (the “Borrowers”); the lenders named therein as lenders; and JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A., as
administrative agent for the lenders (the “Administrative Agent”), to the senior secured Credit Agreement dated as of October 21, 2011, as
amended and restated as of February 8, 2013, as further amended and restated as of July 13, 2017, and as previously amended, among the
Borrowers, the lenders named therein, and the Administrative Agent is incorporated by reference to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with
the SEC on February 18, 2021

31.1 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), by Chief Executive Officer
31.2 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), by Chief Financial Officer
32.1 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, by Chief Executive

Officer and Chief Financial Officer
101 The following materials from this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, formatted in Inline Extensible Business Reporting Language (iXBRL): (i)

Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii) Consolidated Statements of Operations, (iii) Statements of Shareholder's Equity, (iv) Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows and (v) Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as iXBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

April 29, 2021                         Cimpress plc                                                    

 By: /s/ Sean E. Quinn
Sean E. Quinn

Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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EXECUTION COPY

AMENDMENT NO. 5

Dated as of February 16, 2021

to

CREDIT AGREEMENT

Dated as of October 21, 2011
as amended and restated as of February 8, 2013

and as further amended and restated as of July 13, 2017

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 5 (this “Amendment”) is made as of February 16, 2021 by and among Cimpress plc (the
“Company”), Vistaprint Limited, Cimpress Schweiz GmbH, Vistaprint B.V. and Cimpress USA Incorporated (collectively, the “Subsidiary
Borrowers” and, together with the Company, the “Borrowers”), the financial institutions listed on the signature pages hereof and JPMorgan
Chase Bank, N.A., in its capacity as administrative agent for the Lenders (the “Administrative Agent”), under that certain Credit Agreement
dated as of October 21, 2011, as amended and restated as of February 8, 2013 and as further amended and restated as of July 13, 2017, by and
among the Borrowers, the Lenders from time to time party thereto and the Administrative Agent (as amended, restated, supplemented or
otherwise modified from time to time prior to the date hereof, the “Credit Agreement”). Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise
defined herein shall have the respective meanings given to them in the Amended Credit Agreement (as defined below).

WHEREAS, the Company has requested that the requisite Lenders and the Administrative Agent agree to certain
amendments to the Credit Agreement;

WHEREAS, the definition of “Maturity Date” in the Credit Agreement does not make clear that clause (ii) of such definition
is only applicable if any Indebtedness under the Second Lien Notes Documents is actually outstanding;

WHEREAS, pursuant to and in accordance with Section 9.02(f) of the Credit Agreement, the Administrative Agent and the
Borrowers have agreed to amend the Credit Agreement in order to cure such ambiguity in the definition of “Maturity Date” on the terms and
conditions set forth herein, by making clear that clause (ii) of such definition is only applicable if any Indebtedness under the Second Lien
Notes Documents is actually outstanding; and

WHEREAS, the Borrowers, the Lenders party hereto and the Administrative Agent have agreed to amend the Credit
Agreement on the terms and conditions set forth herein;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises set forth above, the terms and conditions contained herein, and other
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto hereby agree to enter into
this Amendment.

1.    Amendments to the Credit Agreement. Effective as of the date of satisfaction of the conditions precedent set forth in
Section 2 below, the parties hereto agree that (i) the Credit
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Agreement shall be amended to delete the stricken text (indicated textually in the same manner as the following example: stricken text) and
to add the double-underlined text (indicated textually in the same manner as the following example: double-underlined text) as set forth in the
pages of the Credit Agreement attached as Annex A hereto and (ii) Schedules 3.01A, 3.01B, 6.01, 6.02, 6.03 and 6.04 to the Credit
Agreement shall be amended and restated to read in their entirety as Schedules 3.01A, 3.01B, 6.01, 6.02 and 6.04 attached hereto (the Credit
Agreement as amended pursuant to this Section 1, the “Amended Credit Agreement”) and (ii) based on the receipt of the certificate
contemplated by Section 2(c) below, the Covenant Suspension Period is terminated concurrently with the effectiveness of this amendment
and is of no further force or effect under the Amended Credit Agreement.

2.    Conditions of Effectiveness. This Amendment shall become effective as of the first date (the “Amendment Effective
Date”) on which each of the following conditions shall have been satisfied:

(a)    The Administrative Agent shall have received counterparts of this Amendment duly executed by (i) with respect to all
amendments and other modifications to the Credit Agreement contemplated by this Amendment other than the amendment to the definition
of “Maturity Date”, the Borrowers, the Required Lenders and the Administrative Agent and (ii) solely with respect to the amendment to the
definition of “Maturity Date”, the Borrowers and the Administrative Agent.

(b)    The Administrative Agent shall have received counterparts of the Consent and Reaffirmation attached as Exhibit A
hereto duly executed by the Guarantors.

(c)    The Administrative Agent shall have received a certificate of a Financial Officer of the Company (i) attaching
Financials for the Company’s fiscal quarter ending December 31, 2020, together with the compliance certificate required by Section 5.01(c)
of the Credit Agreement demonstrating that the Company was in compliance with Section 6.12 of the Credit Agreement as such Section 6.12
was in effect on the Amendment No. 4 Effective Date immediately prior to giving effect to Amendment No. 4, as of the end of such fiscal
quarter (ii) notifying the Administrative Agent that the Company elects to end the Covenant Suspension Period and (iii) certifying that a
“Covenant Reset Event” (as defined in the Second Lien Notes Indenture as in effect on the Amendment No. 4 Effective Date) has occurred.

(d)    The Administrative Agent shall have received (i) for the account of each Lender that delivers its executed signature
page to this Amendment by no later than the date and time specified by the Administrative Agent, a consent fee in an amount equal to the
applicable amount previously disclosed to such Lenders and (ii) all fees and other amounts due and payable on or prior to the Amendment
Effective Date, including, to the extent invoiced, reimbursement or payment of all out-of-pocket expenses required to be reimbursed or paid
by the Company under the Amended Credit Agreement.

The Administrative Agent shall notify the Company and the Lenders of the Amendment Effective Date, and such notice shall
be conclusive and binding.

3.    Representations and Warranties of the Borrowers. Each Borrower hereby represents and warrants as follows:

(a)    This Amendment and the Amended Credit Agreement constitute legal, valid and binding obligations of such Borrower
and are enforceable in accordance with their terms, subject to

2



(i) applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, examinership, reorganization, moratorium or other laws affecting creditors’ rights generally and (ii)
general principles of equity, regardless of whether such enforceability is considered in a proceeding in equity or at law.

(b)    As of the date hereof and immediately after giving effect to the terms of this Amendment, (i) no Event of Default or
Default has occurred and is continuing and (ii) the representations and warranties of such Borrower set forth in the Amended Credit
Agreement are true and correct in all material respects, except to the extent such representation and warranty is qualified by Material Adverse
Effect or other materiality qualification, in which case such representation and warranty is true and correct in all respects.

4.    Reference to and Effect on the Credit Agreement.

(a)    From and after the effectiveness of the amendment to the Credit Agreement evidenced hereby, the terms “Agreement”,
“this Agreement”, “herein”, “hereinafter”, “hereto”, “hereof” and words of similar import, as used in the Amended Credit Agreement, shall,
unless the context otherwise requires, refer to the Amended Credit Agreement, and the term “Credit Agreement”, as used in the other Loan
Documents, shall mean the Amended Credit Agreement.

(b)    Each Loan Document and all other documents, instruments and agreements executed and/or delivered in connection
therewith shall remain in full force and effect and are hereby ratified and confirmed. Without limitation of the foregoing, each Borrower
confirms, acknowledges and agrees that: (a) each of the Collateral Documents to which it is a party shall secure all monies, obligations and
liabilities whatsoever whether principal, interest or otherwise now or hereafter due, owing or incurred by such Borrower to any Secured Party
whether collectively or individually under or in connection with the Loan Documents; and (b) each of the Collateral Documents (and the
security interests created thereby) shall continue in full force and effect as continuing security for all obligations expressed to be secured
thereunder and under the Amended Credit Agreement and shall continue to constitute the legal, valid and binding obligations of each
Borrower party thereto enforceable in accordance with its terms. In respect of the Loan Documents governed by Dutch law, each of the
Borrowers party thereto hereby confirms and agrees that (i) at the time of the entering into the Loan Documents governed by Dutch law, it
was their intention (and it is still their intention and agreement) that any security right created under such Loan Document to secure the
Secured Obligations (as defined in such Loan Document) as amended from time to time, including by the amendments as included in this
Amendment, and (ii) any amount owed by the Loan Parties under the Credit Agreement as amended by and in accordance with the terms of
this Amendment are part of the definition of the “Secured Obligations” (as defined in the Loan Documents governed by Dutch law), a
“Parallel Debt” (as defined in Article VIII of the Credit Agreement and Section 33 of the Guaranty) and the “Corresponding Obligations” as
defined in the Credit Agreement.

(c)    The execution, delivery and effectiveness of this Amendment shall not operate as a waiver of any right, power or
remedy of the Administrative Agent or the Lenders, nor constitute a waiver of any provision of the Credit Agreement, the Amended Credit
Agreement, the Loan Documents or any other documents, instruments and agreements executed and/or delivered in connection therewith.

(d)    This Amendment is a Loan Document under (and as defined in) the Amended Credit Agreement.

5.    No Novation. This Amendment shall not extinguish the Loans or other obligations outstanding under the Credit
Agreement.
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6.    Governing Law. This Amendment shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of New
York. Each Borrower hereby submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of any United States federal or New York State court sitting in the City of
New York in any action or proceeding arising out of or relating to this Amendment and each Borrower hereby irrevocably agrees that all
claims in respect of such action or proceeding may be heard and determined in any such court and irrevocably waives any objection it may
now or hereafter have as to the venue of such suit, action or proceeding brought in such a court or that such court is an inconvenient forum.

7.    Headings. Section headings in this Amendment are included herein for convenience of reference only and shall not
constitute a part of this Amendment for any other purpose.

8.    Counterparts. This Amendment may be executed by one or more of the parties hereto on any number of separate
counterparts, and all of said counterparts taken together shall be deemed to constitute one and the same instrument. The words “execution,”
“signed,” “signature,” “delivery,” and words of like import in or relating to this Amendment and/or any document to be signed in connection
with this Amendment and the transactions contemplated hereby shall be deemed to include Electronic Signatures (as defined below),
deliveries or the keeping of records in electronic form, each of which shall be of the same legal effect, validity or enforceability as a manually
executed signature, physical delivery thereof or the use of a paper-based recordkeeping system, as the case may be. As used herein,
“Electronic Signatures” means any electronic symbol or process attached to, or associated with, any contract or other record and adopted by a
person with the intent to sign, authenticate or accept such contract or record.

[Signature Pages Follow]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment to be duly executed and delivered by their respective
authorized officers as of the day and year first above written.

CIMPRESS PLC, as the Company

By:/s/Robert Keane
Name: Robert Keane

Title: Chief Executive Officer, Chairman, and Director

VISTAPRINT LIMITED, as a Borrower

By:/s/Sean Quinn
Name: Sean Quinn
Title: President and Chairman

CIMPRESS SCHWEIZ GMBH, as a Borrower

By: /s/Sean Quinn
Name: Sean Quinn
Title: Managing Officer

VISTAPRINT B.V., as a Borrower

By: /s/Sean Quinn
Name: Sean Quinn
Title: Managing Director

CIMPRESS USA INCORPORATED, as a Borrower

By: /s/Sean Quinn
Name: Sean Quinn
Title: President
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JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A.,
individually as a Lender and as Administrative Agent

By: /s/Daglas Panchal
Name: Daglas Panchal
Title: Executive Director

BANK OF AMERICA, N.A., as a Lender

By: /s/David Flagg
Name: David Flagg
Title: Vice President

MUFG UNION BANK, N.A., as a Lender

By: /s/Liwei Liu
Name: Liwei Liu
Title: Vice President

TRUIST BANK, as a Lender

By: /s/Alfonso Brigham
Name: Alfonso Brigham
Title: Vice President

FIFTH THIRD BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as a Lender

By: /s/Chase Hoffman
Name: Chase Hoffman
Title: Officer

HSBC BANK USA, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as a Lender

By: /s/Shaun R Kleinman
Name: Shaun R Kleinman
Title: Senior Vice President
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BMO HARRIS BANK N.A., as a Lender

By: /s/Andrew Berryman
Name: Andrew Berryman
Title: Director

CITIBANK, N.A., as a Lender

By: /s/Stephen J. White
Name: Stephen J. White
Title: Director

CAPITAL ONE, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as a Lender

By: /s/Elizabeth Masciopinto
Name: Elizabeth Masciopinto
Title: Duly Authorized Signatory

KEYBANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as a Lender

By: /s/Louise Roussel
Name: Louise Roussel
Title: Senior Banker

PNC BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as a Lender

By: /s/Timothy J. Ambrose
Name: Timothy J. Ambrose
Title: Vice President

CITIZENS BANK, N.A., as a Lender

By: /s/Stephen Andersen
Name: Stephen Andersen
Title: Assistant Vice President
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PEOPLE’S UNITED BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as a Lender

By: /s/Darci Buchanan
Name: Darci Buchanan
Title: Senior Vice President

THE GOVERNOR AND COMPANY OF THE BANK OF IRELAND, as a Lender

By: /s/Rachel Kelly
Name: Rachel Kelly
Title: Manager

By: /s/Keith Hughes
Name: Keith Hughes
Title: Director

THE HUNTINGTON NATIONAL BANK, as a Lender

By: /s/Scott Pritchett
Name: Scott Pritchett
Title: Assistant Vice President

RAYMOND JAMES BANK, N.A., as a Lender

By: /s/Mark Specht
Name: Mark Specht
Title: Vice President

WEBSTER BANK, as a Lender

By: /s/Samuel Pepe
Name: Samuel Pepe
Title: V.P.

Signature Page to Amendment No. 5 to
Credit Agreement dated as of October 21, 2011,
as amended and restated as of February 8, 2013

and as further amended and restated as of July 13, 2017



GOLDMAN SACHS BANK USA, as a Lender

By: /s/Mahesh Mohan
Name: Mahesh Mohan
Title: Authorized Signatory

ROCKLAND TRUST COMPANY, as a Lender

By: /s/Gretchen Troiano
Name: Gretchen Troiano
Title: Vice President

BANNER BANK, as a Lender

By: /s/Thomas Marks
Name: Thomas Marks
Title: Vice President

TRISTATE CAPITAL BANK, as a Lender

By: /s/Ellen Frank
Name: Ellen Frank
Title: Senior Vice President
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ANNEX A

CREDIT AGREEMENT

dated as of

October 21, 2011
as amended and restated as of February 8, 2013

and as further amended and restated as of July 13, 2017

among

CIMPRESS PLC

VISTAPRINT LIMITED

CIMPRESS SCHWEIZ GMBH

VISTAPRINT B.V.

CIMPRESS USA INCORPORATED

The Other Subsidiary Borrowers Party Hereto

The Lenders Party Hereto

JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A.

as Administrative Agent
BANK OF AMERICA, N.A., BMO HARRIS BANK N.A. and MUFG UNION BANK, N.A.

as Co-Syndication Agents
and

CAPITAL ONE, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, CITIBANK, N.A.,
CITIZENS BANK, N.A., FIFTH THIRD BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,

HSBC BANK USA, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, KEYBANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
PNC BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION and TRUIST BANK

as Co-Documentation Agents
___________________________________

JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A., BofA SECURITIES, INC.,
BMO CAPITAL MARKETS CORP. and MUFG UNION BANK, N.A.

as Joint Bookrunners and Joint Lead Arrangers
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“Amendment No. 1 Effective Date” means June 14, 2018.

“Amendment No. 2 Effective Date” means January 7, 2019.

“Amendment No. 3” means that certain Amendment No. 3 to this Agreement, dated as of February 13, 2020, by and among
the Borrowers, the Lenders party thereto, the “Amendment No. 3 Departing Lenders” (as defined in such Amendment No. 3) and the
Administrative Agent.

“Amendment No. 3 Effective Date” means February 13, 2020.

“Amendment No. 4” means that certain Amendment No. 4 to this Agreement, dated as of April 28, 2020, by and among the
Borrowers, the Lenders party thereto and the Administrative Agent.

“Amendment No. 4 Effective Date” means the date on which each of the conditions set forth in Amendment No. 4 have been
satisfied in accordance with the terms thereof.

“Amendment No. 5 Effective Date” means February 16, 2021.

“Ancillary Document” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 9.06.

“Anti-Corruption Laws” means, at any time, all laws, rules, and regulations of any jurisdiction applicable to the Company or
its Subsidiaries at such time concerning or relating to bribery or corruption.

“Applicable Party” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 8.02(c).

“Applicable Percentage” means, with respect to any Lender, (a) with respect to Revolving Loans, LC Exposure or Swingline
Loans, the percentage equal to a fraction the numerator of which is such Lender’s Revolving Commitment and the denominator of which is
the aggregate Revolving Commitments of all Revolving Lenders (if the Revolving Commitments of any Class have terminated or expired,
the Applicable Percentages shall be determined based upon the Revolving Commitments of such Class most recently in effect, giving effect
to any assignments), (b) with respect to the Initial CUSA Term Loans, a percentage equal to a fraction the numerator of which is such
Lender’s outstanding principal amount of the Initial CUSA Term Loans and the denominator of which is the aggregate outstanding principal
amount of the Initial CUSA Term Loans of all Term Lenders, (c) with respect to the Initial Company Term Loans, a percentage equal to a
fraction the numerator of which is such Lender’s outstanding principal amount of the Initial Company Term Loans and the denominator of
which is the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the Initial Company Term Loans of all Term Lenders and (d) with respect to the 2019
CUSA Term Loans, a percentage equal to a fraction the numerator of which is such Lender’s outstanding principal amount of the 2019
CUSA Term Loans and the denominator of which is the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the 2019 CUSA Term Loans of all Term
Lenders; provided that, with respect to the calculation set forth in the foregoing clauses (a), (b), (c) and (d), in the case of Section 2.24 when
a Defaulting Lender shall exist, any such Defaulting Lender’s Revolving Commitment, Initial CUSA Term Loan Commitment, Initial
Company Term Loan Commitment and/or 2019 CUSA Term Loan Commitment, as applicable, shall be disregarded in the applicable
calculation.

“Applicable Pledge Percentage” means 100% but 65% in the case of a pledge by a U.S. Loan Party of its Equity Interests in
an Affected Foreign Subsidiary, but solely to the extent such pledge secures a Loan or Commitment extended to a Borrower that is a U.S.
Person.

“Applicable Rate” means, for any day, with respect to any Eurocurrency Loan or any ABR Loan, or with respect to the
commitment fees payable hereunder, as the case may be, the applicable
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rate per annum set forth below under the caption “Eurocurrency Spread”, “ABR Spread” or “Commitment Fee Rate”, as the case may be,
based upon the Leverage Ratio applicable on such date:

Leverage Ratio: Eurocurrency Spread ABR Spread Commitment Fee Rate

Category 1: ≤ 2.00 to 1.00 2.50% 1.50% 0.35%

Category 2: > 2.00 to 1.00 but 
≤ 3.00 to 1.00

2.75% 1.75% 0.40%

Category 3: > 3.00 to 1.00 but 
≤ 4.00 to 1.00

3.00% 2.00% 0.45%

Category 4: > 4.00 to 1.00 3.25% 2.25% 0.50%

For purposes of the foregoing,

(i) if at any time the Company fails to deliver the Financials on or before the date the Financials are due pursuant to
Section 5.01, Category 4 shall be deemed applicable for the period commencing three (3) Business Days after the required date of
delivery and ending on the date which is three (3) Business Days after the Financials are actually delivered, after which the relevant
Category shall be determined in accordance with the table above as applicable;

(ii) adjustments, if any, to the Category then in effect shall be effective three (3) Business Days after the Administrative
Agent has received the applicable Financials (it being understood and agreed that each change in Category shall apply during the
period commencing on the effective date of such change and ending on the date immediately preceding the effective date of the next
such change); and

(iii) notwithstanding the foregoing, “Applicable Rate” shall have the meaning set forth in the immediately below
paragraphfrom and after the Amendment No. 5 Effective Date, Category 3 shall be deemed to be applicable until the
Administrative Agent’s receipt of the applicable Financials for the Company’s first fiscal quarter of the Company which
demonstrate that the Covenant Suspension Period has terminated pursuant to the terms of the definition thereof,ending after
the Amendment No. 5 Effective Date and adjustments to the applicable ratesCategory then in effect shall thereafter be effected in
accordance with the preceding paragraphs.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein or in any other Loan Document, at all times during the Covenant
Suspension Period, “Applicable Rate” shall mean, for any day, with respect to any Eurocurrency Loan or any ABR Loan, or with
respect to the commitment fees payable hereunder, as the case may be, the applicable rate per annum set forth below under the
caption “Eurocurrency Spread”, “ABR Spread” or “Commitment Fee Rate”, as the case may be:

Eurocurrency Spread ABR Spread Commitment Fee Rate
3.25% 2.25% 0.50%

“Approved Electronic Platform” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 8.02(a).
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“Approved Fund” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 9.04.

“Arranger” means each of JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., BofA Securities, Inc., BMO Capital Markets Corp. and MUFG
Union Bank, N.A. in its capacity as a joint bookrunner and a joint lead arranger hereunder.

“Assignment and Assumption” means an assignment and assumption agreement entered into by a Lender and an assignee
(with the consent of any party whose consent is required by Section 9.04), and accepted by the Administrative Agent, in the form of
Exhibit A or any other form (including electronic records generated by the use of an electronic platform) approved by the Administrative
Agent.

“Augmenting Lender” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.20.

“Availability Period” means the period from and including the Restatement Effective Date to but excluding the earlier of the
Maturity Date and the date of termination of the Revolving Commitments.

“Available Liquidity” means, as of any date of determination, the sum of (i) unrestricted and unencumbered (other
than Permitted Encumbrances) cash and cash equivalents of the Loan Parties, plus (ii) the aggregate Available Revolving
Commitments, in each case, as of such date.

“Available Revolving Commitment” means, at any time with respect to any Lender, the Revolving Commitment of such
Lender then in effect minus the Revolving Credit Exposure of such Lender at such time; it being understood and agreed that any Lender’s
Swingline Exposure shall not be deemed to be a component of the Revolving Credit Exposure for purposes of calculating the commitment
fee under Section 2.12(a).

“Bail-In Action” means the exercise of any Write-Down and Conversion Powers by the applicable Resolution Authority in
respect of any liability of an Affected Financial Institution.

“Bail-In Legislation” means, (a) with respect to any EEA Member Country implementing Article 55 of Directive
2014/59/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of the European Union, the implementing law, regulation, rule or requirement for
such EEA Member Country from time to time which is described in the EU Bail-In Legislation Schedule and (b) with respect to the United
Kingdom, Part I of the United Kingdom Banking Act 2009 (as amended from time to time) and any other law, regulation or rule applicable in
the United Kingdom relating to the resolution of unsound or failing banks, investment firms or other financial institutions or their affiliates
(other than through liquidation, administration or other insolvency proceedings).

“Banking Services” means each and any of the following bank services provided to the Company or any Subsidiary by any
Lender or any of its Affiliates: (a) credit cards for commercial customers (including, without limitation, commercial credit cards and
purchasing cards), (b) stored value cards, (c) merchant processing services, (d) treasury management services (including, without limitation,
controlled disbursement, automated clearinghouse transactions, return items, any direct debit scheme or arrangement, overdrafts and
interstate depository network services) and (e) supply chain finance solutions.
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“Commodity Exchange Act” means the Commodity Exchange Act (7 U.S.C. § 1 et seq.), as amended from time to time, and
any successor statute.

“Communications” means, collectively, any notice, demand, communication, information, document or other material
provided by or on behalf of any Loan Party pursuant to any Loan Document or the transactions contemplated therein which is distributed by
the Administrative Agent, any Lender or any Issuing Bank by means of electronic communications pursuant to Section 8.02(c), including
through an Approved Electronic Platform.

“Company” means Cimpress plc, a public company with limited liability incorporated in Ireland with its registered address at
Building D, Xerox Technology Park, Dundalk, Co. Louth and having registered number 607465 (as successor by merger to Cimpress N.V., a
naamloze vennootschap organized under the laws of the Netherlands).

“Compounded SOFR” means the compounded average of SOFRs for the applicable Corresponding Tenor, with the rate, or
methodology for this rate, and conventions for this rate (which may include compounding in arrears with a lookback and/or suspension
period as a mechanism to determine the interest amount payable prior to the end of each Interest Period) being established by the
Administrative Agent in accordance with:

(1)    the rate, or methodology for this rate, and conventions for this rate selected or recommended by the Relevant
Governmental Body for determining compounded SOFR; provided that:

(2)    if, and to the extent that, the Administrative Agent determines that Compounded SOFR cannot be determined in
accordance with clause (1) above, then the rate, or methodology for this rate, and conventions for this rate that the
Administrative Agent determines in its reasonable discretion are substantially consistent with any evolving or then-
prevailing market convention for determining compounded SOFR for U.S. dollar-denominated syndicated credit
facilities at such time;

provided, further, that if the Administrative Agent decides that any such rate, methodology or convention determined in
accordance with clause (1) or clause (2) is not administratively feasible for the Administrative Agent, then Compounded SOFR will be
deemed unable to be determined for purposes of the definition of “Benchmark Replacement.”

“Computation Date” is defined in Section 2.04.

“Connection Income Taxes” means Other Connection Taxes that are imposed on or measured by net income (however
denominated) or that are franchise Taxes or branch profits Taxes.

“Consolidated Capital Expenditures” means, without duplication, any expenditures for any purchase or other
acquisition of any asset which would be classified as a fixed or capital asset on a consolidated balance sheet of the Company and its
Subsidiaries prepared in accordance with GAAP.

“Consolidated Cash Balance” means, at any time, (a) the aggregate amount of cash and cash equivalents, marketable
securities, treasury bonds and bills, certificates of deposit, investments in money market funds and commercial paper, in each case,
held or owned by (either directly or indirectly), credited to the account of or would otherwise be required to be reflected as
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an asset on the balance sheet of the Company and its Subsidiaries less (b) the sum of (i) any restricted cash or cash equivalents to pay
required scheduled payments of principal and interest in respect of indebtedness that are due within five (5) Business Days of such
time, royalty obligations, working interest obligations, suspense payments, severance taxes, payroll, payroll taxes, other taxes,
employee wage and benefit payments and trust and fiduciary obligations or other obligations of the Company or any Subsidiary to
third parties and for which the Company or such Subsidiary has issued checks or has initiated wires or ACH transfers (or, in the
Company’s discretion, will issue checks or initiate wires or ACH transfers within five (5) Business Days) in order to pay, (ii) other
amounts for which the Company or such Subsidiary has issued checks or has initiated wires or ACH transfers but have not yet been
subtracted from the balance in the relevant account of the Company or such Subsidiary and (iii) while and to the extent refundable,
any cash or cash equivalents of the Company or any Subsidiaries constituting purchase price deposits held in escrow pursuant to a
binding and enforceable purchase and sale agreement with a third party containing customary provisions regarding the payment
and refunding of such deposits.

“Consolidated EBITDA” means, with reference to any period, Consolidated Net Income plus, without duplication and to the
extent deducted from revenues in determining Consolidated Net Income, (i) Consolidated Interest Expense, (ii) expense for income taxes
paid or accrued, (iii) depreciation, (iv) amortization, (v)  non-cash charges, expenses or losses, (vi) (A) non-recurring cash charges, expenses
or losses and (B) in connection with any acquisition, (I) all cash acquisition integration costs and fees, including cash severance payments,
and cash fees and expenses paid in connection with such acquisition, all to the extent incurred within twelve (12) months of the completion of
such acquisition and (II) cost savings and synergies projected by the Company in good faith to result from actions taken in connection with
such acquisition and which are expected to be realized within 12 months from the date of such acquisition and that are reasonably
identifiable, quantifiable and factually supportable in the good faith judgment of the Company and that are set forth in reasonable detail in a
certificate of a Financial Officer of the Company, net of the amount of any actual benefits realized during such period from such actions;
provided that the aggregate amount of such cost savings and synergies (including, for the avoidance of doubt, the sum of the foregoing
clauses (A) and (B) and excluding cash charges arising in connection with the restructuring announced by the Company on January 25, 2017
and November 1, 2017) added back pursuant to this clause (vi)(B)(II), together with the aggregate amount of cost savings and synergies
added back pursuant to clause (vii) below, shall not exceed in the aggregate twenty percent (20%) of Consolidated EBITDA for such period
(calculated without giving effect to this clause (vi) and without giving effect to clause (vii) below), (vii) cost savings and synergies projected
by the Company in good faith to result from actions taken pursuant to internal operations initiatives and which are expected to be realized
within 12 months from the date of the commencement of such initiative and that are reasonably identifiable, quantifiable and factually
supportable in the good faith judgment of the Company and that are set forth in reasonable detail in a certificate of a Financial Officer of the
Company, net of the amount of any actual benefits realized during such period from such actions; provided that the aggregate amount of such
cost savings and synergies added back pursuant to this clause (vii), together with the aggregate amount of cost savings and synergies added
back pursuant to clause (vi)(B)(II) above, shall not exceed in the aggregate twenty percent (20%) of Consolidated EBITDA for such period
(calculated without giving effect to this clause (vii) and without giving effect to clause (vi)(B)(II) above), (viii) [reserved], (ix) fees and
expenses directly incurred or paid by the Company in connection with the issuance by the Company of the 2026 Senior Unsecured Notes,
and (x) fees and expenses directly incurred or paid by the Company in connection with Amendment No. 1 to this Agreement dated as of June
14, 2018, minus, to the extent included in Consolidated Net Income, (1) interest income, (2) income tax credits and refunds (to the extent not
netted from tax expense), (3) any cash payments made during such period in respect of items described in clause (v) above subsequent to the
fiscal quarter in which the relevant non-cash expenses, charges or losses were incurred (unless such cash payments are permitted to be added
back to Consolidated EBITDA pursuant to clause (vi) during
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such period or if the payment relates to cash payments made in relation to earnouts for Material Acquisitions), (4) extraordinary, unusual or
non-recurring non-cash income or gains realized other than in the ordinary course of business, all calculated for the Company and its
Subsidiaries in accordance with GAAP on a consolidated basis, (5) non-cash gains on Swap Agreements that have a tenor of greater than 31
days and were entered into to hedge or mitigate risks to which the Company or any Subsidiary has actual or reasonably anticipated exposure
and (6) non-cash gains on Dollar denominated intercompany financing loans that are revalued on non-Dollar functional currency legal
entities. For the purposes of calculating Consolidated EBITDA for any period of four consecutive trailing fiscal quarters (each such period, a
“Reference Period”), (i) if at any time during such Reference Period the Company or any Subsidiary shall have made any Material
Disposition, the Consolidated EBITDA for such Reference Period shall be reduced by an amount equal to the Consolidated EBITDA (if
positive) attributable to the assets that are the subject of such Material Disposition for such Reference Period or increased by an amount equal
to the Consolidated EBITDA (if negative) attributable thereto for such Reference Period, and (ii) if during such Reference Period the
Company or any Subsidiary shall have made a Material Acquisition, Consolidated EBITDA for such Reference Period shall be calculated
after giving effect thereto on a Pro Forma Basis as if such Material Acquisition occurred on the first day of such Reference Period. As used in
this definition, “Material Acquisition” means any acquisition of assets or series of related acquisitions of assets that involves the payment of
consideration by the Company and its Subsidiaries in excess of $10,000,000; and “Material Disposition” means any sale, transfer or
disposition of assets or series of related sales, transfers, or dispositions of assets that yields gross proceeds to the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries in excess of $10,000,000.

“Consolidated Interest Expense” means, with reference to any period, the interest expense (including without limitation
interest expense under Capital Lease Obligations that is treated as interest in accordance with GAAP) of the Company and its Subsidiaries
calculated on a consolidated basis for such period with respect to all outstanding Indebtedness of the Company and its Subsidiaries allocable
to such period in accordance with GAAP (including, without limitation, all commissions, discounts and other fees and charges owed with
respect to letters of credit and bankers acceptance financing and net costs under interest rate Swap Agreements to the extent such net costs
are allocable to such period in accordance with GAAP). In the event that the Company or any Subsidiary shall have completed a Material
Acquisition or a Material Disposition (in each case, as defined in the definition of “Consolidated EBITDA”) since the beginning of the
relevant period, Consolidated Interest Expense shall be determined for such period on a Pro Forma Basis as if such Material Acquisition or
Material Disposition, and any related incurrence or repayment of Indebtedness, had occurred at the beginning of such period (using the
interest rate in respect of such Indebtedness in effect as of the date of the consummation of such Material Acquisition or Material
Disposition, as applicable). Notwithstanding the foregoing, it is understood and agreed that upon the Company repaying all
outstanding principal and interest under the Second Lien Notes Documents, solely for purposes of calculating both Consolidated
EBITDA and Consolidated Interest Expense in the calculation of the Minimum Interest Coverage Ratio under Section 6.12(b), any
calculation of Consolidated Interest Expense following such repayment shall exclude all interest expense in respect of the Second
Lien Notes Documents incurred in the fiscal quarter of the Company during which such prepayment is made (the “Repayment
Quarter”) as well as the three fiscal quarters of the Company immediately preceding such Repayment Quarter.

“Consolidated Net Income” means, with reference to any period, the net income (or loss) of the Company and its
Subsidiaries calculated in accordance with GAAP on a consolidated basis (without duplication) for such period; provided that there shall be
excluded any income (or loss) of any Person other than the Company or a Subsidiary, but any such income so excluded may be included in
such period or any later period to the extent of any cash dividends or distributions actually paid in the relevant period to the Company or any
wholly-owned Subsidiary of the Company.
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“Consolidated Senior Secured Indebtedness” means at any time the Consolidated Total Indebtedness that is secured by a
Lien on any property of the Company and its Subsidiaries, but excluding any such Indebtedness to the extent secured on a junior basis to the
Loans as of such date.

“Consolidated Total Assets” means, as of the date of any determination thereof, total assets of the Company and its
Subsidiaries calculated in accordance with GAAP on a consolidated basis as of such date.

“Consolidated Total Indebtedness” means at any time the sum, without duplication, of (a) the aggregate Indebtedness of the
Company and its Subsidiaries calculated on a consolidated basis as of such time in accordance with GAAP, (b) the aggregate amount of
Indebtedness of the Company and its Subsidiaries relating to the maximum drawing amount of all letters of credit outstanding and bankers
acceptances and (c) Indebtedness of the type referred to in clauses (a) or (b) hereof of another Person guaranteed by the Company or any of
its Subsidiaries.

“Control” means the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the management or
policies of a Person, whether through the ability to exercise voting power, by contract or otherwise. The terms “Controlling” and
“Controlled” have meanings correlative thereto.

“Controlled Affiliate” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 3.19.

“Corresponding Obligations” means all Secured Obligations as they may exists from time to time, other than the Parallel
Debt.

“Corresponding Tenor” with respect to a Benchmark Replacement means a tenor (including overnight) having approximately
the same length (disregarding business day adjustment) as the applicable tenor for the applicable Interest Period with respect to the LIBO
Rate.

“Covenant SuspensionAdjustment Period” means the period commencing on the Amendment No. 45 Effective Date and
ending on the Covenant Suspension Period Termination Datethrough and including September 30, 2022.

“Covenant Suspension Period Termination Date” means the earlier of (i) the date on which Financials for the fiscal
quarter of the Company ending December 31, 2021 have been delivered pursuant to Section 5.01, together with the compliance
certificate required by Section 5.01(c) demonstrating that the Company was in compliance with Section 6.12 as of the end of such
fiscal quarter (for the avoidance of doubt, it is understood and agreed that the Covenant Suspension Period shall not terminate
pursuant to this clause (i) until (x) the date on which such Financials are delivered, together with such compliance certificate, all
demonstrating such compliance and (y) a “Covenant Reset Event” (as defined in the Second Lien Notes Indenture as in effect on the
Amendment No. 4 Effective Date) has occurred) and (ii) the date on which the Company (x) delivers Financials for any fiscal quarter
of the Company ending after the Amendment No. 4 Effective Date, together with the compliance certificate required by Section
5.01(c) demonstrating that the Company was in compliance with Section 6.12 as such Section 6.12 was in effect on the Amendment
No. 4 Effective Date immediately prior to giving effect to Amendment No. 4, as of the end of such fiscal quarter and (y) notifies the
Administrative Agent in writing that it elects to end the Covenant Suspension Period (for the avoidance of doubt, it is understood
and agreed that the Covenant Suspension Period shall not terminate pursuant to this clause (ii) until (x) the date (A) on which such
Financials are delivered, together with such compliance certificate, all demonstrating such compliance and (B) on which the
Administrative Agent shall have received such written notice from the Company and (y) a “Covenant Reset
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Event” (as defined in the Second Lien Notes Indenture as in effect on the Amendment No. 4 Effective Date) has occurred).

“Covered Entity” means any of the following:

(i)    a “covered entity” as that term is defined in, and interpreted in accordance with, 12 C.F.R. § 252.82(b);

(ii)    a “covered bank” as that term is defined in, and interpreted in accordance with, 12 C.F.R. § 47.3(b); or

(iii)    a “covered FSI” as that term is defined in, and interpreted in accordance with, 12 C.F.R. § 382.2(b).

“Covered Party” has the meaning assigned to it in Section 9.22.

“Co-Syndication Agent” means each of Bank of America, N.A., BMO Harris Bank N.A. and MUFG Union Bank, N.A. in its
capacity as co-syndication agent for the credit facilities evidenced by this Agreement.

“Credit Event” means a Borrowing, the issuance, amendment or extension of a Letter of Credit, an LC Disbursement or any
of the foregoing.

“Credit Exposure” means, as to any Lender at any time, the sum of (a) such Lender’s Revolving Credit Exposure at such
time, plus (b) an amount equal to the aggregate principal amount of its Term Loans outstanding at such time.

“Credit Party” means the Administrative Agent, each Issuing Bank, the Swingline Lender or any other Lender.

“CRR” means the Council Regulation (EU) No 575/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 26 June 2013 on
prudential requirements for credit institutions and investment firms and amending Regulation (EU) No 648/2012.

“CUSA” means Cimpress USA Incorporated, a Delaware corporation.

“Deemed Dividend Problem” means, with respect to any Foreign Subsidiary, such Foreign Subsidiary’s accumulated and
undistributed earnings and profits being deemed to be repatriated to the applicable parent U.S. Loan Party under Section 956 of the Code and
the effect of such repatriation causing materially adverse tax consequences to such parent U.S. Loan Party, in each case as determined by the
Company in its commercially reasonable judgment acting in good faith and in consultation with its legal and tax advisors.

“Default” means any event or condition which constitutes an Event of Default or which upon notice, lapse of time or both
would, unless cured or waived, become an Event of Default.
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“Dutch Borrower” means any Borrower that is organized under the laws of the Netherlands.

“Dutch Loan Party” means any Loan Party organized under the laws of the Netherlands or otherwise resident for tax
purposes of the Netherlands.

“Dutch Non-Public Lender” means :

(i) until the publication of an interpretation of “public” as referred to in the CRR by the relevant authority/ies: an entity
which (x) assumes rights and/or obligations vis-à-vis a Dutch Borrower, the value of which is at least EUR 100,000 (or its equivalent in
another currency), (y) that provides repayable funds to the Dutch Borrower for a minimum initial amount of EUR 100,000 (or its equivalent
in another currency) or otherwise qualifies as not forming part of the public), and

(ii) following the publication of an interpretation of “public” as referred to in the CRR by the relevant authority/ies: an entity
which qualifies as not forming part of the public on the basis of such interpretation.

“Early Opt-in Election” means the occurrence of:

(1) (i) a determination by the Administrative Agent or (ii) a notification by the Required Lenders to the Administrative Agent
(with a copy to the Company) that the Required Lenders have determined that syndicated credit facilities denominated in the applicable
Agreed Currency being executed at such time, or that include language similar to that contained in Section 2.14 are being executed or
amended, as applicable, to incorporate or adopt a new benchmark interest rate to replace the LIBO Rate, and

(2) (i) the election by the Administrative Agent or (ii) the election by the Required Lenders to declare that an Early Opt-in
Election has occurred and the provision, as applicable, by the Administrative Agent of written notice of such election to the Company and the
Lenders or by the Required Lenders of written notice of such election to the Administrative Agent.

“ECP” means an “Eligible Contract Participant” as defined in Section 1(a)(18) of the Commodity Exchange Act or any
regulations promulgated thereunder and the applicable rules issued by the Commodity Futures Trading Commission and/or the SEC
(collectively, and as now or hereafter in effect, the “ECP Rules”).

“ECP Rules” has the meaning assigned to such term in the definition of “ECP.”

“EEA Financial Institution” means (a) any credit institution or investment firm established in any EEA Member Country
which is subject to the supervision of an EEA Resolution Authority, (b) any entity established in an EEA Member Country which is a parent
of an institution described in clause (a) of this definition, or (c) any financial institution established in an EEA Member Country which is a
subsidiary of an institution described in clauses (a) or (b) of this definition and is subject to consolidated supervision with its parent.

“EEA Member Country” means any of the member states of the European Union, Iceland, Liechtenstein, and Norway.
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“Insolvency Regulation” shall mean the Council Regulation (EC) No.1346/2000 29 May 2000 on Insolvency Proceedings.

“Intercreditor Agreement” means (a) that certain Intercreditor Agreement, dated as of May 1, 2020, by and among the
Administrative Agent, the Second Lien Notes Agent, the Company and the other Loan Parties from time to time party thereto and (b) in
respect of any other Indebtedness intended to be secured by some or all of the Collateral on a junior priority basis with the Obligations, an
intercreditor agreement reasonably acceptable to the Administrative Agent the terms of which are consistent with market terms governing
security arrangements for the sharing of Liens on a junior basis at the time such intercreditor agreement is proposed to be established in light
of the type of Indebtedness to be secured by such Liens, as reasonably determined by the Administrative Agent and the Company.

“Interest Coverage Ratio” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 6.12(b).

“Interest Election Request” means a request by the applicable Borrower to convert or continue a Borrowing in accordance
with Section 2.08, which shall be substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit I-2 or any other form approved by the Administrative
Agent.

“Interest Payment Date” means (a) with respect to any ABR Loan (other than a Swingline Loan), the last day of each March,
June, September and December and the Maturity Date, (b) with respect to any Eurocurrency Loan, the last day of each Interest Period
applicable to the Borrowing of which such Loan is a part and, in the case of a Eurocurrency Borrowing with an Interest Period of more than
three months’ duration, each day prior to the last day of such Interest Period that occurs at intervals of three months’ duration after the first
day of such Interest Period and the Maturity Date and (c) with respect to any Swingline Loan, the day that such Loan is required to be repaid
and the Maturity Date.

“Interest Period” means with respect to any Eurocurrency Borrowing, the period commencing on the date of such Borrowing
and ending one week thereafter or on the numerically corresponding day in the calendar month that is one, two, three or six (or, if acceptable
to each Lender, twelve) months thereafter, as the applicable Borrower (or the Company on behalf of the applicable Borrower) may elect;
provided, that (i) if any Interest Period would end on a day other than a Business Day, such Interest Period shall be extended to the next
succeeding Business Day unless such next succeeding Business Day would fall in the next calendar month, in which case such Interest Period
shall end on the next preceding Business Day and (ii) any Interest Period pertaining to a Eurocurrency Borrowing that commences on the last
Business Day of a calendar month (or on a day for which there is no numerically corresponding day in the last calendar month of such
Interest Period) shall end on the last Business Day of the last calendar month of such Interest Period. For purposes hereof, the date of a
Borrowing initially shall be the date on which such Borrowing is made and thereafter shall be the effective date of the most recent conversion
or continuation of such Borrowing.

“Interpolated Rate” means, at any time, for any Interest Period, the rate per annum determined by the Administrative Agent
(which determination shall be conclusive and binding absent manifest error) to be equal to the rate that results from interpolating on a linear
basis between: (a) the LIBO Screen Rate for the longest period (for which the LIBO Screen Rate is available for the applicable currency) that
is shorter than the Impacted Interest Period; and (b) the LIBO Screen Rate for the shortest period (for which the LIBO Screen Rate is
available for the applicable currency) that exceeds the Impacted Interest Period, in each case, at such time; provided that if any Interpolated
Rate shall be less than 0.75%, such rate shall be deemed to be 0.75% for the purposes of this Agreement.
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“Irish Treaty Lender” means, a Lender, other than a Lender falling within paragraph (b) of the definition of Irish Qualifying
Lender, which:

(a)    is treated as a resident of an Irish Treaty State for the purposes of an Irish Treaty; and

(b)    does not carry on a business in Ireland through a permanent establishment with which that Lender’s participation in this
Agreement is effectively connected.

“Irish Treaty State” means a jurisdiction having a double taxation treaty with Ireland which contains an article dealing with
interest or income from debt claims (an “Irish Treaty”) which has the force of law and which makes provision for full exemption from tax
imposed by Ireland on interest.

“IRS” means the United States Internal Revenue Service.

“Issuing Bank” means each of JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., Bank of America, N.A., BMO Harris Bank N.A. and MUFG
Union Bank, N.A., each in its capacity as the issuer of Letters of Credit hereunder, and its successors in such capacity as provided in Section
2.06(i). Each Issuing Bank may, in its discretion, arrange for one or more Letters of Credit to be issued by Affiliates of such Issuing Bank, in
which case the term “Issuing Bank” shall include any such Affiliate with respect to Letters of Credit issued by such Affiliate.

“LC Collateral Account” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.06(j).

“LC Disbursement” means a payment made by an Issuing Bank pursuant to a Letter of Credit.

“LC Exposure” means, at any time, the sum of (a) the aggregate undrawn Dollar Amount of all outstanding Letters of Credit
at such time plus (b) the aggregate Dollar Amount of all LC Disbursements that have not yet been reimbursed by or on behalf of the
Company at such time. The LC Exposure of any Revolving Lender at any time shall be its Applicable Percentage of the total LC Exposure at
such time. For all purposes of this Agreement, if on any date of determination a Letter of Credit has expired by its terms but any amount may
still be drawn thereunder by reason of the operation of Article 29(a) of the Uniform Customs and Practice for Documentary Credits,
International Chamber of Commerce Publication No. 600 (or such later version thereof as may be in effect at the applicable time) or
Rule 3.13 or Rule 3.14 of the International Standby Practices, International Chamber of Commerce Publication No. 590 (or such later version
thereof as may be in effect at the applicable time) or similar terms of the Letter of Credit itself, or if compliant documents have been
presented but not yet honored, such Letter of Credit shall be deemed to be “outstanding” and “undrawn” in the amount so remaining
available to be paid, and the obligations of the Company and each Lender shall remain in full force and effect until the relevant Issuing Bank
and the Lenders shall have no further obligations to make any payments or disbursements under any circumstances with respect to any Letter
of Credit.

“Lender Parent” means, with respect to any Lender, any Person as to which such Lender is, directly or indirectly, a
subsidiary.

“Lender-Related Person” means the Administrative Agent, any Arranger, any Co-Syndication Agent, any Co-
Documentation Agent, any Issuing Bank and any Lender, and any Related Party of any of the foregoing Persons.

“Lenders” means the Persons listed on Schedule 2.01A, the Persons that are “Lenders” under the Existing Credit Agreement
as of the Restatement Effective Date and any other Person that shall
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have become a Lender hereunder pursuant to Section 2.20 or pursuant to an Assignment and Assumption or other documentation
contemplated hereby, other than any such Person that ceases to be a party hereto pursuant to an Assignment and Assumption or other
documentation contemplated hereby. Unless the context otherwise requires, the term “Lenders” includes the Swingline Lender and the
Issuing Banks. For the avoidance of doubt, the term “Lenders” excludes the Departing Lenders.

“Letter of Credit” means any letter of credit issued pursuant to this Agreement.

“Letter of Credit Agreement” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.06(b).

“Letter of Credit Commitment” means, with respect to each Issuing Bank, the commitment of such Issuing Bank to issue
Letters of Credit hereunder. The initial amount of each Issuing Bank’s Letter of Credit Commitment is set forth on Schedule 2.01B, or if an
Issuing Bank has entered into an Assignment and Assumption or has otherwise assumed a Letter of Credit Commitment after the Effective
Date, the amount set forth for such Issuing Bank as its Letter of Credit Commitment in the Register maintained by the Administrative Agent.
The Letter of Credit Commitment of an Issuing Bank may be modified from time to time by agreement between such Issuing Bank and the
Company, and notified to the Administrative Agent.

“Leverage Ratio” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 6.12(a).

“Liabilities” means any losses, claims (including intraparty claims), demands, damages or liabilities of any kind.

“LIBO Rate” means, with respect to any Eurocurrency Borrowing denominated in any Agreed Currency and for any Interest
Period, the LIBO Screen Rate at approximately 11:00 a.m., London time, on the Quotation Day for such Agreed Currency; provided that if
the LIBO Screen Rate shall not be available at such time for such Interest Period (an “Impacted Interest Period”) with respect to such Agreed
Currency then the LIBO Rate shall be the Interpolated Rate.

“LIBO Screen Rate” means, for any day and time, with respect to any Eurocurrency Borrowing denominated in any Agreed
Currency and for any Interest Period, the London interbank offered rate as administered by ICE Benchmark Administration (or any other
Person that takes over the administration of such rate) for such Agreed Currency for a period equal in length to such Interest Period as
displayed on such day and time on pages LIBOR01 or LIBOR02 of the Reuters screen that displays such rate (or, in the event such rate does
not appear on a Reuters page or screen, on any successor or substitute page on such screen that displays such rate, or on the appropriate page
of such other information service that publishes such rate from time to time as selected by the Administrative Agent in its reasonable
discretion); provided that if the LIBO Screen Rate as so determined would be less than 0.75%, such rate shall be deemed to be 0.75% for the
purposes of this Agreement.

“Lien” means, with respect to any asset, (a) any mortgage, deed of trust, lien, pledge, hypothecation, encumbrance, charge or
security interest in, on or of such asset, (b) the interest of a vendor or a lessor under any conditional sale agreement, capital lease or title
retention agreement (or any financing lease having substantially the same economic effect as any of the foregoing) relating to such asset and
(c) in the case of securities, any purchase option, call or similar right of a third party with respect to such securities.

“Limited Recourse Guarantor” means a Subsidiary Guarantor party to a Limited Recourse Guaranty.
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“Limited Recourse Guaranty” means a Guaranty (or supplement thereto adding a Limited Recourse Guarantor) entered into
on or after March 10, 2015 pursuant to which the obligations guaranteed by the Limited Recourse Guarantor thereunder are limited (as
determined by the Administrative Agent in its reasonable credit judgment) as to amount, either by reference to one or more specific amounts
or mathematical formulas or otherwise by reference to legal concepts or principles required under applicable law or regulation (but excluding
any general statutory limitations, including fraudulent transfer or conveyance limitations).

“Loan Documents” means this Agreement, each Borrowing Subsidiary Agreement, each Borrowing Subsidiary Termination,
the Guaranty, any promissory notes issued pursuant to Section 2.10(f), any Letter of Credit applications, any Letter of Credit Agreement and
any agreements between the Company and an Issuing Bank regarding such Issuing Bank’s Letter of Credit Commitment or the respective
rights and obligations between the Borrower and such Issuing Bank in connection with the issuance of Letters of Credit, the Collateral
Documents, the Amendment and Restatement Agreement, the Intercreditor Agreement and any and all other agreements, instruments,
documents and certificates executed and delivered to, or in favor of, the Administrative Agent or any Lenders and including all other pledges,
powers of attorney, consents, assignments, contracts, notices, letter of credit agreements and all other written matter whether heretofore, now
or hereafter executed by or on behalf of any Loan Party, or any employee of any Loan Party, and delivered to the Administrative Agent or
any Lender in connection with this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby. Any reference in this Agreement or any other Loan
Document to a Loan Document shall include all appendices, exhibits or schedules thereto, and all amendments, restatements, supplements or
other modifications thereto, and shall refer to this Agreement or such Loan Document as the same may be in effect at any and all times such
reference becomes operative.

“Loan Parties” means, collectively, the Borrowers and the Guarantors.

“Loans” means the loans made by the Lenders to the Borrowers pursuant to this Agreement.

“Local Time” means (i) New York City time in the case of a Loan, Borrowing or LC Disbursement denominated in Dollars
and (ii) local time in the case of a Loan, Borrowing or LC Disbursement denominated in a Foreign Currency (it being understood that such
local time shall mean London, England time unless otherwise notified by the Administrative Agent).

“Management Board” means the management board (in Dutch: raad van bestuur) of the Company.

“Material Adverse Effect” means a material adverse effect on (a) the business, assets, operations or condition (financial or
otherwise) of the Company and the Subsidiaries taken as a whole, (b) the ability of Loan Parties to perform any of their obligations under the
Loan Documents (when taken as a whole) when due or (c) the validity or enforceability of this Agreement or any and all other Loan
Documents or the rights or remedies of the Administrative Agent and the Lenders thereunder.

“Material Indebtedness” means (i) Indebtedness (other than the Loans and Letters of Credit), or obligations in respect of one
or more Swap Agreements, of any one or more of the Company and its Subsidiaries in an aggregate principal amount exceeding (x) during
the Covenant Suspension Period, $25,000,000 and (y) following the termination of the Covenant Suspension Period, $35,000,000 and
(ii) the Second Lien Obligations. For purposes of determining Material Indebtedness, the “principal amount” of the obligations of the
Company or any Subsidiary in respect of any Swap Agreement at any time shall be the maximum aggregate amount (giving effect to any
netting agreements)

30



that the Company or such Subsidiary would be required to pay if such Swap Agreement were terminated at such time.

“Material Subsidiary” means each Subsidiary (i) which, as of the most recent fiscal quarter of the Company, for the period of
four consecutive fiscal quarters then ended, for which financial statements have been delivered pursuant to Section 5.01, contributed greater
than ten percent (10%) of Consolidated EBITDA for such period or (ii) which contributed greater than ten percent (10%) of Consolidated
Total Assets as of such date; provided that, if at any time the aggregate amount of Consolidated EBITDA or Consolidated Total Assets
attributable to all Subsidiaries that are not Loan Parties exceeds twenty-two and one half percent (22.5%) of Consolidated EBITDA for any
such period or twenty-two and one half percent (22.5%) of Consolidated Total Assets as of the end of any such fiscal quarter, the Company
(or, in the event the Company has failed to do so within ten days, the Administrative Agent) shall designate sufficient Subsidiaries as
“Material Subsidiaries” to eliminate such excess, and such designated Subsidiaries shall for all purposes of this Agreement constitute
Material Subsidiaries; provided further that, solely for purposes of determining compliance with the requirements above, (a) Consolidated
Total Assets shall exclude (1) assets that are considered to be intangible assets under GAAP, including customer lists, goodwill, developed
technology, copyrights, trade names, trademarks, patents, franchises, licenses, capitalized research, development costs, capitalized software
and website development, (2) intercompany receivables or loans between Persons that become Subsidiaries, (3) that portion of the assets of
Subsidiaries that are not wholly-owned Subsidiaries that is attributable to the percentage of equity interests not held, directly or indirectly, by
the Company or its wholly-owned Subsidiaries and (4) negative cash balances and (b) Consolidated EBITDA attributable to any Specified
Non-Required Subsidiary shall be excluded from the calculation of the 20% of Consolidated EBITDA threshold in the foregoing proviso.

“Maturity Date” means the earlier of (i) February 13, 2025 and (ii) solely to the extent that any Indebtedness under the
Second Lien Notes Documents is outstanding, the date that is 181 days prior to the “Stated Maturity” (as defined in the Second Lien Notes
Indenture as in effect on the Amendment No. 4 Effective Date) of the Second Lien Notes; provided, however, if, in either case, such date is
not a Business Day, the Maturity Date shall be the next preceding Business Day.

“Multicurrency Tranche Commitment” means, with respect to each Multicurrency Tranche Lender, the commitment of such
Multicurrency Tranche Lender to make Multicurrency Tranche Revolving Loans and to acquire participations in Letters of Credit and
Swingline Loans hereunder, as such commitment may be (a) reduced or terminated from time to time pursuant to Section 2.09, (b) increased
from time to time pursuant to Section 2.20 and (c) reduced or increased from time to time pursuant to assignments by or to such Lender
pursuant to Section 9.04. The initial amount of each Multicurrency Tranche Lender’s Multicurrency Tranche Commitment is set forth on
Schedule 2.01, or in the Assignment and Assumption (or other documentation or record (as such term is defined in Section 9-102(a)(70) of
the New York Uniform Commercial Code) contemplated by this Agreement) pursuant to which such Multicurrency Tranche Lender shall
have assumed its Multicurrency Tranche Commitment, as applicable. The aggregate principal amount of the Multicurrency Tranche
Commitments on the Amendment No. 4 Effective Date is $844,201,431.32.

“Multicurrency Tranche Lender” means a Lender with a Multicurrency Tranche Commitment or holding Multicurrency
Tranche Revolving Loans.

“Multicurrency Tranche Percentage” means the percentage equal to a fraction the numerator of which is such Lender’s
Multicurrency Tranche Commitment and the denominator of which is the aggregate Multicurrency Tranche Commitments of all
Multicurrency Tranche Lenders (if the Multicurrency Tranche Commitments have terminated or expired, the Multicurrency Tranche
Percentages
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shall be determined based upon the Multicurrency Tranche Commitments most recently in effect, giving effect to any assignments); provided
that in the case of Section 2.24 when a Defaulting Lender shall exist, any such Defaulting Lender’s Multicurrency Tranche Commitment shall
be disregarded in the calculation.

“Multicurrency Tranche Revolving Borrowing” means a Borrowing comprised of Multicurrency Tranche Revolving Loans.

“Multicurrency Tranche Revolving Credit Exposure” means, with respect to any Multicurrency Tranche Lender at any time,
and without duplication, the sum of the outstanding principal amount of such Multicurrency Tranche Lender’s Multicurrency Tranche
Revolving Loans, its LC Exposure and its Swingline Exposure.

“Multicurrency Tranche Revolving Loan” means a Loan made by a Multicurrency Tranche Lender pursuant to Section
2.01(b)(i). Each Multicurrency Tranche Revolving Loan shall be a Eurocurrency Revolving Loan denominated in Agreed Currencies or an
ABR Revolving Loan denominated in Dollars.

“Multiemployer Plan” means a multiemployer plan as defined in Section 4001(a)(3) of ERISA.

“Net Proceeds” means, with respect to any event, (a) the cash proceeds received in respect of such event including (i)
any cash received in respect of any non-cash proceeds (including any cash payments received by way of deferred payment of
principal pursuant to a note or installment receivable or purchase price adjustment receivable or otherwise, but excluding any
interest payments), but only as and when received, (ii) in the case of a casualty, insurance proceeds and (iii) in the case of a
condemnation or similar event, condemnation awards and similar payments, net of (b) the sum of (i) all reasonable fees and out-of-
pocket expenses paid to third parties (other than Affiliates) in connection with such event, (ii) in the case of a sale, transfer or other
disposition of an asset (including pursuant to a Sale and Leaseback Transaction or a casualty or a condemnation or similar
proceeding), the amount of all payments required to be made as a result of such event to repay Indebtedness (other than Loans or
Second Lien Obligations) secured by such asset or otherwise subject to mandatory prepayment as a result of such event and (iii) the
amount of all taxes paid (or reasonably estimated to be payable) (after taking into account any available tax credits or deductions
and any tax sharing arrangements) and the amount of any reserves established to fund contingent liabilities reasonably estimated to
be payable, in each case during the year that such event occurred or the next succeeding year and that are directly attributable to
such event (as determined reasonably and in good faith by a Financial Officer of the Company).

“NYFRB” means the Federal Reserve Bank of New York.

“NYFRB Rate” means, for any day, the greater of (a) the Federal Funds Effective Rate in effect on such day and (b) the
Overnight Bank Funding Rate in effect on such day (or for any day that is not a Business Day, for the immediately preceding Business Day);
provided that if none of such rates are published for any day that is a Business Day, the term “NYFRB Rate” means the rate for a federal
funds transaction quoted at 11:00 a.m., New York City time, on such day received by the Administrative Agent from a federal funds broker of
recognized standing selected by it; provided, further, that if any of the aforesaid rates as so determined would be less than zero, such rate
shall be deemed to be zero for purposes of this Agreement.
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other securities or property following a merger event or other change of the common stock of the Company) (whether such warrant is settled
in shares, cash or a combination thereof) entered into by the Company in connection with the issuance of Permitted Convertible Notes (such
transaction, a “Warrant Transaction”); provided that (i) the terms, conditions and covenants of each such Swap Agreement shall be such as
are customary for such agreements of such type (as determined by the board of directors of the Company, or a committee thereof, in good
faith), (ii) the purchase price for such Bond Hedge Transaction, less the proceeds received by the Company from the sale of any related
Warrant Transaction, does not exceed the net proceeds received by the Company from the issuance of the related Permitted Convertible
Notes and (iii) in the case of clause (b) above, such Swap Agreement would be classified as an equity instrument in accordance with GAAP.

“Permitted Convertible Notes” means any unsecured notes issued by the Company in accordance with the terms and
conditions of Section 6.01 that are convertible into a fixed number (subject to customary anti-dilution adjustments, “make-whole” increases
and other customary changes thereto) of shares of common stock of the Company (or other securities or property following a merger event or
other change of the common stock of the Company), cash or any combination thereof (with the amount of such cash or such combination
determined by reference to the market price of such common stock or such other securities); provided that, the Indebtedness thereunder must
satisfy each of the following conditions: (i) both immediately prior to and after giving effect (including pro forma effect) thereto, no Default
or Event of Default shall exist or result therefrom, (ii) such Indebtedness matures after, and does not require any scheduled amortization or
other scheduled or otherwise required payments of principal prior to, and does not permit any Loan Party to elect optional redemption or
optional acceleration that would be settled on a date prior to, the date that is six (6) months after the Maturity Date (it being understood that
neither (x) any provision requiring an offer to purchase such Indebtedness as a result of change of control or other fundamental change
(which change of control or other fundamental change, for the avoidance of doubt, constitutes a “Change of Control” hereunder), which
purchase is settled on a date no earlier than the date twenty (20) Business Days following the occurrence of such change of control or other
fundamental change nor (y) any early conversion of any Permitted Convertible Notes in accordance with the terms thereof, in either case,
shall violate the foregoing restriction), (iii) such Indebtedness is not guaranteed by any Subsidiary of the Company other than the Subsidiary
Borrowers or Subsidiary Guarantors (which guarantees, if such Indebtedness is subordinated, shall be expressly subordinated to the Secured
Obligations on terms not less favorable to the Lenders than the subordination terms of such Subordinated Indebtedness), (iv) any cross-
default or cross-acceleration event of default (each howsoever defined) provision contained therein that relates to indebtedness or other
payment obligations of any Loan Party (such indebtedness or other payment obligations, a “Cross-Default Reference Obligation”) contains a
cure period of at least thirty (30) calendar days (after written notice to the issuer of such Indebtedness by the trustee or to such issuer and
such trustee by holders of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of such Indebtedness then outstanding) before a default, event of
default, acceleration or other event or condition under such Cross-Default Reference Obligation results in an event of default under such
cross-default or cross-acceleration provision and (v) the terms, conditions and covenants of such Indebtedness must be customary for
convertible Indebtedness of such type (as determined by the board of directors of the Company, or a committee thereof, in good faith).

“Permitted Corporate Reorganization” means a merger between the Company and an Affiliate incorporated solely for
the purpose of converting the Company into a corporation organized under the laws of any member state of the European Union, the
United Kingdom, Switzerland or the United States or any political subdivision or state thereof or the District of
Columbia,reorganization of the corporate structure of the Company and its Subsidiaries to the extent (i) approved by the
Administrative Agent (such approval not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed) and (ii) such reorganization does not have a material
adverse effect on the credit support for the Transactions and on the credit profile of the Company and the Guarantors taken as a whole.
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“Pledge Subsidiary” means each Material Subsidiary but limited, in the case of a Foreign Subsidiary owned by a Subsidiary
organized under the laws of a jurisdiction located in the United States of America, to the First Tier Foreign Subsidiary in such Foreign
Subsidiary’s ownership chain.

“Pounds Sterling” or “£” means the lawful currency of the United Kingdom.

“Prepayment Event” means:

(a) any sale, transfer or other disposition (including pursuant to a Sale and Leaseback Transaction) of any property
or asset of the Company or any Subsidiary with a fair market value immediately prior to such event equal to or greater than
$10,000,000 pursuant to Section 6.03(a)(iv)(E) or Section 6.03(a)(iv)(F); or

(b) any casualty or other insured damage to, or any taking under power of eminent domain or by condemnation or
similar proceeding of, any property or asset of the Company or any Subsidiary with a fair market value immediately prior to such
event equal to or greater than $10,000,000; provided that so long as no Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and be
continuing, the Company shall have the option, directly or through one or more of its Subsidiaries to invest the Net Proceeds in
respect of such event within 365 days of receipt thereof in assets of the general type used in the business of the Company and its
Subsidiaries, which investment may include the repair, restoration or replacement of the applicable assets thereof (and it is
understood and agreed that in the event that such Net Proceeds are not reinvested by the Company prior to the earlier of (i) the last
day of such 365 day period and (ii) the date of the occurrence of an Event of Default, the Company shall prepay the Secured
Obligations in an amount equal to such Net Proceeds as set forth in Section 2.11(c)); or

(c) the issuance by the Company or any Subsidiary of any Equity Interests (other than (i) issuances pursuant to and
in accordance with stock option plans or other benefit plans for management, directors or employees of the Company and its
Subsidiaries; (ii) issuances by any Subsidiary to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries; and (iii) issuances in satisfaction of
contractual obligations under Investments existing as of the Amendment No. 4 Effective Date and identified on Schedule 6.04); or

(d) the incurrence by the Company or any Subsidiary of (i) any Indebtedness pursuant to Section 6.01(h) or (ii) any
Indebtedness not permitted under Section 6.01.

“Prime Rate” means the rate of interest last quoted by The Wall Street Journal as the “Prime Rate” in the U.S. or, if The Wall
Street Journal ceases to quote such rate, the highest per annum interest rate published by the Board in Federal Reserve Statistical Release
H.15 (519) (Selected Interest Rates) as the “bank prime loan” rate or, if such rate is no longer quoted therein, any similar rate quoted therein
(as determined by the Administrative Agent) or any similar release by the Board (as determined by the Administrative Agent). Each change
in the Prime Rate shall be effective from and including the date such change is publicly announced or quoted as being effective.

“Pro Forma Basis” means, with respect to any event, that the Company is in compliance on a pro forma basis with the
applicable covenant, calculation or requirement herein recomputed as if the event with respect to which compliance on a Pro Forma Basis is
being tested had occurred on the first day of the four fiscal quarter period most recently ended on or prior to such date for which financial
statements have been delivered pursuant to Section 5.01.
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“Subsidiary” means any subsidiary of the Company.

“Subsidiary Borrower” means (i) Vistaprint Bermuda, (ii) Cimpress Schweiz GmbH, a corporation incorporated under the
laws of Switzerland, (iii) Vistaprint B.V., a besloten vennootschap met beperkte aansprakelijkheid organized under the laws of the
Netherlands, with its statutory seat in Venlo, the Netherlands, (iv) CUSA (collectively, the “Initial Subsidiary Borrowers”) and (v) any other
Eligible Subsidiary that becomes a Subsidiary Borrower pursuant to Section 2.23, in each case, provided that such Subsidiary Borrower has
not ceased to be a Subsidiary Borrower pursuant to such Section 2.23.

“Subsidiary Guarantor” means each Material Subsidiary that is a party to the Guaranty. The Subsidiary Guarantors on the
Amendment No. 45 Effective Date are identified as such in Schedule 3.01A hereto.

“Supervisory Board” means the supervisory board (in Dutch: raad van commissarissen) of the Company.

“Supported QFC” has the meaning assigned to it in Section 9.22.

“Swap Agreement” means any agreement with respect to any swap, forward, future or derivative transaction or option or
similar agreement involving, or settled by reference to, one or more rates, currencies, commodities, equity or debt instruments or securities,
or economic, financial or pricing indices or measures of economic, financial or pricing risk or value or any similar transaction or any
combination of these transactions; provided that no phantom stock or similar plan providing for payments only on account of services
provided by current or former directors, officers, employees or consultants of the Company or the Subsidiaries shall be a Swap Agreement.

“Swap Obligations” means any and all obligations of the Company or any Subsidiary, whether absolute or contingent and
howsoever and whensoever created, arising, evidenced or acquired (including all renewals, extensions and modifications thereof and
substitutions therefor), under (a) any and all Swap Agreements permitted hereunder with a Lender or an Affiliate of a Lender, and (b) any and
all cancellations, buy backs, reversals, terminations or assignments of any such Swap Agreement transaction. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
Permitted Call Spread Swap Agreements shall not constitute Swap Obligations.

“Swingline Exposure” means, at any time, the aggregate principal amount of all Swingline Loans outstanding at such time.
The Swingline Exposure of any Lender at any time shall be the sum of (a) its Applicable Percentage of the aggregate principal amount of all
Swingline Loans outstanding at such time (excluding, in the case of any Lender that is a Swingline Lender, Swingline Loans made by it that
are outstanding at such time to the extent that the other Lenders shall not have funded their participations in such Swingline Loans), adjusted
to give effect to any reallocation under Section 2.24 of the Swingline Exposure of Defaulting Lenders in effect at such time, and (b) in the
case of any Lender that is a Swingline Lender, the aggregate principal amount of all Swingline Loans made by such Lender outstanding at
such time, less the amount of participations funded by the other Lenders in such Swingline Loans.
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SECTION 2.09    Termination and Reduction of Commitments. (a) Unless previously terminated, (i) the Term Loan
Commitments have all been terminated prior to the Amendment No. 3 Effective Date and (ii) all other Commitments shall terminate on the
Maturity Date.

(b)    The Company may at any time terminate, or from time to time reduce, the Revolving Commitments of any Class;
provided that (i) each reduction of the Revolving Commitments of any Class shall be in an amount that is an integral multiple of
$1,000,000 and not less than $5,000,000, (ii) the Company shall not terminate or reduce the Multicurrency Tranche Commitments if,
after giving effect to any concurrent prepayment of the Multicurrency Tranche Revolving Loans in accordance with Section 2.11, (A)
any Lender’s Multicurrency Tranche Revolving Credit Exposure would exceed its Multicurrency Tranche Commitment or (B) the
Dollar Amount of the sum of the total Multicurrency Tranche Revolving Credit Exposures would exceed the aggregate
Multicurrency Tranche Commitments, (iii) the Company shall not terminate or reduce the Dollar Tranche Commitments if, after
giving effect to any concurrent prepayment of the Dollar Tranche Revolving Loans in accordance with Section 2.11, (A) any
Lender’s Dollar Tranche Revolving Credit Exposure would exceed its Dollar Tranche Commitment or (B) the Dollar Amount of the
sum of the total Dollar Tranche Revolving Credit Exposures would exceed the aggregate Dollar Tranche Commitments and (iv) the
Company shall not terminate or reduce the Revolving Commitments if, after giving effect to any concurrent prepayment of the Loans
in accordance with Section 2.11, (A) any Lender’s Revolving Credit Exposure would exceed its Revolving Commitment or (B) the
Dollar Amount of the Total Revolving Credit Exposure would exceed the aggregate Revolving Commitments.

(c)    The Company shall notify the Administrative Agent of any election to terminate or reduce the Revolving Commitments
of any Class under paragraph (b) of this Section at least three (3) Business Days prior to the effective date of such termination or
reduction, specifying such election and the effective date thereof. Promptly following receipt of any notice, the Administrative Agent
shall advise the relevant Lenders of the contents thereof. Each notice delivered by the Company pursuant to this Section shall be
irrevocable; provided that a notice of termination of the Revolving Commitments of any Class delivered by the Company may state
that such notice is conditioned upon the effectiveness of other credit facilities or other transactions specified therein, in which case
such notice may be revoked by the Company (by notice to the Administrative Agent on or prior to the specified effective date) if
such condition is not satisfied. Any termination or reduction of the Revolving Commitments of any Class shall be permanent. Each
reduction of the Revolving Commitments of any Class shall be made ratably among the Lenders in accordance with their respective
Revolving Commitments of any Class.

(d) In addition, the Revolving Commitments shall be automatically and permanently reduced as provided in Section
2.11(e).

SECTION 2.10    Repayment and Amortization of Loans; Evidence of Debt. (a) Each Borrower hereby unconditionally
promises to pay (i) to the Administrative Agent for the account of each Revolving Lender the then unpaid principal amount of each
Revolving Loan made to such Borrower on the Maturity Date in the currency of such Loan and (ii) in the case of the Company, to the
Administrative Agent for the account of the Swingline Lender the then unpaid principal amount of each Swingline Loan on the earlier of the
Maturity Date and the fifth (5 ) Business Day after such Swingline Loan is made; provided that on each date that a Revolving Borrowing is
made, the Company shall repay all Swingline Loans then outstanding and the proceeds of any such Borrowing shall be applied by the
Administrative Agent to repay any Swingline Loans outstanding.

(b)    Amortization; Repayment.

(i)    [intentionally omitted].

th
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(ii)    [intentionally omitted].

(iii)    CUSA shall repay 2019 CUSA Term Loans on each date set forth below in the aggregate principal amount set
forth opposite such date (as adjusted from time to time pursuant to Section 2.11(a) and Section 2.11(e)) (such amount, for
any such date, the “2019 CUSA Term Loan Amortization Amount”):

Date 2019 CUSA
Term Loan Amortization Amount

June 30, 2020 $1,875,000
September 30, 2020 $1,875,000
December 31, 2020 $1,875,000
March 31, 2021 $1,875,000
June 30, 2021 $2,812,500
September 30, 2021 $2,812,500
December 31, 2021 $2,812,500
March 31, 2022 $2,812,500
June 30, 2022 $3,750,000
September 30, 2022 $3,750,000
December 31, 2022 $3,750,000
March 31, 2023 $3,750,000
June 30, 2023 $4,687,500
September 30, 2023 $4,687,500
December 31, 2023 $4,687,500
March 31, 2024 $4,687,500
June 30, 2024 $4,687,500
September 30, 2024 $4,687,500
December 31, 2024 $4,687,500

(iv)    [intentionally omitted].

(v)    To the extent not previously repaid, all unpaid 2019 CUSA Term Loans shall be paid in full in Dollars by
CUSA on the Maturity Date.

(c)    Each Lender shall maintain in accordance with its usual practice an account or accounts evidencing the indebtedness of
each Borrower to such Lender resulting from each Loan made by such Lender, including the amounts of principal and interest
payable and paid to such Lender from time to time hereunder.

(d)    The Administrative Agent shall maintain accounts in which it shall record (i) the amount of each Loan made hereunder,
the Class, Agreed Currency and Type thereof and the Interest Period applicable thereto, (ii) the amount of any principal or interest
due and payable or to become due and payable from each Borrower to each Lender hereunder and (iii) the amount of any sum
received by the Administrative Agent hereunder for the account of the Lenders and each Lender’s share thereof.

(e)    The entries made in the accounts maintained pursuant to paragraph (c) or (d) of this Section shall be prima facie
evidence of the existence and amounts of the obligations
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recorded therein; provided that the failure of any Lender or the Administrative Agent to maintain such accounts or any error therein
shall not in any manner affect the obligation of any Borrower to repay the Loans in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

(f)    Any Lender may request that Loans made by it to any Borrower be evidenced by a promissory note. In such event, the
relevant Borrower shall prepare, execute and deliver to such Lender a promissory note payable to such Lender (or, if requested by
such Lender, to such Lender and its registered assigns) and in a form approved by the Administrative Agent. Thereafter, the Loans
evidenced by such promissory note and interest thereon shall at all times (including after assignment pursuant to Section 9.04) be
represented by one or more promissory notes in such form.

SECTION 2.11    Prepayment of Loans.

(a)    Any Borrower shall have the right at any time and from time to time to prepay any Borrowing in whole or in part,
subject to prior notice in accordance with the provisions of this Section 2.11(a). The applicable Borrower, or the Company on behalf
of the applicable Borrower, shall notify the Administrative Agent (and, in the case of prepayment of a Swingline Loan, the Swingline
Lender) by written notice of any prepayment hereunder (i) in the case of prepayment of a Eurocurrency Borrowing, not later than
11:00 a.m., Local Time, three (3) Business Days (in the case of a Eurocurrency Borrowing denominated in Dollars) or four
(4) Business Days (in the case of a Eurocurrency Borrowing denominated in a Foreign Currency), in each case before the date of
prepayment, (ii) in the case of prepayment of an ABR Borrowing, not later than 11:00 a.m., New York City time, one (1) Business
Day before the date of prepayment or (iii) in the case of prepayment of a Swingline Loan, not later than 12:00 noon, New York City
time, on the date of prepayment. Each such notice shall be irrevocable and shall specify the prepayment date and the principal
amount of each Borrowing or portion thereof to be prepaid; provided that, if a notice of prepayment is given in connection with a
conditional notice of termination of the Commitments as contemplated by Section 2.09, then such notice of prepayment may be
revoked if such notice of termination is revoked in accordance with Section 2.09. Promptly following receipt of any such notice
relating to a Borrowing, the Administrative Agent shall advise the relevant Lenders of the contents thereof. Each partial prepayment
of any Borrowing shall be in an amount that would be permitted in the case of an advance of a Borrowing of the same Type as
provided in Section 2.02. Each voluntary prepayment of a Revolving Borrowing shall be applied ratably to the Revolving Loans
included in the prepaid Revolving Borrowing, and each voluntary prepayment of a Term Loan Borrowing shall be applied ratably to
the Term Loans included in the prepaid Term Loan Borrowing in such order of application as directed by the Company, and each
mandatory prepayment of a Borrowing pursuant to Section 2.11(c) shall be applied in accordance with Section 2.11(e).
Prepayments shall be accompanied by (i) accrued interest to the extent required by Section 2.13 and (ii) break funding payments
pursuant to Section 2.16.

(b)    If at any time, (i) other than as a result of fluctuations in currency exchange rates, (A) the aggregate principal Dollar
Amount of the total Revolving Credit Exposures of any Class (calculated, with respect to those Credit Events denominated in
Foreign Currencies, as of the most recent Computation Date with respect to each such Credit Event) exceeds the aggregate
Revolving Commitments of such Class or (B) the aggregate principal Dollar Amount of the total Multicurrency Tranche Revolving
Credit Exposures denominated in Foreign Currencies (the “Foreign Currency Exposure”) (so calculated), as of the most recent
Computation Date with respect to each such Credit Event, exceeds the Foreign Currency Sublimit or (ii) solely as a result of
fluctuations in currency exchange rates, (A) the aggregate principal Dollar Amount of the total Multicurrency Tranche Revolving
Credit Exposures (so calculated) exceeds 105% of the aggregate Multicurrency Tranche Commitments or (B) the Foreign Currency
Exposure, as of
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the most recent Computation Date with respect to each such Credit Event, exceeds 105% of the Foreign Currency Sublimit, the
Borrowers shall in each case immediately repay Revolving Borrowings or cash collateralize LC Exposure in an account with the
Administrative Agent pursuant to Section 2.06(j), as applicable, in an aggregate principal amount sufficient to cause (x) the
aggregate Dollar Amount of the total Revolving Credit Exposures (so calculated) of each Class to be less than or equal to the
aggregate Revolving Commitments of such Class and (y) the Foreign Currency Exposure to be less than or equal to the Foreign
Currency Sublimit, as applicable.

(c) During the Covenant Suspension Period, in the event and on each occasion that any Net Proceeds are received by
or on behalf of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries in respect of any Prepayment Event, the Company shall, immediately
after such Net Proceeds are received, prepay the Obligations and cash collateralize the LC Exposure as set forth in Section
2.11(e) below in an aggregate amount equal to 100% of such Net Proceeds. The Company shall provide prior written notice to
the Administrative Agent regarding each prepayment pursuant to this Section 2.11(c).

(d) During the Covenant Suspension Period, if, as of the final Business Day of each weekly period starting from the
first complete calendar week after the Amendment No. 4 Effective Date (for the avoidance of doubt, with the first such final
Business Day being May 8, 2020), (A) Revolving Loans are outstanding and (B) the Consolidated Cash Balance exceeds
$100,000,000 as of the end of such applicable Business Day, then the Borrowers shall, on the next Business Day thereafter,
prepay the Revolving Loans, applied ratably to each Class of Revolving Loans then outstanding, in an aggregate principal
amount equal to such excess. The Company shall provide prior written notice to the Administrative Agent regarding each
prepayment pursuant to this Section 2.11(d).

(e) All such amounts pursuant to Section 2.11(c) shall be applied ratably first, to prepay the Term Loans (to be
applied to installments of the Term Loans in inverse order of maturity), and second to prepay the Revolving Loans, applied
ratably to each Class of Revolving Loans then outstanding, with a corresponding dollar-for-dollar immediate, permanent and
irrevocable reduction of the Revolving Commitments of each Class (made ratably among the Lenders in accordance with
their respective Revolving Commitments of such Class) and subsequently to cash collateralize outstanding LC Exposure;
provided that no such reduction of the Revolving Commitments shall be required so long as the aggregate Revolving
Commitments at the time of such prepayment are not greater than $400,000,000).

SECTION 2.12    Fees. (a) The Company agrees to pay to the Administrative Agent for the account of each Revolving
Lender a commitment fee, which shall accrue at the Applicable Rate on the daily Available Revolving Commitment of such Lender during
the period from and including the Original Effective Date to but excluding the date on which such Revolving Commitment terminates.
Accrued commitment fees shall be payable in arrears on the fifteenth (15 ) day following the last day of March, June, September and
December of each year and on the date on which the Revolving Commitments terminate, commencing on the first such date to occur after the
Restatement Effective Date; provided that any commitment fees accruing after the date on which the Revolving Commitments terminate shall
be

th
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SECTION 2.20    Expansion Option. Solely to the extent that the Covenant Suspension Period is not in effect, theThe
Company may from time to time after the Amendment No. 45 Effective Date elect to increase the total Multicurrency Tranche Commitments
and/or the total Dollar Tranche Commitments or enter into one or more tranches of term loans (each an “Incremental Term Loan”), in each
case in minimum increments of $25,000,000 so long as, after giving effect thereto, the aggregate amount of such increases and all such
Incremental Term Loans does not exceed the sum of (A) $200,000,000 plus (B) an unlimited additional amount such that, in the case of this
clause (B) only, after giving effect (including giving effect on a Pro Forma Basis reasonably acceptable to the Administrative Agent) to any
such increase in the Multicurrency Tranche Commitments, increase in the Dollar Tranche Commitments and/or tranche of Incremental Term
Loans (assuming that any such incremental Multicurrency Tranche Commitments, incremental Dollar Tranche Commitments and such
Incremental Term Loans are drawn in full), the Senior Secured Leverage Ratio is equal to or less than the Applicable Senior Secured
Leverage Ratio Level (other than to the extent such increased Multicurrency Tranche Commitments, such increased Dollar Tranche
Commitments and/or such Incremental Term Loans are incurred pursuant to this clause (B) concurrently with the incurrence of increased
Multicurrency Tranche Commitments, increased Dollar Tranche Commitments and/or Incremental Term Loans in reliance on clause (A)
above, in which case the Senior Secured Leverage Ratio shall be permitted to exceed the Applicable Senior Secured Leverage Ratio Level to
the extent of such increased Multicurrency Tranche Commitments, increased Dollar Tranche Commitments and/or such Incremental Term
Loans incurred in reliance on such clause (A)); provided that, for the avoidance of doubt, increased Multicurrency Tranche Commitments,
increased Dollar Tranche Commitments and/or Incremental Term Loans may be incurred pursuant to this clause (B) prior to utilization of the
amount set forth in clause (A) above. As used herein, “Applicable Senior Secured Leverage Ratio Level” means a ratio equal to (x) the
numerator of the maximum Senior Secured Leverage Ratio permitted under Section 6.12(c) at such time minus 0.25 to (y) 1.00. The
Company may arrange for any such increase or tranche to be provided by one or more Lenders (each Lender so agreeing to an increase in its
Revolving Commitment, or to participate in such Incremental Term Loans, an “Increasing Lender”), or by one or more new banks, financial
institutions or other institutional investors or entities (each such new bank, financial institution or other investor or entity, an “Augmenting
Lender”; provided that no Ineligible Institution may be an Augmenting Lender), which agree to increase their existing Revolving
Commitments, or to participate in such Incremental Term Loans, or provide new Revolving Commitments, as the case may be; provided that
(i) each Augmenting Lender, shall be subject to the approval of the Company and the Administrative Agent and (ii) (x) in the case of an
Increasing Lender, the Company and such Increasing Lender execute an agreement substantially in the form of Exhibit C hereto, and (y) in
the case of an Augmenting Lender, the Company and such Augmenting Lender execute an agreement substantially in the form of Exhibit D
hereto. No consent of any Lender (other than the Lenders participating in the increase or any Incremental Term Loan) shall be required for
any increase in Revolving Commitments or Incremental Term Loan pursuant to this Section 2.20. Increases and new Revolving
Commitments and Incremental Term Loans created pursuant to this Section 2.20 shall become effective on the date agreed by the Company,
the Administrative Agent and the relevant Increasing Lenders or Augmenting Lenders, and the Administrative Agent shall notify each
Lender thereof. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no increase in the Revolving Commitments (or in the Revolving Commitment of any Lender)
or tranche of Incremental Term Loans shall become effective under this paragraph unless, (i) on the proposed date of the effectiveness of
such increase or Incremental Term Loans, (A) the conditions set forth in paragraphs (a) and (b) of Section 4.02 shall be satisfied or waived by
the Required Lenders and the Administrative Agent shall have received a certificate to that effect dated such date and executed by a Financial
Officer of the Company and (B) the Company shall be in compliance (on a Pro Forma Basis reasonably acceptable to the Administrative
Agent) with the covenants contained in Section 6.12, (ii) the Administrative Agent shall have received documents and opinions consistent
with those delivered on the Restatement Effective Date as to the organizational power and authority of the Borrowers to borrow hereunder
after giving effect to such increase and (iii) such increase in the Revolving Commitments or
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valid perfected Liens on all the Collateral in favor of the Administrative Agent, on behalf of itself and the other Secured Parties, and such
Liens constitute perfected and continuing Liens on the Collateral, securing the Secured Obligations, enforceable against the applicable Loan
Party and all third parties as provided by applicable law, and having priority over all other Liens on the Collateral except in the case of
(a) Permitted Encumbrances, to the extent any such Permitted Encumbrances would have priority over the Liens in favor of the
Administrative Agent pursuant to any applicable law and (b) Liens perfected only by possession (including possession of any certificate of
title) to the extent the Administrative Agent has not obtained or does not maintain possession of such Collateral.

SECTION 3.19    USA Patriot Act. (a) Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries or, to the knowledge of the Company
and its Subsidiaries, any of their respective Affiliates over which any of the foregoing exercises management control (each, a “Controlled
Affiliate”) is a Prohibited Person, and the Company, its Subsidiaries and, to the knowledge of the Company and its Subsidiaries, such
Controlled Affiliates are in compliance with all applicable orders, rules and regulations of OFAC.

(b)    Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries or, to the knowledge of the Company and its Subsidiaries, any of their
respective Controlled Affiliates: (i) is targeted by United States or multilateral economic or trade sanctions currently in force; (ii) is
owned or controlled by, or acts on behalf of, any Person that is targeted by United States or multilateral economic or trade sanctions
currently in force; or (iii) is named, identified or described on any list of Persons with whom United States Persons may not conduct
business, including any such blocked persons list, designated nationals list, denied persons list, entity list, debarred party list,
unverified list, sanctions list or other such lists published or maintained by the United States, including OFAC, the United States
Department of Commerce or the United States Department of State.

SECTION 3.20    Anti-Corruption Laws and Sanctions. The Company has implemented and maintains in effect policies and
procedures designed to ensure compliance by the Company, its Subsidiaries and their respective directors, officers, employees and agents
with Anti-Corruption Laws and applicable Sanctions, and the Company, its Subsidiaries and their respective officers and directors and to the
knowledge of the Company its employees and agents, are in compliance with Anti-Corruption Laws and applicable Sanctions in all material
respects and, in the case of any Borrower that is a Subsidiary that is not organized or incorporated in the United States, is not knowingly
engaged in any activity that could reasonably be expected to result in such Borrower being designated as a Sanctioned Person. None of (a)
the Company, any Subsidiary, any of their respective directors or officers or to the knowledge of the Company or such Subsidiary employees,
or (b) to the knowledge of the Company, any agent of the Company or any Subsidiary that will act in any capacity in connection with or
benefit from the credit facility established hereby, is a Sanctioned Person. No Borrowing or Letter of Credit, use of proceeds or other
Transactions will violate any Anti-Corruption Law or applicable Sanctions.

SECTION 3.21    EEAAffected Financial Institutions. No Loan Party is an EEAAffected Financial Institution.

SECTION 3.22    Second Lien Notes Documents. As of the Amendment No. 4 Effective Date, the Company has delivered to
Administrative Agent a complete and correct copy of the Second Lien Notes Documents (including all schedules, exhibits, amendments,
supplements, modifications, assignments and all other documents delivered pursuant thereto or in connection therewith). All Secured
Obligations constitute Indebtedness entitled to the benefits of the Intercreditor Agreement.
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(d)    Any promissory notes requested by any Lender, and any other instruments and documents reasonably requested by the
Administrative Agent.

ARTICLE V

Affirmative Covenants

Until the Commitments have expired or been terminated and the principal of and interest on each Loan and all fees payable
hereunder shall have been paid in full and all Letters of Credit shall have expired or terminated, in each case, without any pending draw, and
all LC Disbursements shall have been reimbursed, the Company and each other Borrower covenants and agrees with the Lenders that:

SECTION 5.01    Financial Statements and Other Information. The Company will furnish to the Administrative Agent and
each Lender:

(a)    within ninety (90) days after the end of each fiscal year of the Company (or, if earlier, by the date that the Annual
Report on Form 10-K of the Company for such fiscal year would be required to be filed under the rules and regulations of the SEC,
giving effect to any automatic extension available thereunder for the filing of such form), its audited consolidated balance sheet and
related statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flows as of the end of and for such year, setting forth in each case in
comparative form the figures for the previous fiscal year, all reported on by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP or other independent
public accountants of recognized national standing (without a “going concern” or like qualification, commentary or exception and
without any qualification or exception as to the scope of such audit) to the effect that such consolidated financial statements present
fairly in all material respects the financial condition and results of operations of the Company and its consolidated Subsidiaries on a
consolidated basis in accordance with GAAP consistently applied;

(b)    (i) within forty-five (45) days after the end of each of the first three fiscal quarters of each fiscal year of the Company
(or, if earlier, by the date that the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of the Company for such fiscal quarter would be required to be
filed under the rules and regulations of the SEC, giving effect to any automatic extension available thereunder for the filing of such
form), its consolidated balance sheet and related statements of operations and cash flows as of the end of and for such fiscal quarter
and the then elapsed portion of the fiscal year, setting forth in each case in comparative form the figures for the corresponding period
or periods of (or, in the case of the balance sheet, as of the end of) the previous fiscal year, all certified by one of its Financial
Officers as presenting fairly in all material respects the financial condition and results of operations of the Company and its
consolidated Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis in accordance with GAAP consistently applied, subject to normal year-end audit
adjustments and the absence of footnotes, and (ii) during the Covenant Suspension Period, within twenty (20) days after the end
of each fiscal month of the Company, its consolidated balance sheet and related statements of operations (but not cash flows)
as of the end of and for such fiscal month and the then elapsed portion of the fiscal year, all certified by one of its Financial
Officers as presenting fairly in all material respects the financial condition and results of operations of the Company and its
consolidated Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis in accordance with GAAP consistently applied, subject to normal year-end
audit adjustments and the absence of footnotes;;

(c)    concurrently with any delivery of financial statements under clause (a) or (b) above, a certificate of a Financial Officer
of the Company (i) certifying as to whether a Default has occurred and, if a Default has occurred, specifying the details thereof and
any action taken or proposed to be taken with respect thereto, (ii) setting forth reasonably detailed

95



calculations in respect of each of the financial covenants set forth in Section 6.12 (provided that in connection with the delivery of
financial statements under clause (b)(ii) above, such calculations shall only be required in respect of the financial covenant set
forth in Section 6.12(e)) and (iii) stating whether any change in GAAP or in the application thereof has occurred since the date of
the audited financial statements referred to in Section 3.04 and, if any such change has occurred, specifying the effect of such change
on the financial statements accompanying such certificate;

(d)    [intentionally omitted];

(e)    as soon as available, but in any event not more than sixty (60) days after the end of each fiscal year of the Company, a
copy of the plan and forecast (including a projected consolidated balance sheet, income statement and cash flow statement) of the
Company for each quarter of the upcoming fiscal year in form reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent;

(f)    promptly after the same become publicly available, copies of all periodic and other reports, proxy statements and other
materials filed by the Company or any Subsidiary with the SEC, or any Governmental Authority succeeding to any or all of the
functions of said Commission, or with any national securities exchange, or distributed by the Company to its shareholders generally,
as the case may be; and

(g)    promptly following any request therefor, (x) such other information regarding the operations, business affairs and
financial condition of the Company or any Subsidiary, or compliance with the terms of this Agreement, as the Administrative Agent
or any Lender may reasonably request and (y) information and documentation reasonably requested by the Administrative Agent or
any Lender for purposes of compliance with applicable “know your customer” and anti-money laundering rules and regulations,
including the Patriot Act and the Beneficial Ownership Regulation.

Documents required to be delivered pursuant to this Section 5.01 may be delivered by facsimile or electronic mail. Documents
required to be delivered pursuant to clauses (a), (b) or (f) of this Section 5.01 that are delivered electronically shall be deemed to
have been delivered on the date on which such documents are filed for public availability on the SEC’s Electronic Data Gathering
and Retrieval System; provided that the Company shall notify (which may be by facsimile or electronic mail) the Administrative
Agent of the filing of any such documents and provide to the Administrative Agent by electronic mail electronic versions (i.e., soft
copies) of such documents. Notwithstanding anything contained herein, in every instance the Company shall be required to provide
copies of the compliance certificates required by clause (c) of this Section 5.01 to the Administrative Agent.

SECTION 5.02    Notices of Material Events. The Company will furnish to the Administrative Agent and each Lender
prompt written notice of the following:

(a)    the occurrence of any Default;

(b)    the filing or commencement of any action, suit or proceeding by or before any arbitrator or Governmental Authority
against or affecting the Company or any Affiliate thereof that, if adversely determined, could reasonably be expected to result in a
Material Adverse Effect;

(c)    the occurrence of any ERISA Event that, alone or together with any other ERISA Events that have occurred, could
reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect;
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SECTION 5.05    Maintenance of Properties; Insurance. The Company will, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries to,
(a) keep and maintain all property material to the conduct of its business in good working order and condition, ordinary wear and tear
excepted, and (b) maintain, with financially sound and reputable insurance companies (i) insurance in such amounts and against such risks as
are customarily maintained by companies engaged in the same or similar businesses operating in the same or similar locations and (ii) all
insurance required pursuant to the Collateral Documents. The Company will furnish to the Lenders, upon the request of, and to the extent
requested by, the Administrative Agent, information in reasonable detail as to the insurance so maintained. The Company shall deliver to the
Administrative Agent endorsements (x) to all “All Risk” physical damage insurance policies on all of the Loan Parties’ tangible personal
property and assets insurance policies naming the Administrative Agent as lender loss payee, and (y) to all general liability and other liability
policies naming the Administrative Agent an additional insured. Except during the continuation of an Event of Default and except as
required pursuant to Section 2.11(c), all proceeds of such insurance shall be payable to or at the discretion of the Company. In the event the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries at any time or times hereafter shall fail to obtain or maintain any of the policies or insurance required
herein or to pay any premium in whole or in part relating thereto, then the Administrative Agent, without waiving or releasing any
obligations or resulting Default hereunder, may at any time or times thereafter (but shall be under no obligation to do so) obtain and maintain
such policies of insurance and pay such premiums and take any other action with respect thereto which the Administrative Agent deems
advisable. All sums so disbursed by the Administrative Agent shall constitute part of the Obligations, payable as provided in this Agreement.
The Company will furnish to the Administrative Agent and the Lenders prompt written notice of any casualty or other insured damage to any
material portion of the Collateral or the commencement of any action or proceeding for the taking of any material portion of the Collateral or
interest therein under power of eminent domain or by condemnation or similar proceeding.

SECTION 5.06    Books and Records; Inspection Rights. The Company will, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries to, keep
proper books of record and account in which full, true and correct entries in conformity with GAAP and applicable law are made of all
material financial dealings and transactions in relation to its business and activities. The Company will, and will cause each of its
Subsidiaries to, permit any representatives designated by the Administrative Agent or any Lender, upon reasonable prior notice, to visit and
inspect its properties, to examine and make extracts from its books and records, including environmental assessment reports and Phase I or
Phase II studies and to discuss its affairs, finances and condition with its officers and independent accountants, all at such reasonable times
and as often as reasonably requested. The Company acknowledges that the Administrative Agent, after exercising its rights of inspection,
may prepare and distribute to the Lenders certain reports pertaining to the Company and its Subsidiaries’ assets for internal use by the
Administrative Agent and the Lenders.

SECTION 5.07    Compliance with Laws. The Company will, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries to comply with all laws,
rules, regulations and orders of any Governmental Authority applicable to it or its property (including without limitation Environmental
Laws), except where the failure to do so, individually or in the aggregate, could not reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse
Effect. The Company will maintain in effect and enforce policies and procedures designed to ensure compliance by the Company, its
Subsidiaries and their respective directors, officers, employees and agents with Anti-Corruption Laws and applicable Sanctions.

SECTION 5.08    Use of Proceeds. The proceeds of the Loans will be used only to finance the working capital needs, and for
general corporate purposes, of the Company and its Subsidiaries in the ordinary course of business, including acquisitions and repurchases of
Equity Interests in the Company, in each case to the extent permitted under this Agreement. No part of the proceeds of any Loan will be used,
whether directly or indirectly, for any purpose that entails a violation of any of the Regulations of the Board, including Regulations T, U and
X. No Borrower will request any Borrowing or Letter of Credit, and no
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ARTICLE VI

Negative Covenants

Until the Commitments have expired or terminated and the principal of and interest on each Loan and all fees payable
hereunder have been paid in full and all Letters of Credit have expired or terminated, in each case, without any pending draw, and all LC
Disbursements shall have been reimbursed, the Company and each other Borrower covenants and agrees with the Lenders that:

SECTION 6.01    Indebtedness. The Company will not, and will not permit any Subsidiary to, create, incur, assume or permit
to exist any Indebtedness, except:

(a)    the Secured Obligations;

(b)    Indebtedness existing on the Amendment No. 45 Effective Date and set forth in Schedule 6.01 and extensions, renewals
and replacements of any such Indebtedness with Indebtedness of a similar type that does not increase the outstanding principal
amount thereof;

(c)    Indebtedness of the Company to any Subsidiary and of any Subsidiary to the Company or any other Subsidiary;
provided that Indebtedness of any Subsidiary that is not a Loan Party to any Loan Party shall be subject to the limitations set forth in
Section 6.04(d);

(d)    Subject to Section 5.09, Guarantees by the Company of obligations of any Subsidiary and by any Subsidiary of
obligations of the Company or any other Subsidiary;

(e)    Indebtedness of the Company or any Subsidiary incurred to finance the acquisition, construction or improvement of any
fixed or capital assets, including Capital Lease Obligations and any Indebtedness assumed in connection with the acquisition of any
such assets or secured by a Lien on any such assets prior to the acquisition thereof, and extensions, renewals and replacements of any
such Indebtedness that do not increase the outstanding principal amount thereof; provided that (i) such Indebtedness is incurred prior
to or within ninety (90) days after such acquisition or the completion of such construction or improvement and (ii) the aggregate
principal amount of Indebtedness permitted by this clause (e) shall not in the aggregate exceed (x) during the Covenant Suspension
Period, $25,000,000 at any time outstanding and (y) following the termination of the Covenant Suspension Period, thethe
greater of $100,000,000 and 4.5% of Consolidated Total Assets (determined as of the last day of the most recent fiscal quarter for
which financial statements shall have been delivered pursuant to Section 5.01(a) or Section 5.01(b) (or, prior to the delivery of any
such financial statements, the last day of the last fiscal quarter included in the financial statements referred to in Section 3.04(a)) at
the time of the incurrence of such Indebtedness, at any time outstanding;

(f)    Indebtedness of the Company or any Subsidiary as an account party in respect of trade letters of credit;

(g)    Indebtedness of the Company or any Subsidiary secured by a Lien on any asset of the Company or any Subsidiary;
provided that the aggregate outstanding principal amount of Indebtedness permitted by this clause (g) shall not in the aggregate
exceed (x) during the Covenant Suspension Period, $5,000,000 at any time outstanding and (y) following the termination of
the Covenant Suspension Period, the greater of $100,000,000 and 4.5% of Consolidated Total Assets (determined as of the last day
of the most recent fiscal quarter for
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which financial statements shall have been delivered pursuant to Section 5.01(a) or Section 5.01(b) (or, prior to the delivery of any
such financial statements, the last day of the last fiscal quarter included in the financial statements referred to in Section 3.04(a)) at
the time of the incurrence of such Indebtedness, at any time outstanding;

(h)    unsecured Indebtedness of the Company (including unsecured Subordinated Indebtedness to the extent subordinated to
the Secured Obligations on terms reasonably acceptable to the Administrative Agent), to the extent not otherwise permitted under
this Section 6.01, and any Indebtedness constituting refinancings, renewals or replacements of any such Indebtedness; provided that
(i) both immediately prior to and after giving effect (including giving effect on a Pro Forma Basis) thereto, no Default or Event of
Default shall exist or would result therefrom (and the Company shall have delivered to the Administrative Agent a certificate of a
Financial Officer of the Company to such effect, together with all relevant financial information and calculations requested by the
Administrative Agent in respect thereof), (ii) such Indebtedness matures after, and does not require any scheduled amortization or
other scheduled payments of principal prior to, the date that is 181 days after the Maturity Date (it being understood that any
provision requiring an offer to purchase such Indebtedness as a result of change of control or asset sale or other fundamental change
shall not violate the foregoing restriction), (iii) such Indebtedness is not guaranteed by any Subsidiary of the Company other than the
Guarantors or the Borrowers (which guarantees, if such Indebtedness of the Company is expressly subordinated to the Secured
Obligations of the Company, shall be expressly subordinated to the Secured Obligations of each such Guarantor or Borrower, as the
case may be, on terms not less favorable to the Lenders than the subordination terms of such Subordinated Indebtedness), (iv) the
covenants applicable to such Indebtedness are not more onerous or more restrictive in any material respect (taken as a whole) than
the applicable covenants set forth in this Agreement (as reasonably determined in the good faith judgment of the Management Board
of the Company), (v) during the Covenant SuspensionAdjustment Period, at the time of the incurrence of such Indebtedness and
immediately after giving effect thereto (including giving effect on a Pro Forma Basis), the Company is in compliance with Section
6.12(e)Leverage Ratio shall be equal to or less than 4.25 to 1.00, and (vi) other than during the Covenant SuspensionAdjustment
Period, at the time of the incurrence of such Indebtedness and immediately after giving effect thereto (including giving effect on a
Pro Forma Basis), the Leverage Ratio shall not exceed a ratio equal to (x) the numerator of the maximum Leverage Ratio permitted
under Section 6.12(a) at such time minus 0.25 to (y) 1.00;

(i)    Indebtedness under the 2026 Senior Unsecured Notes;

(j)    unsecured Indebtedness in respect of deferred acquisition purchase price, including earnout obligations, in connection
with Permitted Acquisitions;

(k)    Indebtedness of a Subsidiary existing at the time such Person becomes a Subsidiary pursuant to a Permitted Acquisition
(provided that such Indebtedness was not incurred by such Person in contemplation of or in connection with such acquisition or such
Person becoming a Subsidiary) and extensions, renewals and replacements of any such Indebtedness with Indebtedness of a similar
type that does not increase the outstanding principal amount thereof;

(l)    Indebtedness under the Second Lien Notes pursuant to the Second Lien Notes Indenture (including all of the Second
Lien Obligations) or under the terms of any Permitted
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Second Lien Notes Refinancing Indebtedness in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $300,000,000, plus any interest thereon
that has been added to the principal thereof; and

(m)    other unsecured Indebtedness in an aggregate principal amount not exceeding (x) during the Covenant Suspension
Period, $10,000,000 at any time outstanding and (y) following the termination of the Covenant Suspension Period, thethe
greater of $75,000,000 and 3.5% of Consolidated Total Assets (determined as of the last day of the most recent fiscal quarter for
which financial statements shall have been delivered pursuant to Section 5.01(a) or Section 5.01(b) (or, prior to the delivery of any
such financial statements, the last day of the last fiscal quarter included in the financial statements referred to in Section 3.04(a)) at
the time of the incurrence of such Indebtedness, at any time outstanding.

SECTION 6.02    Liens. The Company will not, and will not permit any Subsidiary to, create, incur, assume or permit to
exist any Lien on any property or asset now owned or hereafter acquired by it, or assign or sell any income or revenues (including accounts
receivable) or rights in respect of any thereof, except:

(a)    Liens created pursuant to any Loan Document;

(b)    any Lien on any property or asset of the Company or any Subsidiary existing on the Amendment No. 45 Effective Date
and set forth in Schedule 6.02; provided that (i) such Lien shall not apply to any other property or asset of the Company or any
Subsidiary and (ii) such Lien shall secure only those obligations which it secures on the Amendment No. 45 Effective Date and
extensions, renewals and replacements thereof that do not increase the outstanding principal amount thereof;

(c)    any Lien existing on any property or asset prior to the acquisition thereof by the Company or any Subsidiary or existing
on any property or asset of any Person that becomes a Subsidiary after the Restatement Effective Date prior to the time such Person
becomes a Subsidiary; provided that (i) such Lien is not created in contemplation of or in connection with such acquisition or such
Person becoming a Subsidiary, as the case may be, (ii) such Lien shall not apply to any other property or assets of the Company or
any Subsidiary and (iii) such Lien shall secure only those obligations which it secures on the date of such acquisition or the date such
Person becomes a Subsidiary, as the case may be, and extensions, renewals and replacements thereof that do not increase the
outstanding principal amount thereof;

(d)    Liens on fixed or capital assets acquired, constructed or improved by the Company or any Subsidiary; provided that
(i) such security interests secure Indebtedness permitted by clause (e) of Section 6.01, (ii) such security interests and the
Indebtedness secured thereby are incurred prior to or within ninety (90) days after such acquisition or the completion of such
construction or improvement, (iii) the Indebtedness secured thereby does not exceed the cost of acquiring, constructing or improving
such fixed or capital assets and (iv) such security interests shall not apply to any other property or assets of the Company or any
Subsidiary;

(e)    Permitted Encumbrances;

(f)    Liens on the Collateral securing Indebtedness permitted under Section 6.01(l), so long as such Liens are subject to,
including on an effective basis under the governing law of the documentation under which such Liens are granted, the Intercreditor
Agreement; and
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(g)    Liens on assets (not constituting Collateral) of the Company and its Subsidiaries not otherwise permitted above so long
as the aggregate principal amount of the Indebtedness and other obligations subject to such Liens does not at any time exceed (x)
during the Covenant Suspension Period, $5,000,000 and (y) following the termination of the Covenant Suspension Period, the
greater of $100,000,000 and 4.5% of Consolidated Total Assets (determined as of the last day of the most recent fiscal quarter for
which financial statements shall have been delivered pursuant to Section 5.01(a) or Section 5.01(b) (or, prior to the delivery of any
such financial statements, the last day of the last fiscal quarter included in the financial statements referred to in Section 3.04(a)) at
the time of the incurrence of such Liens.

SECTION 6.03    Fundamental Changes and Asset Sales. (a) The Company will not, and will not permit any Subsidiary to,
merge into, amalgamate or consolidate with any other Person, or permit any other Person to merge into, amalgamate or consolidate with it, or
sell, transfer, lease or otherwise dispose of (in one transaction or in a series of transactions) any of its assets, (including pursuant to a Sale and
Leaseback Transaction), or any of the Equity Interests of any of its Subsidiaries (in each case, whether now owned or hereafter acquired), or
liquidate or dissolve, except that, if at the time thereof and immediately after giving effect thereto no Default shall have occurred and be
continuing:

(i)    any Person may merge into the Company in a transaction in which the Company is the surviving corporation;

(ii)    any Subsidiary may merge into a Loan Party in a transaction in which the surviving entity is such Loan Party
(provided that any such merger involving the Company must result in the Company as the surviving entity);

(iii)    any Subsidiary may sell, transfer, lease or otherwise dispose of its assets to a Loan Party;

(iv)    the Company and its Subsidiaries may (A) sell inventory in the ordinary course of business, (B) effect sales,
trade-ins or dispositions of used equipment for value in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice,
(C) enter into licenses of technology in the ordinary course of business, (D) sell equity interests and assets as described on
Schedule 6.03, (E) effect asset sales constituting Sale and Leaseback Transactions permitted by Section 6.10, and (F) make
any other sales, transfers, leases or dispositions of assets, the book value of which, together with the book value of all other
assets of the Company and its Subsidiaries previously sold, transferred, leased or disposed of as permitted by this clause (F)
during any fiscal year of the Company, does not exceed $75,000,000;

(v)    any Subsidiary that is not a Loan Party may liquidate or dissolve or merge into another Subsidiary if the
Company determines in good faith that such liquidation, dissolution or merger is in the best interests of the Company and is
not materially disadvantageous to the Lenders; and

(vi)    the Company and its Subsidiaries may consummate the Permitted Corporate Reorganization.

(b)    The Company will not, and will not permit any of its Subsidiaries to, engage to any material extent in any business
other than businesses of the type conducted by the Company
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and its Subsidiaries on the date of execution of this Agreement and businesses reasonably related thereto.

(c)    The Company will not, nor will it permit any of its Subsidiaries to, change its fiscal year from the basis in effect on the
Restatement Effective Date; provided that the Company may change the fiscal year of any acquired Subsidiary to correspond with
the basis of the Company’s fiscal year.

(d)    The Company will not permit any U.S. Loan Party that is a Borrower to have any subsidiary other than a subsidiary
organized under the laws of the United States of America or any jurisdiction thereof; provided that a U.S. Loan Party that is a
Borrower may have a subsidiary that is not organized under the laws of the United States of America or any jurisdiction thereof as
long as such Subsidiary is (x) formed and/or acquired in contemplation of and solely to effect a Permitted Acquisition or (y) acquired
in connection with or as the result of a Permitted Acquisition.

SECTION 6.04    Investments, Loans, Advances, Guarantees and Acquisitions. The Company will not, and will not permit
any of its Subsidiaries to, purchase, hold or acquire (including pursuant to any merger, amalgamation or consolidation with any Person that
was not a wholly owned Subsidiary prior to such merger, amalgamation or consolidation) any capital stock, evidences of indebtedness or
other securities (including any option, warrant or other right to acquire any of the foregoing) of, make or permit to exist any loans or
advances to, Guarantee any obligations of, or make or permit to exist any investment or any other interest in, any other Person, or purchase or
otherwise acquire (in one transaction or a series of transactions) any Person or any assets of any other Person constituting a business unit,
except:

(a)    Permitted Investments;

(b)    Permitted Acquisitions; provided that, during the Covenant Suspension Period: (i) the aggregate amount of
consideration paid by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries in connection with all Permitted Acquisitions shall not exceed
an amount equal to $50,000,000 minus the amount then outstanding in respect of investments in joint ventures or other
minority interests in a business or line of business in reliance on clause (i) of the Specified Joint Venture Investment Basket
and (ii) no Permitted Acquisition shall be permitted unless at the time of and immediately after giving effect (including giving
effect on a pro forma basis) thereto Available Liquidity is greater than or equal to $125,000,000;

(c)    investments by the Company and its Subsidiaries existing on the Amendment No. 45 Effective Date in the capital stock
of its Subsidiaries;

(d)    investments, loans, advances and/or capital contributions made by the Company in or to any Subsidiary and made by
any Subsidiary in or to the Company or any other Subsidiary (provided that (1) not more than an aggregate amount equal to (x)
during the Covenant Suspension Period, $25,000,000 and (y) following the termination of the Covenant Suspension Period,
the greater of $100,000,000150,000,000 and 67.5% of Consolidated Total Assets (determined as of the last day of the most recent
fiscal quarter for which financial statements shall have been delivered pursuant to Section 5.01(a) or Section 5.01(b) (or, prior to the
delivery of any such financial statements, the last day of the last fiscal quarter included in the financial statements referred to in
Section 3.04(a)) at the time of the making of such investments
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loans, advances and/or capital contributions, in investments, loans, advances and/or capital contributions may be made and remain
outstanding, at any time, by Loan Parties to Subsidiaries which are not Loan Parties (or do not become Loan Parties within forty-five
(45) days (or such later date as may be agreed upon by the Administrative Agent) after the receipt of such investment, loan, advance
and/or capital contribution and which amount shall be determined net of any return on capital, repayment of indebtedness, and any
investments, loans and/or capital contributions by Subsidiaries that are not Loan Parties to a Loan Party) (the limitation set forth in
this clause (1) being referred to as the “Specified Intercompany Investment Limitation”) and (2) in the event of an investment, loan,
advance and/or capital contribution to a Limited Recourse Guarantor, only the amount of recourse (as reasonably determined by the
Company at the time of such investment, loan, advance and/or capital contribution and approved by the Administrative Agent in its
reasonable credit judgment) with respect to such Limited Recourse Guarantor under the applicable Limited Recourse Guaranty, after
giving effect to such investment, loan, advance and/or capital contribution, shall be excluded from this proviso and the remaining
balance of such investment, loan, advance and/or capital contribution (less any amount paid, repaid, returned or otherwise distributed
in cash by such Limited Recourse Guarantor to the applicable transferor Loan Party in respect of such investment, loan, advance
and/or capital contribution, which amount so deducted shall not exceed the original amount of such investment, loan, advance and/or
capital contribution) shall only be permissible to the extent of availability under the Specified Intercompany Investment Limitation
hereunder and/or the Specified Joint Venture Investment Basket; provided, further, and for the avoidance of doubt, (i) intercompany
transfers of intangible assets that are solely effected by bookkeeping entries and that do not otherwise represent an exchange or
transfer of assets are not deemed to be investments, loans or advances or capital contributions and are not subject to the Specified
Intercompany Investment Limitation hereunder, (ii) investments, loans or advances and/or capital contributions made by a Loan
Party to a Subsidiary that is not a Loan Party shall not be subject to the Specified Intercompany Investment Limitation hereunder so
long as such Subsidiary that is not a Loan Party transfers such investment, loan, advance and/or capital contribution, immediately
upon receipt thereof, to a Loan Party, but subject to clause (2) above, (iii) any investment, loan, advance and/or capital contribution
that is made to a Subsidiary that is not a Loan Party and that has reduced the availability under the Specified Intercompany
Investment Limitation in clause (1) above shall no longer reduce such availability from and after the date that such Subsidiary
becomes a Loan Party and (iv) any investment, loan advance and/or capital contribution that is made to a Guarantor that is a Limited
Recourse Guarantor and that has reduced availability under clause (2) above shall no longer reduce such availability from and after
the date that such Guarantor ceases to be a Limited Recourse Guarantor but remains a Guarantor);

(e)    Guarantees permitted by Section 6.01(d);

(f)    the Permitted Corporate Reorganization;

(g)    investments in joint ventures or other minority interests in a business or line of business permitted with respect to the
Loan Parties and the Subsidiaries under this Agreement; provided that the aggregate outstanding amount of all such investments in
joint ventures and minority interests pursuant to this clause (g) does not exceed (i) during the Covenant Suspension Period, when
taken together with the aggregate amount of consideration paid by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries in respect of
Permitted Acquisitions during the Covenant Suspension Period, $50,000,000, so long as at the time of and immediately after
giving effect (including giving effect on a pro forma basis) to such investment Available
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Liquidity is greater than or equal to $125,000,000, and (ii) solely to the extent that the Covenant Suspension Period is not in
effect, the greater of $75,000,000100,000,000 and 3.55% of Consolidated Total Assets (determined as of the last day of the most
recent fiscal quarter for which financial statements shall have been delivered pursuant to Section 5.01(a) or Section 5.01(b) (or, prior
to the delivery of any such financial statements, the last day of the last fiscal quarter included in the financial statements referred to in
Section 3.04(a)) at the time of the making of such investments in the aggregate (such basket described in the foregoing clauses (i)
and (ii), the “Specified Joint Venture Investment Basket”). For the avoidance of doubt, investments in joint ventures or other minority
interests that subsequently transition into the status of (and remain) a Subsidiary shall not utilize the Specified Joint Venture
Investment Basket and such investments shall instead by governed by Sections 6.04(b) and 6.04(d);

(h)    any Section 403-Declaration in relation to a Subsidiary or any residual liability under such declaration arising pursuant
to section 2:404(2) of the Dutch Civil Code;

(i)    any joint and several liability and any netting or set-off arrangement arising in each case as a result of a fiscal unity
(fiscale eenheid) for Dutch corporate income tax or Dutch value added tax purposes of which a Dutch Loan Party is or becomes a
member;

(j)    the Company’s entry into (including payments of premiums in connection therewith), and the performance of
obligations under, Permitted Call Spread Swap Agreements in accordance with their terms;

(k)    investments, loans and advances existing on the Amendment No. 45 Effective Date and identified on Schedule 6.04;

(l)    payroll, travel and similar advances to cover matters that are expected at the time of such advances ultimately to be
treated as expenses for accounting purposes and that are made in the ordinary course of business;

(m)    loans or advances to employees, officers or directors of the Company or any Restricted Subsidiary in the ordinary
course of business consistent with past practices in an aggregate amount not in excess of (x) during the Covenant Suspension
Period, $5,000,000 and (y) following the termination of the Covenant Suspension Period, $20,000,000, outstanding at any one
time with respect to all loans or advances under this clause (m) (without giving effect to the forgiveness of any such loan); and

(n)    any other investment, loan or advance (other than acquisitions) so long as the aggregate amount of all such investments,
loans and advances at any time outstanding does not exceed (x) during the Covenant Suspension Period, $25,000,000 and (y)
following the termination of the Covenant Suspension Period, thethe greater of $75,000,000 and 4% of Consolidated Total
Assets (determined as of the last day of the most recent fiscal quarter for which financial statements shall have been delivered
pursuant to Section 5.01(a) or Section 5.01(b) (or, prior to the delivery of any such financial statements, the last day of the last fiscal
quarter included in the financial statements referred to in Section 3.04(a)) at the time of the making of such investment, loan or
advance.

SECTION 6.05    Swap Agreements. The Company will not, and will not permit any of its Subsidiaries to, enter into any
Swap Agreement, except (a) Swap Agreements entered into to hedge or mitigate risks to which the Company or any Subsidiary has actual, or
reasonably forecasted actual,
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exposure (other than those in respect of Equity Interests of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, other than as permitted pursuant to
Section 6.05(c) below), (b) Swap Agreements entered into in order to effectively cap, collar or exchange interest rates (from fixed to floating
rates, from one floating rate to another floating rate or otherwise) with respect to any interest-bearing liability or investment of the Company
or any Subsidiary, and (c) Swap Agreements entered into to acquire Equity Interests of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, provided
however, that (i) the Company is in compliance with the limitations of Section 6.07 as to the purchase price of such Swap Agreement at the
time it is entered into and (ii) the Company is in compliance with the limitations of Section 6.07 as to the exercise price thereunder at the
time of exercise of such Swap Agreement.

SECTION 6.06    Transactions with Affiliates. The Company will not, and will not permit any of its Subsidiaries to, sell,
lease or otherwise transfer any property or assets to, or purchase, lease or otherwise acquire any property or assets from, or otherwise engage
in any other transactions with, any of its Affiliates, except (a) in the ordinary course of business at prices and on terms and conditions not less
favorable to the Company or such Subsidiary than could be obtained on an arm’s-length basis from unrelated third parties, (b) transactions
between or among the Company and its Subsidiaries not involving any other Affiliate and (c) any Restricted Payment permitted by
Section 6.07.

SECTION 6.07    Restricted Payments. The Company will not, and will not permit any of its Subsidiaries to, declare or
make, or agree to pay or make, directly or indirectly, any Restricted Payment, except (a) the Company may declare and pay dividends with
respect to its Equity Interests payable solely in additional shares of its common stock, (b) Subsidiaries may declare and pay dividends ratably
with respect to their Equity Interests, (c) the Company may make Restricted Payments pursuant to and in accordance with stock option plans
or other benefit plans for management or employees of the Company and its Subsidiaries, (d) solely to the extent that the Covenant
Suspension Period is not in effect, the Company and its Subsidiaries may make Restricted Payments in an aggregate amount not to exceed
the greater of (x) $50,000,000 and (y) 2.5% of Consolidated Total Assets (determined as of the last day of the most recent fiscal quarter for
which financial statements shall have been delivered pursuant to Section 5.01(a) or Section 5.01(b) (or, prior to the delivery of any such
financial statements, the last day of the last fiscal quarter included in the financial statements referred to in Section 3.04(a)) at the time of the
making of such Restricted Payment, of Restricted Payments made pursuant to this clause (d) and (e) solely to the extent that the Covenant
Suspension Period is not in effect, the Company and its Subsidiaries may make any other Restricted Payment pursuant to this clause (e) so
long as (i) no Default or Event of Default has occurred and is continuing prior to making such Restricted Payment pursuant to this clause (e)
or would arise after giving effect (including giving effect on a Pro Forma Basis) thereto and (ii) the Leverage Ratio is equal to or less than the
Applicable Restricted Payment Ratio Level after giving effect (including giving effect on a Pro Forma Basis) to any such Restricted Payment
made pursuant to this clause (e). As used in the foregoing clause (e), “Applicable Restricted Payment Ratio Level” means a ratio equal to
3.00(x) during the Covenant Adjustment Period, 3.25 to 1.00 and (y) following the Covenant Adjustment Period, 3.50 to 1.00. For the
avoidance of doubt, it is hereby understood and agreed that any Restricted Payment made at a time when all of the conditions set forth in
clause (e) of this Section 6.07 are satisfied shall utilize the basket set forth in such clause (e) and shall not utilize (or be deemed to utilize) the
basket set forth in clause (d) of this Section 6.07.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, and for the avoidance of doubt, (i) the conversion by holders of (including any cash payment upon
conversion), or required payment of any principal or premium on, or required payment of any interest with respect to, any Permitted
Convertible Notes, in each case, in accordance with the terms of the indenture governing such Permitted Convertible Notes, shall not
constitute a Restricted Payment; provided that, to the extent both (a) the aggregate amount of cash
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payable upon conversion or payment of any Permitted Convertible Note (excluding any required payment of interest with respect to such
Permitted Convertible Note and excluding any payment of cash in lieu of a fractional share due upon conversion thereof) exceeds the
aggregate principal amount thereof and (b) such conversion or payment does not trigger or correspond to an exercise or early unwind or
settlement of a corresponding portion of the Bond Hedge Transactions constituting Permitted Call Spread Swap Agreements relating to such
Permitted Convertible Note (including, for the avoidance of doubt, the case where there is no Bond Hedge Transaction constituting a
Permitted Call Spread Swap Agreement relating to such Permitted Convertible Note), the payment of such excess cash shall constitute a
Restricted Payment notwithstanding this clause (i); and (ii) any required payment with respect to, or required early unwind or settlement of,
any Permitted Call Spread Swap Agreement, in each case, in accordance with the terms of the agreement governing such Permitted Call
Spread Swap Agreement shall not constitute a Restricted Payment; provided that, to the extent cash is required to be paid under a Warrant
Transaction as a result of the election of “cash settlement” (or substantially equivalent term) as the “settlement method” (or substantially
equivalent term) thereunder by the Company (or its Affiliate) (including in connection with the exercise and/or early unwind or settlement
thereof), the payment of such cash shall constitute a Restricted Payment notwithstanding this clause (ii).

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company may repurchase, exchange or induce the conversion of Permitted Convertible Notes by
delivery of shares of the Company’s common stock and/or a different series of Permitted Convertible Notes (which series (x) matures after,
and does not require any scheduled amortization or other scheduled payments of principal prior to, the analogous date under the indenture
governing the Permitted Convertible Notes that are so repurchased, exchanged or converted and (y) has terms, conditions and covenants that
are no less favorable to the Company than the Permitted Convertible Notes that are so repurchased, exchanged or converted (as determined
by the board of directors of the Company, or a committee thereof, in good faith)) (any such series of Permitted Convertible Notes,
“Refinancing Convertible Notes”) and/or by payment of cash (in an amount that does not exceed the proceeds received by the Company from
the substantially concurrent issuance of shares of the Company’s common stock and/or Refinancing Convertible Notes plus the net cash
proceeds, if any, received by the Company pursuant to the related exercise or early unwind or termination of the related Permitted Call
Spread Swap Agreements pursuant to the immediately following proviso); provided that, substantially concurrently with, or a commercially
reasonable period of time before or after, the related settlement date for the Permitted Convertible Notes that are so repurchased, exchanged
or converted, the Company shall (and, for the avoidance of doubt, shall be permitted under this Section 6.07 to) exercise or unwind or
terminate early (whether in cash, shares or any combination thereof) the portion of the Permitted Call Spread Swap Agreements, if any,
corresponding to such Permitted Convertible Notes that are so repurchased, exchanged or converted.

SECTION 6.08    Restrictive Agreements. The Company will not, and will not permit any of its Subsidiaries to, directly or
indirectly, enter into, incur or permit to exist any agreement or other arrangement that prohibits, restricts or imposes any condition upon
(a) the ability of the Company or any Subsidiary to create, incur or permit to exist any Lien upon any of its property or assets, or (b) the
ability of any Subsidiary to pay dividends or other distributions with respect to holders of its Equity Interests or to make or repay loans or
advances to the Company or any other Subsidiary or to Guarantee Indebtedness of the Company or any other Subsidiary; provided that (i) the
foregoing shall not apply to (A) restrictions and conditions imposed by law, (B) restrictions and conditions imposed by the indentures
governing the 2026 Senior Unsecured Notes, (C) restrictions or conditions set forth in any agreement governing Indebtedness permitted by
Section 6.01(h); provided that such restrictions and conditions are customary and on then market terms for such Indebtedness and are no
more restrictive (taken as a whole) than the comparable restrictions and conditions set forth in this Agreement (all as reasonably determined
in the
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good faith judgment of the Management Board of the Company), (D) restrictions and conditions imposed by any Loan Document or (E)
restrictions and conditions imposed by any Second Lien Notes Document as in effect on the Amendment No. 4 Effective Date (or as
otherwise modified in accordance with the Intercreditor Agreement) or any Permitted Second Lien Notes Refinancing Indebtedness, (ii) the
foregoing shall not apply to customary restrictions and conditions contained in agreements relating to the sale of a Subsidiary pending such
sale, provided such restrictions and conditions apply only to the Subsidiary that is to be sold and such sale is permitted hereunder,
(iii) clause (a) of the foregoing shall not apply to restrictions or conditions imposed by any agreement relating to secured Indebtedness
permitted by this Agreement if such restrictions or conditions apply only to the property or assets securing such Indebtedness and
(iv) clause (a) of the foregoing shall not apply to customary provisions in leases and other contracts restricting the assignment thereof.

SECTION 6.09    Subordinated Indebtedness, Second Lien Obligations, Permitted Second Lien Notes Refinancing
Indebtedness and Amendments to Subordinated Indebtedness Documents, Second Lien Notes Documents and Permitted Second Lien Notes
Refinancing Indebtedness. The Company will not, and will not permit any Subsidiary to, directly or indirectly prepay, defease or in substance
defease, purchase, redeem, retire or otherwise acquire in cash (including by any sinking fund or similar deposit), any Subordinated
Indebtedness, any Indebtedness from time to time outstanding under the Subordinated Indebtedness Documents, any Second Lien
Obligations (other than to the extent refinanced as Permitted Second Lien Notes Refinancing Indebtedness) or any Permitted Second Lien
Notes Refinancing Indebtedness, other than, (i) in the case of Subordinated Indebtedness, regularly scheduled payments of interest and fees
(including any penalty interest, if applicable) and payments of fees, expenses and obligations as and when due (other than payments with
respect to Subordinated Indebtedness that are prohibited by the subordination provisions thereof), (ii) in the case of Second Lien Obligations
or any Permitted Second Lien Notes Refinancing Indebtedness, regularly scheduled payments of interest and fees (including any penalty
interest, if applicable) and payments of fees, expenses and obligations as and when due pursuant to (x) the Second Lien Notes Documents as
in effect on the Amendment No. 4 Effective Date (or as modified in accordance with the Intercreditor Agreement) or (y) the documents
entered into with respect to such Permitted Second Lien Notes Refinancing Indebtedness or (iii) following the termination of the Covenant
Suspension Period, prepayments, defeasements, purchases, redemptions, retirements or acquisitions of any Subordinated Indebtedness,
Second Lien Obligations or any Permitted Second Lien Notes Refinancing Indebtedness, (1) in an aggregate amount not to exceed the sum of
$10,000,000 plus (2) an unlimited additional amount so long as, with respect to this clause (2) only, (I) no Default or Event of Default has
occurred and is continuing prior thereto or would arise after giving effect (including giving effect on a Pro Forma Basis) thereto and (II) the
Leverage Ratio is equal to or less than the Applicable Subordinated Indebtedness Payment Ratio Level after giving effect (including giving
effect on a Pro Forma Basis) thereto; provided that, for the avoidance of doubt, prepayments, defeasements, purchases, redemptions,
retirements or acquisitions of Subordinated Indebtedness, Second Lien Obligations or Permitted Second Lien Notes Refinancing
Indebtedness may be made pursuant to this clause (2) prior to utilization of the amount set forth in clause (1) above. As used in this Section
6.09, “Applicable Subordinated Indebtedness Payment Ratio Level” means, at any time, a ratio equal to (x) the numerator of the maximum
Leverage Ratio permitted under Section 6.12(a) at such time minus 0.75 to (y) 1.00. Furthermore, the Company will not, and will not permit
any Subsidiary to, amend the Subordinated Indebtedness Documents or any document, agreement or instrument evidencing any Indebtedness
incurred pursuant to the Subordinated Indebtedness Documents (or any replacements, substitutions, extensions or renewals thereof) or
pursuant to which such Indebtedness is issued where such amendment, modification or supplement provides for the following or which has
any of the following effects:
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(a)    increases the overall principal amount of any such Indebtedness or increases the amount of any single scheduled
installment of principal or interest;

(b)    shortens or accelerates the date upon which any installment of principal or interest becomes due or adds any additional
mandatory redemption provisions;

(c)    shortens the final maturity date of such Indebtedness or otherwise accelerates the amortization schedule with respect to
such Indebtedness;

(d)    increases the rate of interest accruing on such Indebtedness;

(e)    provides for the payment of additional fees or increases existing fees;

(f)    amends or modifies any financial or negative covenant (or covenant which prohibits or restricts the Company or any
Subsidiary from taking certain actions) in a manner which is more onerous or more restrictive in any material respect to the
Company or such Subsidiary or which is otherwise materially adverse to the Company, any Subsidiary and/or the Lenders or, in the
case of any such covenant, which places material additional restrictions on the Company or such Subsidiary or which requires the
Company or such Subsidiary to comply with more restrictive financial ratios or which requires the Company to better its financial
performance, in each case from that set forth in the existing applicable covenants in the Subordinated Indebtedness Documents or the
applicable covenants in this Agreement; or

(g)    amends, modifies or adds any affirmative covenant in a manner which (i) when taken as a whole, is materially adverse
to the Company, any Subsidiary and/or the Lenders or (ii) is more onerous than the existing applicable covenant in the Subordinated
Indebtedness Documents or the applicable covenant in this Agreement.

Furthermore, the Company will not, and will not permit any Subsidiary to, amend any Second Lien Notes Documents or any documents
entered into with respect to any Permitted Second Lien Notes Refinancing Indebtedness to make any of the following changes thereto:

        (i)    increase the sum of the following to an amount in excess of the Second Lien Cap Amount (as defined in the Intercreditor
Agreement) (save as a result of the operation of the terms of the form of the Second Lien Notes Indenture as of the Amendment No.
4 Effective Date): (A) the then-outstanding aggregate principal amount of the Indebtedness outstanding under all Second Lien Notes
Documents or any Permitted Second Lien Notes Refinancing Indebtedness (including, if any, any undrawn portion of any
commitment under the Second Lien Notes Document or any Permitted Second Lien Notes Refinancing Indebtedness) plus (B) the
aggregate face amount of any letters of credit issued and outstanding under any Second Lien Notes Document or any Permitted
Second Lien Notes Refinancing Indebtedness;

        (ii)    increase the “Applicable Margin” or similar component of the interest rate or yield provisions applicable to the Indebtedness
outstanding under the Second Lien Notes Document or any Permitted Second Lien Notes Refinancing Indebtedness in a manner that
would result in the total yield thereon to exceed by more than 3.00% per annum the total yield on Indebtedness thereunder as in
effect on the date such Indebtedness became Second Lien Obligations (or any Permitted Second Lien Notes Refinancing
Indebtedness) (excluding increases (A) resulting from application of the pricing grid set forth in any Second Lien Notes Document or
any Permitted Second Lien Notes Refinancing Indebtedness as in effect on the date such
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Indebtedness became Second Lien Obligations (or any Permitted Second Lien Notes Refinancing Indebtedness) (B) resulting from
the accrual of interest at the default rate (C) any fluctuations in any “base” rate component or other underlying reference rate of such
interest rate or (D) any arrangement, commitment, structuring and underwriting fees and any amendment fees paid or payable to any
agent, arranger, underwriter, trustee or similar Person (or an Affiliate of any of the foregoing) in their respective capacities as such);

        (iii)    amend or otherwise modify any “Default” or “Event of Default” (as each such term is defined in the Second Lien Notes
Documents or any Permitted Second Lien Notes Refinancing Indebtedness) thereunder in a manner adverse to the Company or any
of its Subsidiaries;

        (iv)    accelerate any date upon which a scheduled payment of principal or interest is due, or otherwise decrease the weighted average
life to maturity;

        (v)    modify (or undertake any action having the effect of a modification of) the mandatory prepayment provisions of the Second Lien
Notes Document or any Permitted Second Lien Notes Refinancing Indebtedness in a manner adverse to the Secured Parties; or

        (vi)    increase materially the obligations of the obligor thereunder or confer any additional material rights of the Second Lien
Noteholders or the holders of any Permitted Second Lien Notes Refinancing Indebtedness (or a representative on their behalf) which
would be adverse to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or any Secured Party.

If any Permitted Convertible Notes constitute Subordinated Indebtedness, this Section 6.09 will not apply to the conversion of such Permitted
Convertible Notes or the election or deemed election of a settlement method by the Company with respect thereto, any transaction effected in
accordance with the third paragraph of Section 6.07 or any amendment, modification or supplement to such Permitted Convertible Notes that
is expressly required to be made under the terms thereof.

SECTION 6.10    Sale and Leaseback Transactions. The Company shall not, nor shall it permit any Subsidiary to, enter into
any Sale and Leaseback Transaction, other than Sale and Leaseback Transactions in respect of which the Net Proceedsnet cash proceeds
received in connection therewith does not exceed the greater of $100,000,000 and 6% of Consolidated Total Assets (determined as of the last
day of the most recent fiscal quarter for which financial statements shall have been delivered pursuant to Section 5.01(a) or Section 5.01(b)
(or, prior to the delivery of any such financial statements, the last day of the last fiscal quarter included in the financial statements referred to
in Section 3.04(a)) at the time of such transaction, in the aggregate during any fiscal year of the Company, determined on a consolidated basis
for the Company and its Subsidiaries.

SECTION 6.11    Capital Expenditures. Following the termination of the Covenant Suspension Period, the Company
will not, nor will it permit any Subsidiary to, expend in excess of $125,000,000 (in the aggregate) for Consolidated Capital
Expenditures during any fiscal year of the Company.[Intentionally Omitted]

SECTION 6.12    Financial Covenants.

(a)    Maximum Leverage Ratio. The Company will not permit the ratio (the “Leverage Ratio”), determined as of the end of
each of its fiscal quarters ending on and after June 30, 2017 (excluding, to the extent that the Covenant Suspension Period has
not been
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terminated by the Company pursuant to clause (ii) of the definition of Covenant Suspension Period Termination Date, in
which case the exclusion in this parenthetical shall be immediately null and void and of no further force or effect, its fiscal
quarters ending June 30, 2020, September 30, 2020, December 31, 2020, March 31, 2021, June 30, 2021 and September 30,
2021, it being understood and agreed that if the Covenant Suspension Period has been so terminated by the Company, then
the financial covenant under this Section 6.12(a) shall not be so excluded and shall be so tested on each fiscal quarter of the
Company ending on and after such Covenant Suspension Period Termination Date)March 31, 2021 of (i) Consolidated Total
Indebtedness to (ii) Consolidated EBITDA for the period of four (4) consecutive fiscal quarters ending with the end of such fiscal
quarter, all calculated for the Company and its Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis, to be greater than 4.75 to 1.00. For the
avoidance of doubt, other than as a result of the Company’s actions described in the foregoing parenthetical in this Section
6.12(a), the Leverage Ratio shall not be tested under this Section 6.12(a) for the Company’s fiscal quarters ending June 30,
2020, September 30, 2020, December 31, 2020, March 31, 2021, June 30, 2021 and September 30, 2021, but the definition of
“Leverage Ratio” shall remain in full force and be effective in all other respects under this Agreement.(x) during the
Covenant Adjustment Period, 5.25 to 1.00 and (y) following the Covenant Adjustment Period, 4.75 to 1.00.

(b)    Minimum Interest Coverage Ratio. The Company will not permit the ratio (the “Interest Coverage Ratio”), determined
as of the end of each of its fiscal quarters ending on and after June 30, 2017 (excluding, to the extent that the Covenant
Suspension Period has not been terminated by the Company pursuant to clause (ii) of the definition of Covenant Suspension
Period Termination Date, in which case the exclusion in this parenthetical shall be immediately null and void and of no
further force or effect, its fiscal quarters ending June 30, 2020, September 30, 2020, December 31, 2020, March 31, 2021, June
30, 2021 and September 30, 2021, it being understood and agreed that if the Covenant Suspension Period has been so
terminated by the Company, then the financial covenant under this Section 6.12(b) shall not be so excluded and shall be so
tested on each fiscal quarter of the Company ending on and after such Covenant Suspension Period Termination Date)March
31, 2021, of (i) Consolidated EBITDA to (ii) Consolidated Interest Expense to the extent paid in cash, in each case for the period of
four (4) consecutive fiscal quarters ending with the end of such fiscal quarter, all calculated for the Company and its Subsidiaries on
a consolidated basis, to be less than 3.00 to 1.00. For the avoidance of doubt, other than as a result of the Company’s actions
described in the foregoing parenthetical in this Section 6.12(b), the Interest Coverage Ratio shall not be tested under this
Section 6.12(b) for the Company’s fiscal quarters ending June 30, 2020, September 30, 2020, December 31, 2020, March 31,
2021, June 30, 2021 and September 30, 2021, but the definition of “Interest Coverage Ratio” shall remain in full force and be
effective in all other respects under this Agreement.

(c)    Maximum Senior Secured Leverage Ratio. The Company will not permit the ratio (the “Senior Secured Leverage
Ratio”), determined as of the end of each of its fiscal quarters ending on and after June 30, 2017 (excluding, to the extent that the
Covenant Suspension Period has not been terminated by the Company pursuant to clause (ii) of the definition of Covenant
Suspension Period Termination Date, in which case the exclusion in this parenthetical shall be immediately null and void and
of no further force or effect, its fiscal quarters ending June 30, 2020, September 30, 2020, December 31, 2020, March 31,
2021, June 30, 2021 and September 30, 2021, it being understood and agreed that if the Covenant Suspension Period has been
so terminated by the Company, then the financial covenant
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under this Section 6.12(c) shall not be so excluded and shall be so tested on each fiscal quarter of the Company ending on and
after such Covenant Suspension Period Termination Date)March 31, 2021, of (i) Consolidated Senior Secured Indebtedness to
(ii) Consolidated EBITDA for the period of four (4) consecutive fiscal quarters ending with the end of such fiscal quarter, all
calculated for the Company and its Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis, to be greater than 3.25 to 1.00. For the avoidance of doubt,
other than as a result of the Company’s actions described in the foregoing parenthetical in this Section 6.12(c), the Senior
Secured Leverage Ratio shall not be tested under this Section 6.12(c) for the Company’s fiscal quarters ending June 30, 2020,
September 30, 2020, December 31, 2020, March 31, 2021, June 30, 2021 and September 30, 2021, but the definition of “Senior
Secured Leverage Ratio” shall remain in full force and be effective in all other respects under this Agreement.(x) during the
Covenant Adjustment Period, 3.00 to 1.00 and (y) following the Covenant Adjustment Period, 3.25 to 1.00.

(d)    Permissible Increase to Leverage Ratios. Notwithstanding the foregoing, solely to the extent that the Covenant
Suspension Period is not in effect, the Company shall be permitted, but in no event on more than two (2) occasions during the term
of this Agreement, to allow (i) the maximum permitted Leverage Ratio under Section 6.12(a) to be increased to (x) during the
Covenant Adjustment Period, 5.50 to 1.00 and (y) following the Covenant Adjustment Period, 5.00 to 1.00 and the (ii) the
maximum permitted Senior Secured Leverage Ratio under Section 6.12(c) to be increased to (x) during the Covenant Adjustment
Period, 3.25 to 1.00 and (y) following the Covenant Adjustment Period, 3.50 to 1.00, in each case for a period of four consecutive
fiscal quarters (such period, an “Adjusted Covenant Period”) in connection with a Permitted Acquisition occurring during the first of
such four fiscal quarters if the aggregate consideration paid or to be paid in respect of such acquisition exceeds $125,000,000 (and in
respect of which the Company shall provide notice in writing to the Administrative Agent (for distribution to the Lenders) of such
increase and a transaction description of such acquisition (including the name of the person or summary description of the assets
being acquired and the approximate purchase price)), so long as the Company is in compliance on a pro forma basis with both (i) the
maximum Leverage Ratio of (x) during the Covenant Adjustment Period, 5.50 to 1.00 and (y) following the Covenant
Adjustment Period, 5.00 to 1.00 and (ii) the maximum Senior Secured Leverage Ratio of (x) during the Covenant Adjustment
Period, 3.25 to 1.00 and (y) following the Covenant Adjustment Period, 3.50 to 1.00, in each case on the closing date of such
acquisition immediately after giving effect (including Pro Forma Effect) to such acquisition; provided that it is understood and
agreed that (x) the Company may not elect a new Adjusted Covenant Period for at least two (2) fiscal quarters following the end of
an Adjusted Covenant Period and (y) at the end of an Adjusted Covenant Period, both (i) the maximum permitted Leverage Ratio
shall revert to (x) during the Covenant Adjustment Period, 5.25 to 1.00 and (y) following the Covenant Adjustment Period,
4.75 to 1.00 and (ii) the maximum permitted Senior Secured Leverage Ratio shall revert to (x) during the Covenant Adjustment
Period, 3.00 to 1.00 and (y) following the Covenant Adjustment Period, 3.25 to 1.00, in each case as of the fiscal quarter end
immediately following such Adjusted Covenant Period and thereafter until another Adjusted Covenant Period (if any) is elected
pursuant to the terms and conditions described above.

(e) Minimum Available Liquidity. The Company will not permit Available Liquidity to be less than $50,000,000 at any
time during the Covenant Suspension Period.
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(f) Minimum Quarterly Consolidated EBITDA. The Company will not permit Consolidated EBITDA to be less than
$0 for each fiscal quarter of the Company ended June 30, 2021 and September 30, 2021.

ARTICLE VII

Events of Default

If any of the following events (“Events of Default”) shall occur:

(a)    any Borrower shall fail to pay any principal of any Loan or any reimbursement obligation in respect of any LC
Disbursement when and as the same shall become due and payable, whether at the due date thereof or at a date fixed for prepayment
thereof or otherwise;

(b)    any Borrower shall fail to pay any interest on any Loan or any fee or any other amount (other than an amount referred
to in clause (a) of this Article) payable under this Agreement or any other Loan Document, when and as the same shall become due
and payable, and such failure shall continue unremedied for a period of three (3) Business Days;

(c)    any representation or warranty made or deemed made by or on behalf of the Company, any other Borrower or any
Subsidiary, as applicable, in or in connection with this Agreement or any other Loan Document or any amendment or modification
hereof or thereof or waiver hereunder or thereunder, or in any report, certificate, financial statement or other document furnished
pursuant to or in connection with this Agreement or any other Loan Document or any amendment or modification thereof or waiver
thereunder, shall prove to have been incorrect in any material respect when made or deemed made;

(d)    the Company or any other Borrower, as applicable, shall fail to observe or perform any covenant, condition or
agreement contained in Section 5.02, 5.03 (with respect to Company or any Borrower’s existence), 5.08, 5.09 or 5.10, in Article VI
or in Article X;

(e)    the Company, any other Borrower or any Subsidiary Guarantor, as applicable, shall fail to observe or perform any
covenant, condition or agreement contained in this Agreement (other than those specified in clause (a), (b) or (d) of this Article) or
any other Loan Document, and such failure shall continue unremedied for a period of thirty (30) days after notice thereof from the
Administrative Agent to the Company (which notice will be given at the request of any Lender);

(f)    the Company or any Subsidiary shall fail to make any payment (whether of principal or interest and regardless of
amount) in respect of any Material Indebtedness, when and as the same shall become due and payable (after the expiration of any
applicable grace or cure periods provided for in the applicable agreement or instrument under which such Indebtedness was created);

(g)    any event or condition occurs that results in any Material Indebtedness becoming due prior to its scheduled maturity or
that enables or permits (with or without the giving of notice, the lapse of time or both) the holder or holders of any Material
Indebtedness or any trustee or agent on its or their behalf to cause any Material Indebtedness to become due, or to require the
prepayment, repurchase, redemption or defeasance thereof, prior to its scheduled maturity; provided that this clause (g) shall not
apply to (i) secured Indebtedness that becomes due as a
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result of the voluntary sale or transfer of the property or assets securing such Indebtedness, (ii) any redemption, exchange,
repurchase, conversion or settlement with respect to any Permitted Convertible Notes, or satisfaction of any condition giving rise to
or permitting the foregoing, pursuant to their terms unless such redemption, repurchase, conversion or settlement results from a
default thereunder or an event of the type that constitutes an Event of Default or (iii) any early payment requirement or unwinding or
termination with respect to any Permitted Call Spread Swap Agreement, or satisfaction of any condition giving rise to or permitting
the foregoing, in accordance with the terms thereof where neither the Company nor any of its Affiliates is the “defaulting party” (or
substantially equivalent term) under the terms of such Permitted Call Spread Swap Agreement;

(h)    an involuntary proceeding shall be commenced or an involuntary petition shall be filed seeking (i) liquidation,
examinership, reorganization or other relief in respect of the Company, any other Borrower or any Significant Subsidiary or its debts,
or of a substantial part of its assets, under any Federal, state or foreign bankruptcy, insolvency, examinership, receivership or similar
law now or hereafter in effect or (ii) the appointment of a receiver, trustee, custodian, sequestrator, conservator or similar official for
the Company, any other Borrower or any Significant Subsidiary or for a substantial part of its assets, and, in the case of a proceeding
commenced or a petition made outside the Netherlands, such proceeding or petition shall continue undismissed for sixty (60) days or
an order or decree approving or ordering any of the foregoing shall be entered; provided that in the case of a proceeding commenced
or a petition made in the Netherlands, no grace period is applicable, other than in the case of any frivolous or vexatious petitions for
which a grace period of fifteen (15) days applies;

(i)    the Company, any other Borrower or any Significant Subsidiary shall (i) voluntarily commence any proceeding or file
any petition seeking liquidation, examinership, reorganization or other relief under any Federal, state or foreign bankruptcy,
insolvency, examinership, receivership or similar law now or hereafter in effect, (ii) consent to the institution of, or fail to contest in a
timely and appropriate manner, any proceeding or petition described in clause (h) of this Article, (iii) apply for or consent to the
appointment of a receiver, trustee, custodian, sequestrator, conservator or similar official for the Company, any other Borrower or any
Significant Subsidiary or for a substantial part of its assets, (iv) file an answer admitting the material allegations of a petition filed
against it in any such proceeding, (v) make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or (vi) take any action for the purpose of
effecting any of the foregoing;

(j)    the Company, any other Borrower or any Significant Subsidiary shall become unable, admit in writing its inability or
fail generally to pay its debts as they become due;

(k)    one or more judgments for the payment of money in an aggregate amount in excess of (x) during the Covenant
Suspension Period, $25,000,000 and (y) following the termination of the Covenant Suspension Period, $35,000,000, shall be
rendered against the Company, any Subsidiary or any combination thereof and the same shall remain undischarged for a period of
thirty (30) consecutive days during which execution shall not be effectively stayed, or any action shall be legally taken by a judgment
creditor to attach or levy upon any assets of the Company or any Subsidiary to enforce any such judgment;
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(b)    The bank serving as the Administrative Agent hereunder shall have the same rights and powers in its capacity as a
Lender as any other Lender and may exercise the same as though it were not the Administrative Agent, and such bank and its Affiliates may
accept deposits from, lend money to and generally engage in any kind of business with Company or any Subsidiary or other Affiliate thereof
as if it were not the Administrative Agent hereunder.

(c)    The Administrative Agent shall not have any duties or obligations except those expressly set forth in the Loan
Documents. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, (i) the Administrative Agent shall not be subject to any fiduciary or other
implied duties, regardless of whether a Default has occurred and is continuing, (ii) the Administrative Agent shall not have any duty to take
any discretionary action or exercise any discretionary powers, except discretionary rights and powers expressly contemplated by the Loan
Documents that the Administrative Agent is required to exercise in writing as directed by the Required Lenders (or such other number or
percentage of the Lenders as shall be necessary under the circumstances as provided in Section 9.02), and (iii) except as expressly set forth in
the Loan Documents, the Administrative Agent shall not have any duty to disclose, and shall not be liable for the failure to disclose, any
information relating to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries that is communicated to or obtained by the bank serving as Administrative
Agent or any of its Affiliates in any capacity. The Administrative Agent shall not be liable for any action taken or not taken by it with the
consent or at the request of the Required Lenders (or such other number or percentage of the Lenders as shall be necessary under the
circumstances as provided in Section 9.02) or in the absence of its own gross negligence or willful misconduct as determined by a final non-
appealable judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction. The Administrative Agent shall be deemed not to have knowledge of any Default
unless and until written notice thereof is given to the Administrative Agent by the Company or a Lender, and the Administrative Agent shall
not be responsible for or have any duty to ascertain or inquire into (i) any statement, warranty or representation made in or in connection with
any Loan Document, (ii) the contents of any certificate, report or other document delivered hereunder or in connection with any Loan
Document, (iii) the performance or observance of any of the covenants, agreements or other terms or conditions set forth in any Loan
Document, (iv) the validity, enforceability, effectiveness or genuineness of any Loan Document or any other agreement, instrument or
document (including, for the avoidance of doubt, in connection with the Administrative Agent’s reliance on any Electronic Signature
transmitted by telecopy, emailed pdf, or any other electronic means that reproduces an image of an actual executed signature page),
(v) the creation, perfection or priority of Liens on the Collateral or the existence of the Collateral or (vi) the satisfaction of any condition set
forth in Article IV or elsewhere in any Loan Document, other than to confirm receipt of items expressly required to be delivered to the
Administrative Agent.

(d)    The Administrative Agent shall be entitled to rely upon, and shall not incur any liability for relying upon, any notice,
request, certificate, consent, statement, instrument, document or other writing believed by it to be genuine and to have been signed or sent by
the proper Person. The Administrative Agent also may rely upon any statement made to it orally or by telephone and believed by it to be
made by the proper Person, and shall not incur any liability for relying thereon. The Administrative Agent may consult with legal counsel
(who may be counsel for the Company), independent accountants and other experts selected by it, and shall not be liable for any action taken
or not taken by it in accordance with the advice of any such counsel, accountants or experts.

(e)    The Administrative Agent may perform any and all its duties and exercise its rights and powers by or through any one
or more sub-agents appointed by the Administrative Agent. The Administrative Agent and any such sub-agent may perform any and all its
duties and exercise its rights and powers through their respective Related Parties. The exculpatory provisions of the preceding paragraphs
shall apply to any such sub-agent and to the Related Parties of the Administrative Agent and any such sub-agent, and shall apply to their
respective activities in connection with the syndication of the credit facilities provided for herein as well as activities as Administrative
Agent.
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(f)    Subject to the appointment and acceptance of a successor Administrative Agent as provided in this paragraph, the
Administrative Agent may resign at any time by notifying the Lenders, the Issuing Banks and the Company. Upon any such resignation, the
Required Lenders shall have the right, in consultation with the Company, to appoint a successor. If no successor shall have been so appointed
by the Required Lenders and shall have accepted such appointment within thirty (30) days after the retiring Administrative Agent gives
notice of its resignation, then the retiring Administrative Agent may, on behalf of the Lenders and the Issuing Banks, appoint a successor
Administrative Agent which shall be a bank with an office in New York, New York, or an Affiliate of any such bank. If the Person serving as
Administrative Agent is a Defaulting Lender pursuant to clause (d)(1) of the definition thereof, the Required Lenders may, to the extent
permitted by applicable law, by notice in writing to the Company and such Person remove such Person as Administrative Agent and, in
consultation with the Company, appoint a successor Administrative Agent which shall be a bank with an office in New York, New York, or
an Affiliate of any such bank. If no such successor shall have been so appointed by the Required Lenders and shall have accepted such
appointment within thirty (30) days (the “Removal Effective Date”), then such removal shall nonetheless become effective in accordance
with such notice on the Removal Effective Date. Upon the acceptance of its appointment as Administrative Agent hereunder by a successor,
such successor shall succeed to and become vested with all the rights, powers, privileges and duties of the retiring or removed Administrative
Agent, and the retiring or removed Administrative Agent shall be discharged from its duties and obligations hereunder. The fees payable by
any Borrower to a successor Administrative Agent shall be the same as those payable to its predecessor unless otherwise agreed between
such Borrower and such successor. After the Administrative Agent’s resignation or removal hereunder, the provisions of this Article and
Section 9.03 shall continue in effect for the benefit of such retiring or removed Administrative Agent, its sub-agents and their respective
Related Parties in respect of any actions taken or omitted to be taken by any of them while it was acting as Administrative Agent.

(g)    Each Lender and each Issuing Bank acknowledges and agrees that the extensions of credit made hereunder are
commercial loans and letters of credit and not investments in a business enterprise or securities. Each Lender further represents thatand
warrants that (i) the Loan Documents set forth the terms of a commercial lending facility, (ii) it is engaged in making, acquiring or
holding commercial loans and in providing other facilities set forth herein as may be applicable to such Lender or Issuing Bank, in
each case in the ordinary course of its business andbusiness, and not for the purpose of purchasing, acquiring or holding any other
type of financial instrument (and each Lender and each Issuing Bank agrees not to assert a claim in contravention of the foregoing),
(iii) it has, independently and without reliance upon the Administrative Agent, any arranger of the credit facilities evidenced by this
Agreement or any other Lender or Issuing Bank and their respective Related Parties and based on such documents and information as it has
deemed appropriate, made its own credit analysis and decision to enter into this Agreement as a Lender, and to make, acquire or hold Loans
hereunder and (iv) it is sophisticated with respect to decisions to make, acquire and/or hold commercial loans and to provide other
facilities set forth herein, as may be applicable to such Lender or such Issuing Bank, and either it, or the Person exercising discretion
in making its decision to make, acquire and/or hold such commercial loans or to provide such other facilities, is experienced in
making, acquiring or holding such commercial loans or providing such other facilities. Each Lender and Issuing Bank shall,
independently and without reliance upon the Administrative Agent, any arranger of the credit facilities evidenced by this Agreement or any
amendment thereof or any other Lender or Issuing Bank and their respective Related Parties and based on such documents and information
(which may contain material, non-public information within the meaning of the United States securities laws concerning the Company and its
Affiliates) as it shall from time to time deem appropriate, continue to make its own decisions in taking or not taking action under or based
upon this Agreement, any related agreement or any document furnished hereunder or thereunder and in deciding whether or to the extent to
which it will continue as a Lender or assign or otherwise transfer its rights, interests and obligations hereunder.
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SECTION 9.05    Survival. All covenants, agreements, representations and warranties made by the Loan Parties in the Loan
Documents and in the certificates or other instruments delivered in connection with or pursuant to this Agreement or any other Loan
Document shall be considered to have been relied upon by the other parties hereto and shall survive the execution and delivery of the Loan
Documents and the making of any Loans and issuance of any Letters of Credit, regardless of any investigation made by any such other party
or on its behalf and notwithstanding that the Administrative Agent, any Issuing Bank or any Lender may have had notice or knowledge of
any Default or incorrect representation or warranty at the time any credit is extended hereunder, and shall continue in full force and effect as
long as the principal of or any accrued interest on any Loan or any fee or any other amount payable under this Agreement or any other Loan
Document is outstanding and unpaid or any Letter of Credit is outstanding and so long as the Commitments have not expired or terminated.
The provisions of Sections 2.15, 2.16, 2.17 and 9.03 and Article VIII shall survive and remain in full force and effect regardless of the
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, the repayment of the Loans, the expiration or termination of the Letters of Credit and
the Commitments or the termination of this Agreement or any other Loan Document or any provision hereof or thereof.

SECTION 9.06    Counterparts; Integration; Electronic Execution; Effectiveness. This Agreement may be executed in
counterparts (and by different parties hereto on different counterparts), each of which shall constitute an original, but all of which when taken
together shall constitute a single contract. This Agreement, the other Loan Documents and any separate letter agreements with respect to (i)
fees payable to the Administrative Agent and (ii) the reduction of the Letter of Credit Commitment of any Issuing Bank constitute the entire
contract among the parties relating to the subject matter hereof and supersede any and all previous agreements and understandings, oral or
written, relating to the subject matter hereof. This Agreement shall become effective on the Restatement Effective Date and thereafter shall
be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns. Delivery of an executed counterpart
of a signature page of (x) this Agreement, (y) any other Loan Document and/or (z) any document, amendment, approval, consent,
information, notice (including, for the avoidance of doubt, any notice delivered pursuant to Section 9.01), certificate, request,
statement, disclosure or authorization related to this Agreement, any other Loan Document and/or the transactions contemplated
hereby and/or thereby (each an “Ancillary Document”) that is an Electronic Signature transmitted by telecopy, e-mailed .emailed pdf,
or any other electronic means that reproduces an image of thean actual executed signature page shall be effective as delivery of a manually
executed counterpart of this Agreement, such other Loan Document or such Ancillary Document, as applicable. The words “execution,”
“signed,” “signature,” “delivery,” and words of like import in or relating to any document to be signed in connection with this Agreement
and the transactions contemplated hereby, any other Loan Document and/or any Ancillary Document shall be deemed to include
Electronic Signatures, deliveries or the keeping of records in any electronic form (including deliveries by telecopy, emailed pdf, or any
other electronic means that reproduces an image of an actual executed signature page), each of which shall be of the same legal effect,
validity or enforceability as a manually executed signature, physical delivery thereof or the use of a paper-based recordkeeping system, as the
case may be, to the extent and as provided for in any applicable law, including the Federal Electronic Signatures in Global and
National Commerce Act, the New York State Electronic Signatures and Records Act, or any other similar state laws based on the
Uniform Electronic Transactions Act; provided that nothing herein shall require the Administrative Agent to accept electronic
signaturesElectronic Signatures in any form or format without its prior written consent and pursuant to procedures approved by it;
provided, further, without limiting the foregoing, (i) to the extent the Administrative Agent has agreed to accept any Electronic
Signature, the Administrative Agent and each of the Lenders shall be entitled to rely on such Electronic Signature purportedly given
by or on behalf of the Company or any other Loan

136



Party without further verification thereof and without any obligation to review the appearance or form of any such Electronic
Signature and (ii) upon the request of the Administrative Agent or any Lender, any Electronic Signature shall be promptly followed
by a manually executed counterpart. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, each of the Company and each other
BorrowerLoan Party hereby (i) agrees that, for all purposes, including without limitation, in connection with any workout, restructuring,
enforcement of remedies, bankruptcy proceedings or litigation among the Administrative Agent, the Lenders, the Company and the other
Loan Parties, Electronic Signatures transmitted by telecopy, emailed pdf, or any other electronic means that reproduces an image of
an actual executed signature page and/or any electronic images of this Agreement or, any other Loan Documents (in each case,
including with respect to any signature pages thereto)Document and/or any Ancillary Document shall have the same legal effect,
validity and enforceability as any paper original, and (ii) agrees that the Administrative Agent and each of the Lenders may, at its
option, create one or more copies of this Agreement, any other Loan Document and/or any Ancillary Document in the form of an
imaged electronic record in any format, which shall be deemed created in the ordinary course of such Person’s business, and destroy
the original paper document (and all such electronic records shall be considered an original for all purposes and shall have the same
legal effect, validity and enforceability as a paper record), (iii) waives any argument, defense or right to contest the legal effect, validity
or enforceability of the Loan Documentsthis Agreement, any other Loan Document and/or any Ancillary Document based solely on the
lack of paper original copies of any Loan Documentsthis Agreement, such other Loan Document and/or such Ancillary Document,
respectively, including with respect to any signature pages thereto. and (iv) waives any claim against any Lender-Related Person for any
Liabilities arising solely from the Administrative Agent’s and/or any Lender’s reliance on or use of Electronic Signatures and/or
transmissions by telecopy, emailed pdf, or any other electronic means that reproduces an image of an actual executed signature page,
including any Liabilities arising as a result of the failure of the Company and/or any other Loan Party to use any available security
measures in connection with the execution, delivery or transmission of any Electronic Signature.

SECTION 9.07    Severability. Any provision of any Loan Document held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any
jurisdiction shall, as to such jurisdiction, be ineffective to the extent of such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability without affecting the
validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions thereof; and the invalidity of a particular provision in a particular jurisdiction
shall not invalidate such provision in any other jurisdiction.

SECTION 9.08    Right of Setoff. If an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing, each Lender and each of its
Affiliates is hereby authorized at any time and from time to time, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to set off and apply any and all
deposits (general or special, time or demand, provisional or final and in whatever currency denominated) at any time held and other
obligations at any time owing by such Lender or Affiliate to or for the credit or the account of the Company, any other Borrower or any
Subsidiary Guarantor against any of and all of the Secured Obligations held by such Lender, irrespective of whether or not such Lender shall
have made any demand under the Loan Documents and although such obligations may be unmatured. The rights of each Lender under this
Section are in addition to other rights and remedies (including other rights of setoff) which such Lender may have. Each Lender and each
Issuing Bank agrees to notify the Company and the Administrative Agent promptly after any such setoff and application; provided that the
failure to give such notice shall not affect the validity of such setoff and application.

SECTION 9.09    Governing Law; Jurisdiction; Consent to Service of Process. (a) This Agreement shall be construed in
accordance with and governed by the law of the State of New York.
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EXHIBIT A

Consent and Reaffirmation

Each of the undersigned hereby acknowledges receipt of a copy of the foregoing Amendment No. 5 to the Credit Agreement, dated as of
October 21, 2011, as amended and restated as of February 8, 2013, as further amended and restated as of July 13, 2017, and as further
amended by Amendment No. 1, dated as of June 14, 2018, Amendment No. 2, dated as of January 7, 2019, that certain Borrower Assumption
Agreement, dated as of December 3, 2019, Amendment No. 3, dated as of February 13, 2020 and Amendment No. 4, dated as of April 28,
2020 (as so amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time prior to the date hereof, the “Credit Agreement”), by
and among Cimpress plc (the “Company”), Vistaprint Limited, Cimpress Schweiz GmbH, Vistaprint B.V. and Cimpress USA Incorporated
(collectively, the “Subsidiary Borrowers” and, together with the Company, the “Borrowers”), the financial institutions from time to time party
thereto (collectively, the “Lenders”) and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., in its capacity as administrative agent for the Lenders (the
“Administrative Agent”), which Amendment No. 5 is dated as of February 16, 2021 and is by and among the Borrowers, the financial
institutions listed on the signature pages thereof and the Administrative Agent (the “Amendment”). Capitalized terms used in this Consent
and Reaffirmation and not defined herein shall have the meanings given to them in the Amended Credit Agreement (as defined in the
Amendment). Without in any way establishing a course of dealing by the Administrative Agent or any Lender, each of the undersigned
consents to the Amendment and reaffirms the terms and conditions of the Guaranty and any other Loan Document executed by it and
acknowledges and agrees that the Guaranty and each and every such Loan Document executed by the undersigned in connection with the
Amended Credit Agreement remains in full force and effect and is hereby reaffirmed, ratified and confirmed. Without limitation of the
foregoing, each of the undersigned confirms, acknowledges and agrees that: (a) each of the Collateral Documents to which it is a party shall
secure all monies, obligations and liabilities whatsoever whether principal, interest or otherwise now or hereafter due, owing or incurred by
the undersigned to any Secured Party whether collectively or individually under or in connection with the Loan Documents; and (b) each of
the Collateral Documents (and the security interests created thereby) shall continue in full force and effect as continuing security for all
obligations expressed to be secured thereunder and under the Amended Credit Agreement and shall continue to constitute the legal, valid and
binding obligations of the undersigned enforceable in accordance with its terms. In respect of the Loan Documents governed by Dutch law,
each of the undersigned party thereto hereby confirms and agrees that (i) at the time of the entering into the Loan Documents governed by
Dutch law, it was their intention (and it is still their intention and agreement) that any security right created under such Loan Document to
secure the Secured Obligations (as defined in such Loan Document) as amended from time to time, including by the amendments as included
in the Amendment, and (ii) any amount owed by the Loan Parties under the Credit Agreement as amended by and in accordance with the
terms of the Amendment are part of the definition of the “Secured Obligations” (as defined in the Loan Documents governed by Dutch law),
a “Parallel Debt” (as defined in Article VIII of the Credit Agreement and Section 33 of the Guaranty) and the “Corresponding Obligations”
as defined in the Credit Agreement. All references to the Credit Agreement contained in the abovereferenced documents shall be a reference
to the Amended Credit Agreement and as the same may from time to time hereafter be amended, modified or restated. Each party hereto
hereby submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of any United States federal or New York State court sitting in the City of New York in any
action or proceeding arising out of or relating to this Consent and Reaffirmation and each party hereto hereby irrevocably agrees that all
claims in respect of such action or proceeding may be heard and determined in any such court and irrevocably waives any objection it may
now or hereafter have as to the venue of such suit, action or proceeding brought in such a court or that such court is an inconvenient forum.



Dated February 16, 2021

[Signature Pages Follow]



    IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Consent and Reaffirmation has been duly executed and delivered as of the day and year above written.

CIMPRESS USA INCORPORATED,
as a Guarantor

By:/s/Sean Quinn
Name: Sean Quinn
Title: President

CIMPRESS WINDSOR CORPORATION,
as a Guarantor

By:/s/Sean Quinn
Name: Sean Quinn
Title: Treasurer

VISTAPRINT NETHERLANDS B.V.,
as a Guarantor

By:/s/Sean Quinn
Name: Sean Quinn
Title: Managing Director

WEBS, INC.,
as a Guarantor

By:/s/Sean Quinn
Name: Sean Quinn
Title: President and Treasurer

Signature Page to Consent and Reaffirmation to Amendment No. 5 to
Credit Agreement dated as of October 21, 2011,
as amended and restated as of February 8, 2013
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CIMPRESS INVESTMENTS B.V.,
as a Guarantor

By:/s/Sean Quinn
Name: Sean Quinn
Title: Managing Director

CIMPRESS ITALY S.R.L.,
as a Guarantor

By:/s/Sean Quinn
Name: Sean Quinn
Title: Chairman and Executive Director

PIXARTPRINTING S.P.A.,
as a Guarantor

By:/s/Sean Quinn
Name: Sean Quinn
Title: Executive Director

CIMPRESS JAMAICA LIMITED,
as a Guarantor

By:/s/Sean Quinn
Name: Sean Quinn
Title: Managing Director
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CIMPRESS DEUTSCHLAND GMBH,
as a Guarantor

By:/s/Sean Quinn
Name: Sean Quinn
Title: Managing Director

National Pen Promotional Holdings Limited,
as a Guarantor

By:/s/Sean Quinn
Name: Sean Quinn
Title: Director

National Pen Promotional PRODUCTS Limited,
as a Guarantor

By:/s/Sean Quinn
Name: Sean Quinn
Title: Director

99DESIGNS, INC.,
as a Guarantor

By:/s/Sean Quinn
Name: Sean Quinn
Title: President

CIMPRESS AUSTRALIA PTY LIMITED,
as a Guarantor

By:/s/ Bradley Hedderson
Name: Bradley Hedderson
Title: Managing Director
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Cimpress USA Manufacturing Incorporated,
as a Guarantor

By: /s/ Bradley Hedderson
Name: Bradley Hedderson
Title: President

CIMPRESS IRELAND LIMITED,
as a Guarantor

By:/s/ Marcus Wisznievski
Name: Marcus Wisznievski
Title: Director

CIMPRESS JAPAN CO., LTD.,
as a Guarantor

By:/s/Keiko Son
Name: Keiko Son
Title: Representative Director
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CIMPRESS UK LIMITED,
as a Guarantor

By:/s/Jonathan Chevalier
Name: Jonathan Chevalier
Title: Director

VISTAPRINT CORPORATE SOLUTIONS INCORPORATED,
as a Guarantor

By: /s/Jonathan Chevalier
Name: Jonathan Chevalier
Title: President and Treasurer

BUILD A SIGN LLC,
as a Guarantor

By: /s/Jonathan Chevalier
Name: Jonathan Chevalier
Title: Treasurer

NATIONAL PEN CO. LLC,
as a Guarantor

By:/s/Richard Obrigawitch
Name: Richard Obrigawitch
Title: Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary

NATIONAL PEN TENNESSEE LLC,
as a Guarantor

By: /s/Richard Obrigawitch
Name: Richard Obrigawitch
Title: Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary
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NP CORPORATE SERVICES LLC,
as a Guarantor

By: /s/Richard Obrigawitch
Name: Richard Obrigawitch
Title: Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary

TRADEPRINT DISTRIBUTION LIMITED,
as a Guarantor

By:/s/Paolo Roatta
Name: Paolo Roatta
Title: Director

WIRMACHENDRUCK GMBH,
as a Guarantor

By:/s/Johannes Voetter
Name: Johannes Voetter
Title: Managing Director
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Robert S. Keane, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Cimpress plc;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this
report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this quarterly report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 29, 2021

/s/ Robert S. Keane
Robert S. Keane
Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION

I, Sean E. Quinn, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Cimpress plc;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this
report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this quarterly report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 29, 2021

/s/ Sean E. Quinn
Sean E. Quinn
Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Cimpress plc (the “Company”) for the quarter ended March 31, 2021 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), the undersigned, Robert S. Keane, Chief Executive
Officer, and Sean E. Quinn, Chief Financial Officer, of the Company, each hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that, to his
knowledge on the date hereof:

a. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

b. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: April 29, 2021 /s/ Robert S. Keane
Robert S. Keane
Chief Executive Officer

Date: April 29, 2021 /s/ Sean E. Quinn
Sean E. Quinn
Chief Financial Officer


